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Chairman's welcome Strategic report Governance

Chairman’s
welcome

Keith Ludeman

Our journey continues...

Last year saw the continuation of significant
change at Bristol Water, as we worked closely
with our customers and the local communities
that we serve to build a strong and resilient
platform for the future. I am proud of what we
have achieved this year with the UK Customer
Service Index confirming us as the most
Tecommended water company in the UK and
the top performing water company in England.
We have focussed on improving our operational
performance, with steps forward in leakage
reduction, industry leading performance

on water quality, and significant progress in
changing our ways of working.
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We have also continued to put

in place the building blocks for
future success. We submitted our
Business Plan for 2020 - 2025 as

part of Ofwat’s Price Review process
which has seen us take a big step
forward and has been praised for

the excellent, industry leading,
customer engagement journey

we have been on. In addition, in
January 2019 we launched our Social
Contract, the first water company in
the UK to do so. Our Social Contract
is an integral part of our future and
ensures boardroom and management
decisions are made with the views

of local communities at their heart.

We have seen a number of changes
to the Board during the year. In June
2018, Tony Hemus and Tracey Wood,

both Independent Non-Executive
Directors (“INED”), resigned from

the Board. We have appointed three
new INEDs. Their knowledge and
expertise will complement and
strengthen the existing Board. Paul
Francis joined us in June 2018. He

is a Chartered Accountant with 30
years’ experience in the rail and
transport sector. Jeremy Bending was
appointed in October 2018. He has
substantial experience of working
with regulated utility companies

in the asset management area. In
November we welcomed Jim McAuliffe
who has strong links to the local
community in Bristol and was, until
recently, the CFO of Bristol Airport.

We were also delighted to welcome
Laura Flowerdew in October 2018 as

the Chief Financial Officer following
Mick Axtell’s departure as Chief
Financial Officer in July 2018. Laura
joins us from Bristol Energy where
she was the Finance Director. Laura,
a Chartered Accountant, previously
held senior finance positions

in anumber of sectors, and is a
former director at Deloitte’s energy
infrastructure and utilities business.

I would like to close by thanking every
single member of staff of Bristol Water
for their hard work every day and for
ensuring we have had an excellent
year, making significant progress

on our goals for the Company.

Keith Ludeman
Chairman
5 July 2019
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The strategic report details our performance
over the past year and how it has been achieved
in line with our business model and strategy.
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Chairman's welcome Strategic report Corporate governance

Chief Executive
Officers update

"The waters around you have grown..."

We have spent this year not only building for the
future but also looking back into our long history to
rejuvenate who we are, our purpose and our way
forward. We believe water companies have a unique
role to play in the communities in which they operate.
By reaching back into our history, and revisiting the
original purpose of the company, we have learned
how our current role maintains links all through our
173 years of history, and underpins our vision and
strategy for Bristol Water going forward.
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Our strategy is reflected in our
Business Plan, Bristol Water For All,
and I am extremely proud of this
plan, which sees us continue our
journey to build trust beyond water.
This plan forms our core submission
to our regulator, Ofwat, as part of

the process to set our revenues,

and therefore customer bills, over
the forthcoming5 year period.

Ofwat’s interim response and
assessments of plans to date have
been fair and measured and, whilst
providing significant challenges,
Iwasreally pleased to hear they
recognised our industry leading
customer engagement programme
in particular. This programme has
been achieved through a mixture of
activity specifically for the Business
Plan but also by adopting our
engagement activities as ‘business
as usual’. Our customer forum and
youth board see us regularly meet
with current and future customers
to discuss our plans and to geta
realidea of what they want.

I was also delighted that Ofwat
moved us from ‘Prescribed’ status

to ‘Targeted’ status as part of their
Company Monitoring Framework.
Thisrecognises the hard work and
effort made by our dedicated staff to
ensure improvements in our reporting
and assurance processes, allowing
us toreset our reputation with the
regulator and build the confidence of
customers and other stakeholders.

In January 2019 we launched the
water industry’s first Social Contract.
This was a massive step forward, not
only for us but also for the industry.

It embodies our purposes including
having a positive impact for society

in what we do, building trust beyond
the delivery of pure and reliable water
and again reflects our origins going
back to our first days in 1846, providing
water to all citizens of Bristol.

From an operational perspective, we
have dealt with challenging weather
conditions and delivered improving
performance across a number of
metrics. In 2017/18 we completed

the Southern Resilience Scheme

and I was pleased to see this year it
proved its worth as we experienced
one of the driest summers on record.
The 30km pipeline from Barrow to
Cheddar did its job moving water
around the network, ensuring our
reservoir levels stayed healthy and
we saw no major impact of this hot dry
weather on our customers. Continuing
toimproveresilience remains a key
focus for us. In December 2018, the
scheme won 2 Gold Green Apple
Environment Awards demonstrating
our commitment to the environment.

Despite the challenges of the hot
summer, we have seen improvement
in our leakage performance. We have
improved our leakage detection

rate, resulting in the leakage teams
detecting twice the number of leaks
they were finding last year. Additional
leakage inspectors are currently being
trained and are already starting to
contribute toleakage reduction. In
addition the largest leak repairs were
prioritised to help reduce leakage more
quickly and minimise the effects of
the winter. Indeed, since the extreme
conditions of the summer, our leakage
level has beenreduced by 11%.

Health & Safety continuestobe a

top priority of mine, as we can only

be successful when we achieve our
goals without harm to the public,

our employees, our supply partners,
and those affected by our actions or
omissions. In January 2019, our Health
& Safety strategy was adopted by the
Board. It identifies key areas of focus
for our journey to zero harm. Overall
we have seen a 20% reduction in
accident numbers this year, whichisa
fantastic achievement but there is still
alot of work to do torealise our aims.

We not only took steps forward with
our future plans and our operational
performance, we also made big
cultural improvements with the
launch of our values to all our staff.
Our values are; Proud, Respectful,
Supportive, Professional, Accountable,
Ambitious and, underpinning

them all, Trustworthy. These seven
values describe who we are and who
we want to be for our colleagues,
customers, the communities we
serve and our environment.Iam
personally committed to our values,
they are critical to our success

and essential to us achieving our
vision and strategic objectives.

Iwould like to thank every member
of staff at Bristol Water for the
commitment and ‘pride in the patch’
they show every day. As ateam we
have moved this business forward
and, itis with great enthusiasm for
what the future holds, that I can say
“the times, they are a-changin’”

Mel Karam
Chief Executive Officer
5 July 2019
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Our strategy

Our vision, mission and purpose

Our vision “Trust beyond water - providing excellent
customer experiences’

Trust beyond water reflects the expectations of our customers and
stakeholders and delivers beyond the basic product and service we
supply. It reflects our mission to be “a company that our communities
trust and are proud of. In doing so, we will deliver excellent
experiences and create social and economic value.”

Our purpose “to have a positive impact on society and the environment -
building trust beyond water”, drives our long-term ambitions.

10 | Bristol Water plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2018/19

We already work closely in collaboration
with local communities, businesses

and stakeholders. We are well placed to
continue to build on these relationships
tomeet the current and future needs

of our customers, stakeholders and the
environment. The way we do this will
fulfil the social impact of our purpose.

Our objectives

We have set ourselves four strategic
objectives which reflect our corporate
priorities and the expectations of our
customers and stakeholders. Through
our objectives and outcomes we will play
our part in meeting the future challenges
which society and the environment faces.

1. Excel at customer experience
Building trust and achieving customer
excellence needs to continue. This is
akey priority and this is shown by us
being awarded the Service Mark from
the Institute of Customer Services.

2. Develop our people and our business
Our employees and delivery partners
arekey to our strategy -they are the
source of our customer excellence

and innovation. Customer excellence
means we need tobeready for the future
shape of utilities that provide services
that customers want (potentially not

just water), rather than just a product.

3. Being trusted

The subject of our reputation runs
through the entirety of our strategy

and supports all the other strategic
objectives. It is not only about maintaining

legitimacy with customers, consumers,
communities and other stakeholders,
but also about them having trust in

our stewardship of thelong-term
sustainability and resilience of Bristol
Water and our local environment.

4. Leading efficiency

We are committed to transforming our
costbase. As we work towards service
excellence and to deliver our strategy,
we are determined to find efficient
methods so that we never compromise
our commitment to affordable bills.

In thelong-term, our business objectives
and the outcomes we're working to
deliver have toalign,and our strategy
sets out how we plan to achieve this.

Our strategy

In order to deliver our objectives and
realise our vision, we have developed
the following strategic themes:

Providing excellent

customer experiences

We expect to see changesin the way
water services are provided and want to
play aleadingrole to ensure that these
changes happen. Providing customer
excellence will need to transform over
time into customer choice around the
services they receive. In thelong term,

we are ambitious tolead the sector in
customer excellence, particularly as we
expect that market developments will help
to deliver the best value for customers. We
want our bills to be affordable for all of our
customers, both now and in the future.

Investing in innovation and technology
We believe that, as a small agile Water
Only Company, we can apply innovative
ideas and technologies to set ourselves
apart from other businesses. We take

an open approach to innovation, and
support other businesses who help
address our mutual challenges.

Innovation in community excellence
and partnership working is already a
key part of our vision of “trust beyond
water”. We will invest in a wide range
of technologies to continually improve
the efficiency with which we operate
our business and the quality of the
service that we offer to our customers.

BRISTOL
WATI
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Chairman's welcome

Strategic report

Our strategy

«Drinking water safety plans

«Working closely with our neighbours

«Network monitoring and control

«Back up power supplies

«Long-term planning for aresilient network

«Cyber security

«Compliance and Event Risk Index

«Catchment management and
environmental partnerships

Operational

Corporate

«Strong stakeholder partnerships

« Transparency

- Emergency planning and response procedures
» Workforce planning

« Strong staff engagement

« Recognised ISO quality mitigation

« Risks understood, monitored and managed

« Use of external expert advice

Corporate governance

Financial statements

«Partnership working
- scaling of response for
exceptional events

«Customer excellence during
normal operation

«Use of technology to
communicate

«Learning from incidents
and events

«View asset information from
customer perspective, not
as properties supplied

Service

Financial

«Long-term investors
— transparent arrangements
«Leading efficiency
«Maintaining efficient
balance of equity and debt
«Maintaining investment
grade credit rating

12
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Embracing partnerships

and collaboration

We know that as a small business

it is beneficial to develop and build
long term partnerships and we are
going to continue with this strategy to
bring wider benefits to our business
and local communities. We want

to collaborate with other water
companies to optimise the way

we share our water resources, and
we will also work with other utility
companies and councils to reduce
the impact that roadworks have on
traffic disruption in our supply area
and to support vulnerable customers,
as well as forming partnerships

with other local companies and
stakeholders to work together to
reduce wastage of resources. We
work with schools to educate future
consumers and to develop awareness
of our approach. We work with

local and national organisations

who share our social purpose.

We have an established working
relationship with Bristol Wessex Billing
Services Limited (‘'BWBSL"), known

as Pelican, and Wessex Water to
jointly offer support to our vulnerable
customers, both those with financial
and circumstantial vulnerabilities.
This joint working group has several
areas of focus, one being partnership
working (mainly with charities) across
our supply area to reach out to our
most vulnerable customers and raise
awareness of the support available

to those who are most in need.

This group hasrecently allowed us to
build relationships with Western Power
Distribution (‘WPD”) who are now

able to share with us (Where we have
consent) our joint customers who have
registered on WPD's Priority Services
Register. This benefits those customers
as they do not need to sign up to our
additional services separately and

it means we can proactively contact
them to explain the support available.
Thisisin advance of a national data
share with the energy sector which
isdueto golive in April 2020.

Providingresilience

We take along-term view on the
resilience of our business, building on
the benefits we provide as an innovative,
local water company with long-term
investors who help us to be efficient

in how services are financed. We are
applying world class asset management
processes to ensure every pound

spent achieves the greatest benefit.

Like innovation, resilience is a key
theme found throughout all our plans
and does not only apply to the supply
of water, each of our outcomes and
objectives helps to deliver different
elements of resilience across the
whole of our business: operational,
service, financial and corporate.

The previous diagram shows how
resilience is integral to our business.

Bristol Water plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2018/19




Chairman's welcome Strategic report

Our strategy

Our Business Plan

These key themes were reflected in the customer outcomes,
priorities and promises that featured in our PR19 business
plan. More information about our long-term objectives

and approach to providing resilience, and how it links to

the outcomes contained in our PR19 business plan, can

be found in Bristol Water..Clearly and in our PR19 business
plan, both of which are available on our website.

Inclusive
Services

Achieving
Customer

Excellence
Best

Experience

Affordability | apmyon OUY

Corporate governance Financial statements

The below chart summarises our business plan in
terms of our priorities, our promises to customers
and the outcomes we will achieve/are targeting.

Water Quality

Supply
Top Interruptions
Quality
Water
Supplies

for All canAfiora . Plan

Promoting

Trust Beyond -
Water Building
Biodiversity and
Protecting the

Water Efficiency  Bristol Water

and Metering

(.
Uty and Enyiron™®

for All

A\
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Our promises to meet our customer priorities

We will give you a bill which you can
afford

Our plan sees average billsreduce by
45% and, atleast until 2025, stay below
thelevel they were in 2015. Our social
tariffs eliminate water poverty today
and all customers atrisk will get the
support they need.

You get the best possible experience
every time youneed us

We are already the top water company,
and we aim to become the top
performing utility asmeasured by the
UK Customer Satisfaction Index.

Saving water before developing new
supplies

We will reduce leakage by 15% and
help customers to reduce water
consumption by 5%.

Trustbeyond water - helping you
improve your communities and the
local environment

We work in partnership with the local
community to benefit customers and
the environment. If we don't deliver to
the satisfaction of the community and
customers, our innovative “Bristol Water
for All” approach will play animportant
rolein holding us to account.

Keeping top quality water flowing to
your tap

Weachieve thisalready, even during
extreme events. Our planincreases
protection further to over 540,000
people through being able to supply their
water from multipleroutes and targets a
reduction inall supply interruptions of
85%. We expect this to put us with the top
performersintheindustry:.

5%
reductionin
water usage

15%
reduction
inleakage

85%
reduction

in supply
interruptions

Bristol Water plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2018/19 | 15



Chairman's welcome

Strategic report

Our social contract

Our history

When Bristol Water was formed in 1846
under an Act of Parliament, its founders
had a ground-breaking and ambitious
aimtobring fresh, clean drinking water
to the city, essential to the health and
well-being of all communities and not
just for the wealthy few.

In January we launched our Social
Contract, thefirst published by a
water company. This ‘contract’ aims to
continue our social purpose through
how we work, extending beyond the
basic expectations as an essential
public service provider.

The Social Contractis a framework
through which our customers and
stakeholders can hold us to account for
the wider benefits we seek to provide

to our communities. The contract
forms animportant part of the business
plan, Bristol Water For All, which we
submitted to Ofwat in September. We
talked about the plan with thousands of
our customers, asking them what they
wanted. They responded by asking for
usto deliver more than the basic supply
of water, as they believed we have arole
toplay in the communities and society
in which we serve. Accordingly, our
contractreflects our commitment

Corporate governance

Financial statements

tohavinga positive impact for society
in what we do - beyond the delivery of
pure and reliable water supplies.

Our contract aligns the legitimate

role of shareholder returns with the
environmental, social and community
aspects of our purpose. We are building
the initiatives and process so our
approach is fully in place for 1 April
2020. For more details visit
www.bristolwater.co.uk
/about-us/social-contract

16 | Bristol Water plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2018/19
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OURPLAN

Our Business Plan sets out how we plan
tomeet the priorities of our customers,
through promises and outcomes. It's
notjust what we deliver that's important
to our purpose though but also the way
that we deliver, reflecting our role as
part of the local communities we serve.

OUR AMBITION

Our purpose drives our long-term
ambitions for Bristol Water. Thisis
reflected in our vision and mission.

Our vision: 'Trust beyond water
— providing excellent customer
experiences.

It reflects our mission: To be a
company that our communities
trust and are proud of. In doing so,
we will deliver excellent
experiences and create social
and economic value!

Our purpose

OUR FOUNDING PURPOSE
AND HISTORY

We were founded in 1846 with a
strong social purpose to improve
public health and to supply water to
all, not just the wealthy. We stay true
to theseroots today.

To have a positive impact on society and the environment

— building trust beyond water

OUR SOCIAL CONTRACT

Our social contract sets out how we are
accountable for the social promises we
make as we deliver our purpose. Our
social contract will envolve as society
does and we learmn from experience,

so through a set of mechanisms and
Initiatives we build partnerships and
relationships to make it meaningful to
our customers and stakeholders.

OUR PEOPLE, OUR VALUES,
OUR CULTURE

Throughout our history, the people
at Bristol Water have been proud to
go the extra mile to deliver for our
customers, our communities and
for each other. Our purpose is
important to the people who work
at Bristol Water and isreflected in
our values.

ALOCALAPPROACH

We benefit from close connections
to our communities which

means that we can provide
excellent experiences. Working

in partnership with those who
share our purpose build trust in

us asacompany thatis part of the
community.

Bristol Water plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2018/19 | 17
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Operational performance

For 2015 to 2020 we have already shared our performance framework.
The diagram below describes our promises and outcomes, and the following
section gives an overview of our performance against each of these areas.

Highly reliable

« Reliable supply
« Resilient supply
« Sufficient supply

OUTCOMES AIMS

Responsive
to customers

» Affordable bills

« Satisfied customers

- Easy to contact

« Billsare accurate and
easy tounderstand

OUTCOMES AIMS

Excellent quality

» Safedrinking water
» Water is good to drink

Best people,
right culture
«» Safe working practices

« Skilled workforce
» Motivated workforce

Environmentally
sustainable

- Efficient use of resources
by company

- Efficient use of water
by customers

« Sustainable environmental
impact

Sustainable
business

- Efficient expenditure

« Investor confidence

« Fair returns for investors
« Highly reputable

Highly reliable

We must offer a reliable and resilient service to our customers who
depend on us to supply water without restriction or interruption

Reliable supply

Our performance for reliable supply is
assessed on the amount of unplanned
minutes without supply that an average
property experiences,and our capacity to
avoid a service failure of our assets,both
above ground (non-infrastructure assets)
andbelow ground (infrastructure assets).

Thelevel of interruption achieved this
year wasa significant improvement on
last year, although we still failed to meet
our target. The prior year saw a significant
single incident which contributed tothe
majority of the underperformance in the
year. Thisincident alone accounted for

52 minuteslost per customer and was
exceptional, resulting from an extremely
large mainsburstin the Willsbridge area.

Inthe current year, a significant focus
hasbeen placed on improving our
performancein thisarea. Our Network
Operations teams have adopted live
repair techniques wherever possible to
reduceimpact of operationalissues on
our customers.

However, when a significant burst occurs,
our customersmay lose their supply of 1 074
water before we can affect arepair. During 4
burst mains

the year 11 notable jobs, (representing for
only 2% of all repair jobs), resulted in 47% .
in 2018/19

of all thereported interruption minutes.
Thelargest single interruption occurred
atFrenchay where a trunk main burst

resulted in 2.74 unplanned customer 11
minuteslost (representing 19% of the total
annual target).

notable
Thereliability of our network isalso rep airS

reflected in the number of burst mains
we experience, whichin turn canimpact
unplanned customer minuteslost.In
2018/19,the number of burst mains 14 7
reduced compared with the previous year ¢

notwithstanding the higher than average unp]_anned
bursts experienced over thehotand dry .
summer. There were1074burst mains minutes lost

during the year (2017/18:1,222) whichis
below the upper control limit of 1,166. This
maintains our infrastructure reliability
classification at “marginal”and gives us the
opportunity to improve this classification
to“stable” next year if the number of burst
mainsremainsat asimilar level.

2018/19 2018/19 2017/18 Target
Outcome Performance commitment
target actual actual achieved
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Reliable supply

Resilient supply

Sufficient supply

Unplanned customer minutes lost
Minutes per customer

Population at risk from asset failure
due to an extreme event 9,063 9,063 9,063 Yes
Number of people

Security of supply index

Number 100 100 100 Yes

Bristol Water plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2018/19 | 19



Chairman's welcome

Resilient supply

Aresilient supply means that we are able
to cope with extreme or unusual events,
and thisismeasured by the number of
people atrisk from the failure of a single
source above ground asset (in supply
areas of more than 25,000 consumers).
Improvingresilience was one of the

key outputs for the capital investment
programme of AMP5 and continues to
beakey outputin AMP6.

Having delivered the Southern
Resilience Scheme in March 2018, this
reduced the number of customers from
288,589 t0 9,063 atrisk of asset failure.
It wasused toits full extent in the year

» Case study

Strategic report

with water from the River Severn being
transported as far south as Cheddar
through the new infrastructure,
protecting water resources in the
Mendip Reservoirsincaseofadry
winter. The extra pumping and
treatment incurs additional operating
costs, butillustrates the resilience of
supplies that we have despiteadry
winter and then amongst the hottest and
driest summers onrecord.

Sufficient supply

One of our customers most important
requirementsis an unrestricted water
supply. Our performance of thisis
measured by our level of service on

Reducing supply interruptions:
Burst main, Shepton Mallet, 13 February 2019

In the early hours of a February
morning, our operations room noticed
that the water level at a service
reservoir in Shepton Mallet had started
falling. An inspector was dispatched
toinvestigate and discovered a
significant burst, resulting in the

loss of alarge volume of water.

Our customers have told us that a safe
and reliable supply of water is their
most important expectation of Bristol
Water. Whilst the simplest approach to
fixing the main would be to isolate the
main and put customers out of water,
we adopted a different approach.

We set up an overland water pipeline
(as pictured), which allowed the water
to keep flowing to customers’ houses,
whilst work was undertaken to fix

the burst.

We kept customers informed via our
website, social media and we also
visited customers in the area, providing
bottled water to vulnerable customers
in case supply was interrupted. Our
rapid response, alternative approach
and focus on communications ensured
that no customers suffered a loss of
supply throughout this challenging
operational incident.
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the frequency of supply restrictions
during periods of water shortages, and
Ofwat's Security of Supply Index (“SOSI").
SOSIis theratio of water available, plus
regulatory headroom, to the forecasted
dry weather water demand for the
outturn year. If a score of less than 100%
is calculated, this would indicate that
there could have been a higher risk of
water userestrictions for our customers
that year. We are pleased that yet again
for 2018/19 our SOSI value was100%,
indicating sufficient supply with no
restrictions. Ithasbeen 29 years since we
last introduced a hose pipe ban, despite
periods of low rainfall in the summer
and winter of 2018/19.

Incident stats

O

customers
lost supply

4,263

customers
in affected area

1.97

megalitres
of water lost

1,600+
customers
reached via

social media

Excellent

Our water consistently
achieves exceptionally high
compliance against some

of the most rigorous testing
standardsin the world.

Water is good
todrink

Number

Safe drinking water

Our water consistently achieves
exceptionally high compliance
against some of the most rigorous
testing standards in the world.
Although we have not achieved
100% compliance, 99.99%
representsleading performance
within the industry and our
performance this year marks
our highest compliance figure
in5years.

Our aimis to supply our customers
with clear safe water and comply
with stringent regulatory
standards. We do this through

our Drinking Water Safety Plan
approach, which helps usto
reduce and manage any risks to
water quality.

Our Water Quality team collects
samples 365 daysa year

from across our 2,400 square
kilometre supply area. The
sampling scheduleisalignedtoa
sophisticated computer-controlled
programme so that water quality
ischeckedright from source to
customers'taps. Thisis evidenced
by our water quality results that
aremeasured on a calendar year
basisby DWI Standards: Mean
Zonal Compliance (‘MZC"). We
achieved 99.99% compliance in
the current year, an improvement
from 99.93% in the prior year,

with the small shortfall reflective

of 3iron failuresidentified in our
random sampling of customers’
properties due to the deterioration
of castiron mains within the
network.

In addition to sampling at
customer properties for MZC, we
alsoroutinely take samples from
all of our treatment works and
treated water service reservoirs.

Water is good to drink

It is vitally important that our
water not only meets stringent
standardsbutis also good to drink.
We measure our performanceby
the number of negative contacts
about the quality of water our
customer services department
receives.

Our Negative Water Quality
Contacts ‘(NWQC") measure
relates to the number of customer
contacts wereceive each calendar
year about taste, odour and
appearance. It is consistent with
our reporting to the DWIin thatit
excludes contacts associated with
reportable events.

Wereceived 1,934 NWQCs during
2018, which s significantly lower
than our Outcome Delivery
Incentive (‘ODI") target of 2,275.

2018/19 2018/19 2017/18 Target
Performance Commitment
target actual actual achieved
Safe drinking Compliance with legal standards 100% 99.99%
water Percentage

Number of negative customer
contacts regarding water quality 2,275 1934

99.93%

1711 Yes
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Efficient use of resources

by the company

Leakage is the amount of water

that enters our water network but
isnot delivered to customers. In

order to minimise our impact on the
environment and reduce the cost

of our operations, we aim toreduce
leakage levels across our network. This
year we havereduced leakage by 11%
despite experiencing difficult weather
conditionsin the form of both freeze-
thaw’ conditions and a hot, dry summer.

Environmentally
sustainable

We take environmental responsibility
seriously and make efficient use of our
resources to both assist customersin
becoming water efficient and minimise
the environmental impact of our
business operations.

Atthestart of the year, the impact of the
‘Beast from the East’led to high levels
of leakage, and work was focussed on
recovering from the impact of these
weather conditions. However, the long,
hotand dry summer then put stress on
our network, with higher demand from
our customers and ground movement
around pipes, ultimately leading to
higher than normal numbers of burst
mains and leaks.

A strategy was developed to improve
the performance of our leakage
detectionresources and to ensure we
had sufficient operational resources to
fix allidentified or reported leaks. This
strategy has proven successful and the
leakage teams are now detecting twice
the number of leaks they were finding
last year, and significant resourceis
focussed on fixing the leaks.

. 2018/19 2018/19 2017/18 Target
Outcome Performance Commitment .
target actual actual achieved

Efficient use of Actualleakage*

resources by Total leakage in million litres per day | 417 46.6 Yes

the company (Ml/d) as per therevised measure

Efficientuseot Domestic meter penetration

water by - 56% 52.7% No
Percentage

customers

Sustainable L. .

environmental Biodiversity Index 17668 17657 Yes

Index

impact

*full details of our leakage target can be found in our Annual Performance Report.
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» Case study

Weneed totalk about leakage... We hateitand customershateit.. leakage.
Managing leakageisa complicated and challenging business, but its usually the
first thing our customers want to talk about and is always a topic of debate in the
papers.So heres three ways we have been tackling the nasty business of leakage..

Good people

It might sound simple but having theright
peoplein theright placeis the biggest way
we can help tackle leakage. Our people
have an ambition tobe thebest and have
real pridein the patch. Being a small, local
water company most of our employees
(@bout 90% in fact) are customers too. This
means they hate leakage on two fronts.
This year we have more than doubled the
number of our leakage inspectors we have
out and about looking for those tricky to
findleaks. So that’s twice the ambition,
twice the pride, and twice the passion. This
has seen a20% increase in detected leaks...
well done everyone. We've also added
extradata analysis and modelling skills to
the head office team and continued our
collaboration with our suppliers.

Efficient use of water by customers
Tomitigate ourimpact onthe
environment, and to support the
affordability of our service, we encourage
our customerstobe more efficient in the
way they use water. Water metersarean
effective means to support our customers
inmanaging their water consumption,
whilst also ensuring we are billing them
accurately for the water they use. We
measure thisby meter penetration which
isthe percentage of customers who have
awater meter installed at their property:.
Wealso provide water-saving fittingsand
advice onreducing water consumption to
help our customers save water.

We set up adedicated project team
in2018/19to focus on delivering our
metering objectives. Processes have been
revised and training provided to ensure

Pressure control

Did you know that 50% of our leakage
comes from background leaks, those little
dribbles of water from loosefitting joints.
They're hard to detect - really hard. So

to deal with this our strategy is centred

on pressure management. By lowering
the pressure in the network, less water

is forced out of the pipes through small
imperfections and poorly fitting or loose
connections. We have therefore invested
intechnology giving us intelligent control,
so that we can optimally manage the
pressure throughout the day, so thatin
periods of peak demand - e.g. everyone
using their water in the evening - itis
raised so that properties don’t experience
unacceptably low pressure.

we meet our customer expectationsand
thisisreflected inimproved customer
serviceresults. Household meter
penetration for 2018/191s56.0%, up from
52.7% in 2017/18 although below our
ambitious target of 62.5%. Our level of
‘meter optants, whichis when a customer
requests theinstallation of ameter, has
not increased significantly in 2018/19.

We continued our ‘change of occupier’
metering programime, where we install
metersinall properties which are subject
toa transfer of ownership. However, due
toaslowdowninthe housing market, the
number of meter installations hasfallenin
2018/19 versus the prior year.

Sustainable environmental impact
One of the ways in which we monitor
our protection and enhancement of
thenatural environmentis through an

Data, dataand more data

For our leakage control strategiestobe
effective, we need to have a clear picture
of what’s happening throughout our
network. If you can’'t measureit, you can't
improveit. For thisreason we'reinvesting
inmore monitoring tools; 1,000 more
flow loggers to permanently measure
smaller regions of the network, 800 more
pressure loggers to detect abnormalities
and allow us to optimise network
pressure, and additional leak noise and
high frequency pressure sensors. All of
theseinvestments more than double the
number of sensorsin service.

innovative approach that we have called
the Biodiversity Index. This quantifies
the environmental value of our sites

and creates a "direction of travel for the
way wemanage our property, helping
usto protect and enhance the natural
environment by using the Index to
quantify the impact of our actions on the
broader environment. This calculation
and method is a tool we will continue to
develop through the coming years, using
it tomeasure our performance on habitat
protection and enhancement.

Thismeasure hasimproved by 11 points
compared tolast year mainly due to
therestoration of a tributary of the

River Chew. This involved re-wetting
500 metres of watercourse to create a
new habitat for a wide range of wildlife
including the endangered European Eel.

Bristol Water plc Annual Report and Financial Statements2018/19 | 23



Chairman's welcome

» Case study

Corporate governance

Financial statements

Lost section of the River Chew restored for endangered wildlife
Our biodiversity index showed we delivered a net-gain to the
environment during 2018/19. A key contributor to this was
restoring a lost tributary of the River Chew.

Thelost reach of the River Chew from
the Mendip Hills down to the River
Avon was severed by a damin 1956,
when the valley was flooded to form
the Chew Valley Lake reservoir that
supplies Bristol.

Downstream, theriver ecosystem
withered into adry ditch and died. An
important ecological corridor was lost

for aquatic creatures that had been
journeying along the route since the last
ice age.Instead, an occasional spill from
thereservoir was diverted into a concrete
spillway, bypassing the old riverbed and
destroying the central linking piece of the
route’s ecological jigsaw.

We worked alongside Bristol Avon
Rivers Trust, The Wild Trout Trust and
Greenmantle, consultants Ricardo and
contractors RJ Cox, to provide a new
home for wildlife. Theriver’srevival has

included dramatic re-engineering of
reservoir overflows, redirecting water
alongits former path.

Therestored route meanders through
an abandoned 1950s poplar and alder
plantation, once used for matchstick
making. Dense thickets of bramble and
shady canopy have been opened up to
encourage theriver wildlife, bringing
inlight and encouraging aquatic plants,
and the channel has been reshaped
with berms, riffles and pools so
undesirable silt build-up is scoured out
by the natural energy of a faster current,
opening up fish and invertebrate
spawning areas.

The River Chew is now half a kilometre
longer for the first time in more than half
acentury. The scheme has permanently
restored a section of theriver and will
provide anew home for endangered

species, such as eels. Itis the first time the
river has been permanently re-wetted
since the 1950s. Now that historic needs
for the cotton, flour and gunpowder
trades are nolonger needed, it means we
can help do our bit for nature.

The restoration kick starts a new
collaborative Chew Catchment Project
tobe delivered by Bristol Avon Rivers
Trust and local partners, designed to
bring together local community groups
in amutual mission to protect theriver
for years to come.

Nearby residents will also be trained in
ecology so thatlocal people can take
part and explore how theriver develops
as the scheme progresses. The data will
then be used by Bristol Water and the
Environment Agency (“EA”) to measure
the success of the scheme.
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PICTURE: CHEW CATCHMENT PROJECT

EELS

This month will mark our
5.000th eel release

Give way!
Eels coming through

AN

We've made special eel passes
at Blagdon Lake to help them
navigate through beds of bristles

» Case study

O

local school children have
helped us to protect eels

Eelscanliveupto

EARS

meaning the eels we release
this year could be swimming
around until the year 2100/

Spawn to be Wild The European Eel is more

endangered than the Red Panda. And educating the
next generation on ecology and the importance of a
high quality water environment needs to start at an
early age, and be done in a way that is memorable.

School children across Somerset

and Bristol are helping to save the
critically endangered European Eel

by releasing hundreds into local rivers
and lakes after nurturing themin

their classrooms. June 2019 marks the
5,000th eel tobereleased as part of the
Spawn to be Wild scheme, created by
Bristol Water in partnership with Avon
Wildlife Trust and Bristol Avon Rivers
Trust. Baby European eels travel on
oceanic currents from the Sargasso
Seato Europe. Here, the baby eels
transform into elvers, where they have
taken a month long pit-stop in five local
schoolsin a bid to protect them from
environmental threats while they grow.

Bristol Water have also installed special

eel passes at Blagdon Lake to further
protect the elvers, helping to ensure
they can pass through beds of bristles
and travel upstream.

SPAWN
To BE
WILD

/

Eels arécritically
endangered

they haV@ declined by
90% sin@@ihe 1970s

Eels are colour

changing! (kind of)

©

Young eels are transparent,
they then become darker and
then silver as they get older

Facts and figures

Baby eels (known as elvers)
reach our waters each spring.

They have swum 6,000km
to get here...

..and are 2 years old when
they arrive.

26,000 eel barriers across
the UK help them migrate
upstream to find aplacetolive.

They canlive in our streams,
ditches and ponds for up to
40 years.

There hasbeen a 95% decline
in the European eel population
inthelast20 years...

..501,0001ocal schoolchildren
are helping to protect this
endangered species...

.. by releasing 5,000 (and
counting) eels into the wild.
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Responsive to customers

We set out to provide outstanding water services in a sustainable and
affordable way to meet and exceed our customers expectations.

Affordable bills

We have anumber of schemesin place
tomake sure we help customers who
find it hard to pay their water charges.
We monitor the percentage of our
household customers that we classify
as experiencing ‘water poverty’ (those
who spend more than 2% of their net
income on paying their water charges)
and offer advice, assistance schemes
and capped tariffs, known as ‘social
tariffs. We are very pleased to say that
we have exceeded our target in thisarea
by ensuring that none of our customers
arein water poverty.

Satisfied customers

Ofwat uses the Service Incentive
Mechanism (‘SIM”) measure of
customer service to compare the
performance of the water industry in
England and Wales in respect of the
serviceit provides to customers. The
SIM comprises a composite quantitative
measurerelating to the number of calls
received because something has gone
wrong (it captures the number of written
complaints and escalated written
complaints) and a qualitative measure
in the form of a customer satisfaction
survey.

Our SIM scorein 2018/19is84.7.an
increase of 1.3onthe 2017/18 result. In
terms of the qualitativeranking, the
measurement makes up 75% of the

SIM score and based on this, weranked
10th. Ourrelative performance onthe
quantitative element isnot yet known
until other companies publish their
results; these will be available in July 2019.

The quantitative part of the SIM score has
improvedin 2018/19 from 19.82 (out of 25)
in2017/18t0 21.15. This is a combination

of both our written complaintand
unwanted phone contacts performance
improving significantly,even witha

large amount of low pressure complaints
during the summer months. Toachieve
this performance we have created an
action plan which hasintroduced a
number of improvements. For example,
our customer care team introduced in
October 2018 ensures that every task
promised toa customeris carried outas
expected. They alsoresolve all complaints
asquickly as possible and respond to

our instant customer feedback service.
Ensuring our customersreceive excellent
customer serviceis absolutely vital to
us,and we continue to focus on waysto
improve the experience and service we
provide.

Easy to contact

While we understand theimportance

of providing arange of channels

through which customers can contact

us, telephoneisstill the preferred and
primary method, soitisimportant that we
monitor the satisfaction of this service.
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In 2018/19, 91.4% of consumers surveyed
considered that it was easy to contact
us by phone, which was areduction of
around 1.7% compared to 2017/18. This
measure is calculated through eight
surveys of 100 consumers. Customers
expectustohave quick and accurate
information so we are working on
improvements to make information
more easily available to our employees
so they can answer questions
consistently and correctly the first time.

Bills are accurate and easy
tounderstand

Our customers want bills that are
accurate, clearly presented and easy
to understand, we monitor this by
measuring a subset of the number of
‘unwanted’ billing contacts wereceive.

‘Unwanted’is the term used by Ofwat
inits quantitative SIM measures for
calls which the customer would

prefer not to make, in the sense that
they are dissatisfied because they are
experiencing a problem or concern, are
makingarepeat or chase call, or want

84.7

SIM score

91.4%

to complain. . ,
said we're

In 2018/19 we had 1,595 negative

contactsregarding this, which was easy tO

a significant reduction on both our C OntaCt

target and last year.

1,595

negative
contacts

. 2018/19 2018/19 2017/18 Target
Outcome Performance commitment .
target actual actual achieved

Affordablebills in water poverty

Percentage

Satisfied

service
customers

SIM out of 100

Ease of contact
Easy to contact )
Percentagerating from surveys

Rl Number of negative

and easy to billing contracts
understand Number

Percentage of customers

Ofwat measurement of customer

19% 0% 0% Yes
870 847 834 No
>96.5 914 931 No
2,240 1,595 2,300 Yes
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Best people, right culture

Employing the very best people and fostering the right culture
within our businessis key to our continued success.

Safe working practices

Webelieve that we are successful only
when we achieve our goals without
harm to the public, our employees, our
supply chain partners or those affected
by our actions or omissions.

Areductioninaccident numbers
continuestobe the overriding area

of focus to ensure that overall trends
improve and best practice isachieved.
In 2018/19, four accidents were reported
under the RIDDOR Regulations to the
Health and Safety Executive. Despite
ayear onyear increase inreportable
accidents, Bristol Water’s overall
accident numbers during 2018/19,
when compared to 2017/18, have seen a
20% reduction from 25 to 20, and with
planned further improvement of Bristol
Water's Safety culture this reduction will
beongoing.

Skilled workforce

Bristol Water aims to have the "right
people, in theright place, with theright
experience, at theright time". Dedicated
to developing aresource strategy

that fits the needs of the business

and secures our future, the Human
Resources (‘HR”) team are focusing on
time, cost and quality within the hire
process. The team are also working hard
to ensure that Bristol Water is seenasan
‘employer of choice’.

Our appraisal process provides all
employees with an opportunity to agree
meaningful objectives for their work
andreview their performance and talk
about development needs. We also

use this process to identify and plan
training and development needs that
support people to competently deliver
their role and develop new skills. This
caninclude informal opportunities
such as secondments, work shadowing
and coaching, and also more formal
activities such as further education and
training.

The Employee Engagement Survey
conducted this year has given us
valuable insights into how our
employees are feeling and where we
can make improvements. The Company
systematically provides employees with
information on matters of concern to
them, consulting them or their union
representativesregularly, so that their
views can be taken into account when
making decisions that are likely to affect
their interests.

Gender pay gap

Since 2017, all UK organisations with
more than 250 employees must publicly
report on their gender pay gap. The
gender pay gap shows the difference
inthe average hourly pay between

all men and women across the whole
organisation.

The pay gapis presented by amean
pay gap and a median pay gap. The
2018 gender pay gap figures have tobe
published by 31 March 2019 and are the
most up to date figures.

Our mean gender pay gap in 2018 is
20.2%

Our median gender pay gap in 2018 is
23.5%

We also consider bonus asamean and
median gap.

Our mean gender bonus gap in 2018 is
441%

Our median gender bonus gap in 2018
is38.5%

Compared to 2017, our gender pay

gap figures have increased which is
disappointing, however it isimportant
to understand the detail behind these
numbers. We have a higher proportion
of males fulfilling roles which attract
shift premium payments, as well as
more men occupying senior roles
within the organisation. These senior
positions attract higher rates of pay
which contribute to our gender pay gap.
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Outcome

Safe working
practices
Regulations.
Number

Asmentioned above, the gender

pay gap figures do not mean we are

paying our male and female workforce

different amounts for the same work,
butit does highlight that there is more
we need to do toreduce the gap by
increasing the number of women

that are supported to progress in the

organisation. Areas we need to focus

our effortsinclude:

« Increasing the overall number of
women working for Bristol Water as
currently only 29% of the workforce is
female;and

« Attracting more women into the upper
pay quartile roles as currently 87% of
the workforce in this pay bracket is
male.

Steps already being taken to help close

the gender pay gap include:

- Expanding engagement with local
schools to chat to students about
prospective careersin the water
industry;and

- Participatingin events such as ‘women
inwork’and ‘women in engineering’ to
helpraise awareness of the varied and
challengingroles we have available
and we are also pleased to support
some of our colleagues who have
volunteered to be mentors under the
Women in Science & Engineering
scheme.

The fullreport can be found on our
website and includes further detail on
our workforce split, pay distribution
and what else were doing to address
the gap.

Performance commitment

Number of accidents reportable to
Health and Safety Executive under
Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and
Dangerous Occurrences (RIDDOR)

Diversity

Asaninclusive employer, we promote
equality and inclusion throughout

our people policies, procedures

and practices. We are committed to
employment policies which follow best
practice as set out by The Advisory,
Conciliation and Arbitration Service and
are based on equal opportunities for all
employees.

The Company gives full and fair
consideration to applications for
employment from disabled persons,
havingregard to their particular
aptitudes and abilities. Appropriate
arrangements are made for the
continued employment and training,
career development and promotion
of disabled employees. If members of
staff become disabled the Company
continues employment, either in the
same or an alternative position, with
appropriate retraining being given, if
necessary.

We continue with our efforts to ensure
our managers have the tools to succeed,
and are delivering both unconscious
bias training and interview skills
training across the Company. This will
help encourage diversity. We have also
reviewed and updated our policies
relating to flexible working practices,
support for parents and carers and
volunteering to help promote an
inclusive and supportive culture.

2018/19 2018/19 2017/18 Target
target actual actual

achieved

Modern Slavery Act

Bristol Water strongly opposes slavery
and human trafficking, and would

never knowingly conduct business with
suppliers or contractors engaged in such
practices.

We have several key contract partners
who work with us to help us deliver
services for our customers in our
supply chainincluding, amongst others,
Pelican, Kier Services and Wipro. They
and our other suppliers know that we
require our contractors and suppliers

to comply with the Modern Slavery Act
2015 (the “MSA Act"), and that we will not
continue to purchase goods or services
from any supplier that is found tobe
engaging in human trafficking or using
slavelabour.

Bristol Water does, and will continue to,
review its own operations and supply
chainto evaluate human trafficking
and slavery risks. At present thisis
done internally. Bristol Water also
includes compliance with the MSA
Actasarequirement before entering
new agreements with contractors or
suppliers.

BRISTOL
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Social contract - our water stories

The culture and values of the people
who work at Bristol Water form a key
part of our social purpose - to have
apositive impact on society and the
environment - building trust beyond
water. As part of engaging customers
and stakeholders in our social
contract, we have used examples from
throughout our history toillustrate
that strong social purpose to improve
public health and to supply water to
all, not just the wealthy. We stay true to
theseroots today. We have used these
examples as part of the launch of our
Social Contract, including events with
national and local stakeholders, such
as co-producing the “Social Contract

- evolution or revolution” document
with ICS Consulting. The themes from
the past, such as the need not to waste
water, still have resonance today.

Corporate governance

As part of developing our social
contract, we held an event for current
and former staff to come together to
share their stories. We had a copy of the
original 1846 plans for the water supply
to Bristol, alongside stalls covering
major events over the past 173 years,
such as the opening of Chew

Valley Lake.
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Financial statements

Sustainable business

We need to spend customers’ and investors money efficiently
and wisely to retain investor confidence, maintain returns in line
with the expectations of the financial markets, delivering
improved services and keep water bills affordable.

Investor confidence

We use effective financial management
and open communication to maintain
investor confidence in order that we can
secure fundsto invest in the business to
deliver our long-term strategy. We have
maintained better than the minimum
investment graderating required under
our licence. Our rating with Moody’sis
currently Baal.

Fair return to investors

Tobe a sustainable business, it is
important that returns are fair and
sufficient to attract investors to fund the
investment required. Ofwat measure
our financial performance usinga
metric called return onregulated equity
(‘RORE"). Thisratio provides a measure
of the value of companies’ earnings
relative to the equity component of the
regulatory capital base.

Investor Creditrating

The average RORE for 201519 was 5.1%, l(y
lower than the 5.8% assumed in our 0
Final Determination which included
significant challenges. Expenditure
outperformance was offset by outcome
delivery incentive penalties. Further
details are provided in our Annual
Performance Report.

returnon
regulated
equity value

Highly reputable

Both our stakeholder satisfaction and
customer satisfaction hasimproved
compared to 2017/18. The in-depth
interviews we carry out with our
stakeholders as part of this survey
identified that our reputation as a well
performinglocal company that adds
value to the communities we serve
isstrong. The survey recognised the
leadership role we had taken with our
social contract. Further details on our
social contract are provided in the “trust
beyond water” statement in our Annual
Performance Report.

2018/19 2018/19 2017/18 Target
Performance Commitment
target actual actual achieved

confidence Moody'srating Baal Baal Baal
Fair returnto Percentagereturnon
] regulated equity (RORE) 58 51 5.5 No
investors
Percentage
Customer sury'ey . 83 89 87 Yes
Percentagerating in survey
Highly reputable
Stakeholder survey 53 75 75 Yes

Percentage rating in survey
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Promoting the value of water

We continue to take thelead in
promoting the public health benefits of
our water supply. As part of our social
contract we are building on the Refill
campaign with City to Sea and our Water
Bar, which provides free water at events
and festivals around the region whilst
reducing single-use plastics.

Thanks to our partnership with Bristol
City Council, we are launching eight new
outdoor drinking water fountains across
Bristol this summer. Award-winning
campaigners Refill estimates that one
million plastic bottles are bought around
the world every minute... and that figure
is predicted torise by another 20% by
2021. By deploying our army of water
fountains, we will provide an easy way to
refill when on the go, which will not only
help the environment but saves money
compared to buying bottled water.
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Financial Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Turnover
EBITDA
Operating profit

Profit before tax
Profit after tax

Net debt (excluding 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares)
at31March

Regulatory Capital Value (RCV)

Ratio of net debt (excluding 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference
shares) toRCV

Capital investment before grants and contributions

*Results have been restated to reflect the adoption of IFRS15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (‘TFRS15").

Seenote 5 of the Financial Statements.

1216

500
299

16.4
143

3310

530.3

62%

55.2

Financial statements

{0) [
Restated*

£m

530
285

15.3
117

311.0

502.3

62%

56.4
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A sustainable businessis underpinned
by financial performance, which
continues tobe strong despite increased
pressuresresulting from higher levels of
network repairs and greater volumes of
water being treated and transported due
to the summer weather conditions.

Revenuereflectsregulatory increases
in prices of 0.3% plus an inflationary
increase of 3.9% which, together with
higher customer demand from metered
customers in the summer months,
resulted in higher revenue.

Operating expenditure increased in
the year asaresult of work toimprove
leakage in our network. Weather
conditions over the summer months
alsoled toincreased customer demand
whichin turnresulted in higher
chemical and power costs for water
treatment, and higher maintenance
costs for running the treatment works.
Expenditure also included one off costs
related to the preparation of the 2019
business plan submissions and our
response to Ofwat’s initial assessment.

We continue to invest heavily in our
capital programmes. Most significantly
we spent money to improve leakage in
our network through mains and stop tap
replacement, and also increase of our
meter penetration, by providing meters
to customers who chose to switch to
ametered supply and for households
where there was a change of occupier.

Operating profit includes an exceptional
profit of £31m from the sale of alarge
depot in Bristol. Prior year results

Efficient expenditure

included non-recurring exceptional
charge of £47m arising from the Board's
decision to cease construction of
Cheddar 2 Reservoir, offset by profit on
disposal of assets and liabilities related
to non-household retail activities of
£2.2m.

Interest costs on bank borrowings,
including termination of swap
arrangements, increased during the
year, from £2.1mto £2.7m, asaresult of
the Company undertaking an exercise
torestructureits external borrowings.
Included within this,is areductionin
theindexation charge on index linked
debit of £0.9m, due toafallin the RPI
for the period. This year's charges
included one-off charges payable
upon the termination of interest swap
arrangements. Further details of this
exercise are shown below.

Net debt and gearing

The main cash sources we use to
finance our normal operations and
extensive capital programme are the
water bills paid by our customers
and debt from financial markets and
institutions.

We completed a significant refinancing
of debt in June, securing £125m of

new facilities at competitive rates. We
also cancelled a £25m facility which,
following therefinancing, was nolonger
required. The new facilities were used to
repay loans with short maturities which
were replaced with loans of longer
maturities. This has ensured continuity
of funding. In total, £79m of debt was
repaidin the year,and £97m of new debt

was drawn down. Some of the debt that
wasrepaid was hedged by interest rate
swaps. We therefore cancelled these
swaps, whichreleased us from the
obligation to pay the higher fixed rates
associated with the swaps. Our practice
istomaintain a debt portfolio with
mainly long dated maturities reflecting
the long-term nature of the Company’s
assetbase.

Our RCV increased to £5630m (2018:
£502m) reflecting inflation of £12m

and net additions to RCV during the
period of £16m. We actively manage our
gearingratio and maintain a headroom
margin tomeet adverse impacts from
risks and uncertainties. Our gearingis
within the notional gearing range Ofwat
set for PR14 of 62.5%.

Taxation

Under the UK water industry regulatory
framework, reduced tax payments

will ultimately lead to reduced bills for
our customers, and whilst we aim to
minimise our tax liability by recognising
appropriate legislative concessions and
reliefs, we donot aggressively interpret
the legislation or use artificial tax
avoidance schemes.

You canread our full taxation policy
on our website; www.bristolwater.co.uk/
wp-content/uploads/2019/02/Tax-

Strategy-2019 pdf
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The Company’s total tax contribution extends beyond the
corporation tax charge; for the current financial year, Bristol
Water's total tax contribution to the economy was £15m.
The largest contributors are shown in the graph below.

2018/19 total tax contribution

£101k

£2121k

Figure1: Bristol Water's total tax contribution 2018/19

Financial statements

. Insurance premium tax
. Fuel duty
. Climate changelevy
. Businessrates
. Carbonreduction commitment
. Corporation tax
Employer NIC

. Employee NIC

. PAVE
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Capital investment

During the year, weinvested £55.2m
(2017/18: £56.4m) in capital expenditure.
This was based upon our approved
capital investment programme.

Inthe prior year, the capital expenditure
was dominated by the Southern
Resilience Scheme; whilst some level of
finalisation remained ongoing in 2018, the
principal works were completed as at 31
March 2018 and therefore expenditure
hasreduced significantly. Instead, focus
hasbeen on delivering performance
commitmentsinrespect of meteringand
leakage, with a consequential impact
onboth metering capex and stoptap
replacements.

Other key projects included electro-
chlorination work at various treatment
works, which will enable chlorine to

be created on site, rather than having
tobe transported, statutory site

security upgrades, various computer
systems infrastructure projects, mains
replacement schemes and a continuation
of the National Environment Programme
("‘NEP"), including assisting farmers

with catchment management and eel
protection.

Dividends

Itisour practice to pay an annual level
of ordinary dividendsreflecting abase
level dividend, considering the Ofwat
allowances and Company’s funding
requirements, adjusted to reflect our
actual debtlevels, our cost and service
incentive performance where we may

receive additional income or have
penalties and our actual performance.

In 2018/19 the dividend paid totalled
£3.0m (2017/18: £4.0m).

In addition,adividendis paid equal to the
post-tax interest receivable from Bristol
Water Holdings UK Limited, a UK parent
company, in respect of inter-company
loans. Thisisa cash neutral transaction
and in 2018/19 the dividend amounted to
£3.3m (2017/18:£3.3m).

Finally,annual dividends of £1.1m
(2017/18: £11m) continued to be paid on
theirredeemable preference shares.
Theirredeemable preference shares

are shown as debt in the balance sheet,
and the dividend is therefore shownasa
finance costin the income statement.

Pensions

Pension arrangements for employees
were historically provided partly
through our membership in the Water
Companies' Pension Scheme (‘WCPS”),
which provides defined benefitsbased on
final pensionable pay. We have a separate
section within the WCPS for the regulated
water business; the section was closed to
new employees some years ago.

In June, abuy-in of the scheme was
undertaken, asaresult the assets were
replaced with an insurance policy
which matches the pension scheme’s
liabilities. The Company is working with
the pension trustee and also insurers to
affect abuy-out, whereby the insurer will

take on the responsibility for the scheme
liabilities. The completion of this process
will substantially reduce balance sheet
risk whilst providing long term benefit to
members by fully securing their benefits
and entitlements.

Thebuy-out processis currently
experiencing delays. Asaresult of the
High Court Ruling in October 2018 with
regard to Guaranteed Minimum Pension
("GMP”) equalisation. This ruling impacts
the quantification of liabilities, as well
asthebuy-in associated assets. Work
ison-going to ensure an appropriate
methodology, reflective of the ruling,
isusedin the buy-out process. An
estimation associated with the GMP
obligationisincluded in the year end
position.

The actuarial valuation under
International Accounting Standard

19 ('TAS19"), and therefore FRS101 at 31
March 2019, shows a net pension surplus
of £9.5m which hasbeen recognised
inthe financial statements (2017/18:
£33.5m). Asthe scheme hasbeen closed
to future accrual the surplus cannot be
recovered through on-going contribution
payments. The pension assetis shown
net of a 35% income tax rate which would
be applicable if the funds wererepaid to
Bristol Water from the pension scheme.

Further financial information in
relation to defined benefit and defined
contribution pension schemesis
disclosed in note 24 to the financial
statements.
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Long term viability statement

The Directors have considered the
principal risks and uncertainties for
Bristol Water, as set out on pages 46 to
55, and their potential impact on the
Company’s strategic plan. A detailed
assessment of financial viability has
been carried out using arange of
scenarios to stress-test the plan. On the
basis of this assessment, the Directors
have areasonable expectation that the
Company will remain financially and
operationally viable for the ten-year
period ending March 2029.

Time period

Asamonopoly supplier of water
services, our revenues are determined
by the regulator (Ofwat) over each five-
year Asset Management Plan (‘AMP”)
period. The current AMP period (AMP6)
runs to March 2020, providing alarge
degree of certainty over our revenues
for this period. Revenues beyond 2020
are currently undetermined, but will be
set with reference to Ofwat’s statutory
duties. Revenues for AMP7 (relating

to April 2020 to March 2025) willbe
determined in December 2019.

The Board believes that a ten-year
period forms an appropriate timeframe
over which we should assess the
Company’slong-term viability. The
decision isbased on the following
factors:

» Weare along-termbusiness, operating
under arolling 25-year licence to
provide vital services to currentand
future customers, and decisions we
make have alongtermimpact on
them. Therefore it seems appropriate
to consider alonger time period than
other companies.

Our business planning process for
PR19 has considered a period of 10
years (ending March 2030) when
assessing the viability and sensitivity
of the AMP7 planning period, and
whilst revenues beyond the current
AMP period are less certain, given

the protections that exist under the
regulatory model we don't believe this
should necessarily be a constraint.

Assessment process

The Company's prospects are regularly
assessed through strategic and financial
planning processes. The strategic plan
isaligned to the emerging expectations
from the pricereview process, which
the Board is closely involved with viaa
specific sub-committee.

Annual operating budgets are set

in the context of the strategic plan
and compared to theregulatory
allowances. Performance against the
budgetis monitored and reviewed
by the Executive Management Team

each month and discussed at all Board
meetings. A detailed quarterly review
processisundertaken, involving the
CEO and CFO in conjunction with
directorate management teams, to
consider the impact and required
actions of any emergingissues.
Mitigating actions are taken as required
throughout the year, and updated
forecasts are fed directly back into the
strategic plan.

Bristol Water currently holds a Baal
negative outlook investment grade
credit rating with Moody’s. The
Company'sinvestment grade strategy
underpins the current financing
structure and supports the ability to
raise new debt or equity in the future.
The strategic risks which could affect
the Company’s prospects have been
used to determine our key strategic
planningrisks, these are summarised
below (corporaterisks are explained in
more detail in the next section).

Duetothelongtermimpact of decisions
made, the Company does not finance

its investment programme entirely
through current customer bills.
Therefore the Company requires access
to debt markets to secure funding that
balances the long-term nature of the
business with the need to maintain
efficient costs.
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Strategic risk Corporaterisks Planningrisks

Environmental pressures
onresilience

Rising customer
expectations

Challenges to cost and
delivery from innovation
and markets

Vulnerability from
alack of connection
to adisrupted society

Challenges of the
future workforce

Challenges to
community wellbeing

Pressures on affordability

Changes in political
landscape

Health, safety and
environment

Businessresilience

Customer satisfaction
Operational resilience

Water quality

Regulatory and legal
environment

Business planning

Cyber security and
data protection

Financial resilience

Customer satisfaction

Organisational change

Health, safety and
environment
Businessresilience

Financial resilience

Financial resilience

Substantial fines could arise from environmental failures such
as over abstraction or pollution.

Increased costs could be incurred due to a significant event
disrupting the business and increased cost of power (one of our
major costs) may result in further cost for the business.

Poor operational performance could impact on our reputation
and legitimacy with customers and the regulator, along with
other stakeholders.

Reputational damage through health and safety or
environmental incidents, or social engagement could impact
on customer satisfaction.

Performance against the Company’s performance commitments
inthe current AMP (AMP6) can have a financial impact in the next
AMP (AMP?7) through regulatory rewards and penalties,as well as
immediate financial impact ifissues need to be addressed. From
AMP7 onwards, in-period Outcome Delivery Incentives (‘ODIS")
will mean the financialimpact is felt much sooner.

Unknown costs of operating in new regulatory environments
and with new technology may put additional pressure on the
finances of the business.

Changesin markets, including water resources and
development services, may result in revenue variation,
alongside short-term demand fluctuations.

Substantial fines could arise from data protection breaches.

Interest rates and input price pressures will influence the
Company'’s prospects when they diverge from the assumptions
assumed in the regulatory determination of revenues.

Unknown costs of providing customers with the changing
services they need and want could increase the pressure on
the finances of the business.

Uncertain needs of the future workforce may lead to higher
operating costs.

Changes to water resources, may result in upward cost
pressure, resulting in additional capital expenditure and/or
operating expenditure to meet these changing needs.

Changes to customers' financial security may resultin
increased bad debt charge, or further reliance on social tariffs.

Changes to future government could resultin re-
nationalisation of the water industry. This could have a
significantimpact on finances of the business, through changes
to the way in which performance isregulated.

The impact of Brexit could be upward cost pressure, which
could put increased strain on the finances of the business.

Note: Since the pension scheme buy in arrangement with Aviva, we have not considered this as a specific risk.
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Long term viability statement

The strategic plan has been stress-tested targets will be in line with current
against theserisks to check viability. The expectations;

results of the stress testing, including a « Inflation will be in line with forecasts
combination of individual scenarios, are published by the Office for Budget
reviewed, discussed and challenged by Responsibility in March 2019;

the Board. The availability of mitigating « Continued access to markets to secure
actionsis considered and an action plan finance, at rates appropriate to our
isdevelopedif they are not deemed current credit rating; and

sufficient. « Nochangesin capital structure other
thanborrowing/refinancing to fund
planned capital expenditure.

10-year period to assess the potential
impact of the Company’s principal risks
and uncertainties and the effectiveness
of available mitigating actions. The
Scenarios that have been assessed
include those detailed opposite, along
with a combination of several scenarios,
and are sufficient individually and in
combination to demonstrate the full
range of risks highlighted above:

Link to principal risks sy e

Economic outlook

The strategic plan utilises inflation forecasts
from the Office for Budget Responsibility
and an implied future LIBOR curve based
on current market expectations. Both high
and low inflation and interest scenarios
have been modelled, along with a scenario
where a spike in inflation occurs in between

Pressures on affordability High or low inflation both impact
long-term viability in different ways.
High inflation increases the value

of our indexed-linked debt - putting
pressure on gearing and other
financial ratios whereas low inflation
canreduce profitability due to

lower revenue.

Challenges to cost and delivery from
innovation and markets.

The key assumptions within the
Company’s base financial forecasts

include:

« Expenditure will not exceed planning
assumptions used to calculate
revenue controls;

« Rewardsand penalties for
performance against regulatory

Assessment of viability

The current strategic plan represents
the Directors best estimate of the future
prospects of the business. To make the
assessment of viability, the strategic
plan hasbeen stress tested over the

bills being set and contractual inflation /
debt indexation being applied. This impacts
revenues, expenditure and interest costs.

Fines
Substantial fines could arise due tolegal

Rising customer expectations. The financialimpact of a fine

and any remedial action will put

Challenges to cost and delivery from

breaches (including data breaches under ) ;
innovation and markets.

the General Data Protection Regulations
(“‘GDPR")) or severe health & safety
incidents. The impact of a substantial fine
(3% of turnover) has been considered in
conjunction with an increase in expenditure
toaddress the underlyingissues. Thisis an
example of an exceptional event that could
affect costs and cash flows.

pressure onratios and require
additional funding through debt or
equity.

Poor performance against
performance commitments

The strategic plan assumes a level of
rewards & penalties based on current
expectations, impacting both revenue
and RCV up to 2020 and revenues after
2020. This scenario considered a 3% ODI
penalty, as well as the impact of the £2.5m
cap on ODI adjustmentsboth in isolation
and in conjunction with a continued
underperformance in future AMPs.

Environmental pressures on
resilience.

Revenue penalties have an impact of
financial viability in the near future
and put direct pressure on financial
ratios. RCV penalties are spread over
alonger period of time, reducing

the immediate impact on financial
viability but delaying the benefit to
customers.

Rising customer expectations.
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Severe
weather
patterns
can affect
profitability
in various
ways

BRISTOL
WATER

In addition, a number of combined
scenarios were included in the stress
testing including 10% totex increase, 1.5%
ODI penalty and 1% turnover fine;and
specifically with and without mitigating
actions that are part of our plan such as
higher costs associated with Gloucester
and Sharpness Canal. Our scenarios and
mitigating actions also considered the
impact of uncertainty of the outcome

of the PR19 Determination, considering
ascenario with alower cost of debt

than we proposed. One scenario also
considered theimpact of timing of
revenues between AMP6 and AMP7,
reflecting the further testing we carried
outas part of our April 2019 revised
business plan.

Mitigating actions available to the
Company includerestricting dividend
payments, financial restructuring,

and timing of discretionary operating
expenditure and/or pro-active capital
expenditure.

More extreme scenarios suggest that
additional shareholder support may
berequired during AMP7. This support
would take the form of dividend
restriction and financial restructuring
within the group to maintain sufficient
headroom above minimum investment
gradelevels.

The Company and shareholders are
committed to maintaining a credit
rating thatis above the minimum
investment grade level. The Company’s
current credit rating from Moody’s

Corporate governance

Financial statements

isBaal negative outlook.In such an
extreme scenario, afallinratingto the
minimum investment grade level would
tighten the financial constraints that

the businessis managed under, whilst
continuing to meetregulatory licence
obligations and covenants.

The scenarios during AMP7 suggest that
gearing will remain below the 70% point
at which financial outperformanceis
shared with customers. The exception
tothisis an extreme scenario with

an unmitigated £8m p.a. operating
expenditure increase and £50m capital
expenditure event. Asthe combined
and mitigated scenario did not contain
this outcome, the impact of gearing
above 70% was not considered in depth.
Our own voluntary sharing mechanism
includes a mitigation on timing of
sharinglinked to financial ratios, so does
not impact financial viability testing.

The only group company relevant

to the viability assessment of Bristol
Water is Pelican, due to the retail service
functionsit provides to the Company,
which are inherently considered within
the scenarios set out above.
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Review and assurance

Theresults of the stress testing for the
ten-year period to March 2029 have
beenreviewed and challenged by

the Board, including combinations of
theindividual scenarios listed above.
Following thisreview the mitigating
actions, along with the protections that
exist under theregulatory regime, are
deemed to be sufficient to maintain
financial viability over the assessment
period. We therefore consider we are
well placed to meet the challenges
that our customers and regulators will
expectofus.

Our external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, set

out the extent of their review of our
viability statement in their audit report
onpagel57.

Viability statement

Based on this assessment, the Directors
confirm they have areasonable
expectation that the Company willbe
able to continue in operation and meet
itsliabilities as they fall due over the ten-
year period ending March 2029.

Outlook

The main drivers of 2019/20 profitability

are expected to be:

« Treated water revenues - these are
expected to increase from 2018/19
due toinflation (3.2%), the wholesale
K-factor (0.2%) and correcting for some
of the underrecovery of revenuesin
prior years;

« Operating expenditure - thisis

expected toincrease, with the

main driver being an investment
inbusiness improvement activity
and a transformation project as
management implements efficiencies
across thebusiness;

Inflation or deflation - operating
costs, capital expenditure and the
Company'sindex-linked debt are
subject to inflation based on RPI at
various pointsin the year. Potential
adverseimpacts of high inflation or
deflation are mitigated by the linking
of the majority of revenues through
the previous year's November RPI;
Energy costs -energy costs are
significant for the Company, and
consumption will fluctuate with
demand and depending on which
sourcing strategy is being utilised.
Management expects costs to remain
volatile in the future and to mitigate
the effect of adverse movements the
Company'’s policy is to monitor prices
and enter into appropriate forward
contractsto “lockin” future supply

prices. The Company has fully hedged

its exposure to energy commodity
costs for 2019/20, and has delivered
anumber of initiatives designed to
improve energy efficiency;
Socio-economic conditions -
significant changesin the socio-
economic conditions of customers
may impact upon recovery of billed
amounts;

Weather - severe weather patterns
can affect the profitability in various
different ways. Measured income can
be affected by changes in volume

consumption, chemical and power
costs canbe affected by raw water
quality and availability of different
water sources;and

« Network maintenance costs canbe
affected by mainsburst activity:.

Going concern

The Directors also considered it
appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on the going concernbasis,
as explained in note 31to the financial
statements.
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Risk Management Framework

Risk management is the co-ordinated
activities that support the control and
direction of the organisation with regard
torisk. Thisis a continuous, developing,
co-ordinated process with the aim

of embedding risk management into

all business processes, from strategy
development through to delivery of
objectives.

Werecognise theimportance and
benefits of timely identification,
assessment and management of risks
that may impact our ability to achieve
our strategic objectives. Bristol Water
uses a series of complementary risk
assessment processes and associated
tools applicable to specific areas of
operation for detailed risk capture,
assessment and management. These
detailed risk processes (including

our Operational Risk Register) inform
our Corporate Risk Register, which is
maintained and regularly updated to
managerisk at a strategic level. These
can be considered the constituent
elements of our Risk Management
Framework, which is designed to ensure
that information about risk is adequately
reported and used as a basis for decision
making and accountability at all
relevant organisational levels.

Our framework is based on four core

principles which establish the culture

and tone that guide risk management

decisions. Risk managementis:

« everyone'sresponsibility;

» about decision-making;

» embedded within existing
managementroutines; and

» ingrainedinthe organisation’s culture.

The framework includes the following

hierarchy of responsibilities:

« Board of Directors and Audit and Risk
Assurance Committee ‘(ARAC") have
overall governance responsibility
for overseeing management's
implementation of the risk

Corporate governance

Financial statements

management policy. This includes
setting and reviewing the corporate
risk appetite.

Internal audit isresponsible for
reviewing andreporting on the
effectiveness of the Company’s
controls to minimise principal risks.
The financial planning & analysis
team areresponsible for reviewing
management's practices to manage
risk and reporting to the ARAC.
Senior management is responsible
for the implementation of the risk
management framework to all
applicable activities and reporting to
the ARAC.

Business units are responsible for
the application of arisk management
framework to identify, monitor and
reportrisk.

Risk Owners are responsible for
theidentification and day-to-day
management and oversight of risks
intheir assigned area. Identified
asset ownersare accountable for
monitoring, reporting and rectifying

any unacceptablerisks associated with

the assets they areresponsible for.
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Principal risks

The principal risks are described on
the following pages together with the
mitigating actions and the perceived
change in theserisks since the previous
financial year.

Risks have been selected for inclusion
onaresidual risk basis, considering
their potential impact, likelihood, the
effectiveness of existing controls, and
the Company’srisk appetite.

Therisk appetite hasbeen set by the
Board who recognise that Bristol Water
operates within a complex regulatory
environment and it isnot viable to
fully mitigate all therisksit faces.In
general, there is alower risk appetite to
activities that are key to delivering core
operational services, such as health

Figure 2: Ourrisk
management
framework

(

I/

and safety, providing safe drinking
water, managing the environment

and pollution, and the prevention

of catastrophic events. Bristol Water
seekstomitigate theserisks as fully as
possible. A higher risk appetite hasbeen
adopted for a small number of risks
relating to people and training, where
the Company is willing to operate at
higher risklevels and seeks innovative
ways of attracting and retaining a
motivated workforce.

Internal audit & FP&A

Senior management

Business functions

N

Thisisasnapshot of the Company’s
currentrisk profile rather than an
exhaustivelist of all therisks the
Company faces. New risks may arise,
existingrisks may recede, or the
rankings of these risks may change as
circumstances evolve.

Allrisksdisclosed inlast year's Annual
Report, are explicitly referenced in the
principalrisks that are disclosed this
year.
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Operations

Risk description and potential impact

The nature of Bristol Water's business means that its
employees, contractors and the public are potentially
exposed to alarge range of health and safety risks.
Theserisks are increased due to large number of
contractorsbeing engaged to carry out work on behalf
of the organisation.

A severe health and safety accident is most likely
torelate to a high risk activity such as excavation,
working with electricity, gases, chemicals, or in
confined spaces or at height. In addition, failure
tomaintain the operational estate at a level that
complies with relevant regulations may resultin an
incident; errors may be made by operational teams
which might impact on asset serviceability and lead
tounsafe working (e.g. over-dosing of chemicals); or
staff may work in some geographical areas where
criminal activity is higher than average and staff
could be attacked or abused.

Anincident could also cause significant
environmental damage, for example an
environmental incident during engineering projects,
or accidental release of stored chemicals or fuels.
More frequent minor events can also occur, such

as discolouration of local watercourse caused by
dewatering of excavation.

If therisk of a health and safety exposure was left
unmitigated, this could lead to injury or death. In the
event of a serious accident, Bristol Water could be
prosecuted and fined, which would have a significant
impact onits reputation, as well as an impact on its
employees and customers.

An environmental incident could cause pollution;
environmental damage; or impact on protected
species and environments. Major or minor events
could lead to complaintsregistered to EA, costs to the
business and potential prosecution.

Corporate governance

Financial statements

Mitigating actions

Systems and policies are in place to maintain an
awareness of requirements detailed in HSG65. An
independent review of health and safety culture was
carried outin April 2017 and a series of initiatives and
campaigns are in place to drive improvement, these
include Director safety inspections, regular toolbox
talks for operational staff to raise health and safety
awareness, company-wide launch of the ‘Take 5 for
Safety’ initiative, launch of new site inspection system
incorporating corrective action plans, improved
hazard reporting systems and timely response

and correction of reported hazards, and an estates
department maintenance programme.

Thereis animproved lone worker system in place and
staff are instructed not to put themselves in danger.
Throughout Bristol Water there is a health and safety
induction programme, on-going training (competent
operator framework), monitoring, risk identification
and assessment, and regular health and safety
committee meetings.

We have begun to gather requirements for anew
health and safety management system,and a
procedural review is now underway with a focus on
operational safety leadership and accountability.

Bristol Water's Environment Manager acts as a key
point of liaison for schemes and works with contractor
environmental teams to deliver projects within
environmental constraints. Site waste management
plans are in place for key projects producing large
amounts of waste, structured environmental
surveys and habitat surveys are performed including
protected species and heritage or archaeology. There
is on-going work within AMP6 to address existing
risks of fuel and chemical storage including routine
maintenance on existing chemical management
systems, controls and procedures on chemical
management, and bunding of site equipment.

Internally thereis oversight from the Executive, and
continuing focus at Director and Board level. A new
Head of Health and Safety role was created and filled
during 2017/18, reporting directly to the CEO. Health
and safety systems have been tested by external audit
inthelast 3 years,and by Price Review Assurance
Programmes.
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Health, safety and environment (continued)

Operations

Movement in residual risk exposure: No movement in residual risk exposure; this is an on-going risk which is
mitigated by a number of existing and new controls. Overall risk scores reflect concerns over potential incident
significance, probability and sufficiency of mitigation measures in place. Control and supporting procedural
documentation gaps are evident in the health and safety management system and these controls are not being
robustly embedded in everyday practice. Gaps in suitable and sufficient risk assessments are evident and
procedural control and governance of activities in some areas is poor.

Looking ahead, we would expect the residual risk exposure to decrease as health and safety controls and

mitigations are embedded into the Company.

Link to strategy: Impact on ODIs: Biodiversity index and Discharge compliance.

Executive Responsibility: Chief Executive Officer, Asset Management Director

Customer satisfaction

Operations

Risk description and potential impact

High quality and consistent customer service is one
of Bristol Water's top priorities and we work hard

to prevent issues arising and provide high quality,
reliable supplies for our customers.

Thereisarisk that a failure at any point across

the business could lead to Bristol Water failing to
adequately meet our customers needs. For example,
network maintenance or unplanned operational
incidents (e.g. discolorations, supply interruptions, or
high irons) could lead to increased supply events. This
wouldresult in increased customer contacts and the
potential for dissatisfied customers.

Low quality delivery to our customers and poor
customer service performance would lead to a low
position in the service incentive mechanism (“SIM”)
measure used by Ofwat to assess our customer
service performance against other companies in the
industry. This could have a negative impact on our
customer relationships, reputational damage and
potential ODI penalties.

Mitigating actions

We have a Customer Challenge Group, called the Bristol
Water Challenge Panel which holds us to account on our
customer engagement processes. Asan independent
group they arerepresentative of our customer base and
challenge us to ensure we arerepresenting our customer
priorities in the business planning process.

Thereisastrong focus across the business on
improving customer service. Thisis directed by our
company wide customer experience strategy which
details the vision and steps required to retain our
position of number one water company in England as
measured by the Institute of Customer Services (‘ICS”)
and our aim to become the number one utility.

Our current action plan has numerous initiatives which
are broken down to deliver improvement against each
factor that impacts our SIM performance (e.g. callbacks,
additional resource, new systems (live chat, real time
feedback), customer training,and the complaints action
group). This action plan is overseen by amonthly cross
Company group chaired by our Chief Customer Officer.
Thereisan on-going training programme for all custormer
facing staff and frequent reviews of performance
(including a shadow survey in non-SIM months).

Movement in residual risk exposure: No movement in residual risk exposure. There is a strong focus on
customer service across the organisation and mitigating actions and controls in place. This will continue to
beakey focus for the coming year and looking ahead to the 2020-2025 Business Plan as part of the Customer

Measure of Experience (‘CMEX") framework.

Looking ahead wed expect the residual risk exposure to reduce in line with the strong focus the business

places on customer service and satisfaction.

Link to strategy: Impact on ODIs: Customer satisfaction from surveys; overall SIM score.

Executive responsibility: Chief Executive Officer
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Operational resilience Water quality

Risk description and potential impact

Mitigating actions

Operational resilienceisarisk category in whichrisks  Our leakage action plan has been implemented

Risk description and potential impact

Excellent water quality is fundamental to providing
thelevel of service our customers expect from us.
Thereisarisk that Bristol Water fails tomeet the
high water quality standards required, and becomes
unable to provide safe, clean water. Harmful or
unapproved substances could be introduced to our
water sources e.g.increased levels of metaldehyde
coming into the Gloucester and Sharpness Canal
from the lower reaches of the River Severn due to
use of metaldehyde as a pesticide. If thisrisk was not
actively managed, to ensure metaldehyde is dealt
with adequately, then the quality of our water supply
could be negatively impacted.

If we were unable to supply some of our customers
with safe, clean drinking water, this would have
anegative impact on our customers, which may
adversely impact our reputation as aresult. Bristol
Water could be prosecuted or fined for not meeting
water quality standards, and ODIs could be missed.
If the incident was severe enough, this could have
aresultingimpact on the Company’s financial
sustainability.

Mitigating actions

Bristol Water continues to investin new treatment
processes, renovation of water mains and
partnerships with catchment stakeholders. We work
with the Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWTI"), EA,
water companies, manufacturers and suppliers to
continually review and improve our processes. Water
issampled daily at treatment works, service reservoirs
and consumers' taps and rigorous internal water
quality reportingisin place. Externally our water
quality is tested by DWI, Department of Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs (‘Defra’), and the EA.

We prepare Drinking Water Safety Plans to ensure that
risks to water supply are understood, monitored and
mitigated.

Movement in residual risk exposure: On-going focus on quality standards mean there is no change torisk to

Bristol Water.

Link to strategy: Impact on ODIs: Mean Zonal Compliance.

Executive responsibility: Director of Strategy and Regulation

Operations Operations
relating to day-to-day operational performance are to target the excess leakage levels within the year,
considered. These arerisks that may occur in the and put Bristol Water in a good position for future
course of ordinary business, for example missing years. This includes implementation of an improved
leakage targets, metering targets, a strategic mains leakage strategy; improved assessment of network
burst leading to interruptions to customer supply, or to ensureresources are sent to the right locations;
supply chain management, as well as a number of enhanced leakage management information reports;
lower scoringrisks. deployment of additional staff in key areas; improved

processes and meter installation methods, and

Bristol Water may fail to meet regulatory targets service level agreements; and strategic targeting of
relating to operational performance leading to mains for replacement.
penalties (i.e. ODIs), for example failure tomeet the
required AMPG6 level of leakage, or meter penetration. ~ We proactively manage our supply chain and closely
Thereisalso therisk of an operationally significant monitor key contractors and their performance.
burst on strategic main, which would impact
customer delivery and could cause a failure tomeet
our obligations.
Movement in residual risk exposure: No movement in residual risk exposure. A significant number of controls
are in place across the business. Our water resources position hasimproved, we have arevised drought plan,
and the Southern Resilience Scheme is now operational.
Link to strategy: Impact on ODIs: Customer satisfaction from surveys; Overall SIM score; Leakage; Unplanned
customer minutes lost per property per year.
Executive responsibility: Asset Management Director
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Chairman's welcome

Strategic report

Business Resilience

Operations

Risk description and potential impact

Businessresilience considers the risk that Bristol
Water's operations are significantly impacted by

an external event or hazard situation. This could

be an event leading to prolonged unavailability of
significant numbers of staff or specialists caused

by, for example a flu pandemic; impediments from
external organisations such as long termloss of
power supplies to major treatments works affecting
output from the works; prolonged denial of access
to, or total loss of, critical offices like head office being
unusable because of fire. There is also arisk of the
failure of critical infrastructure such as dams, service
reservoirs, large mains, pumping station or the loss
of amajor water source, which could not be repaired
within a short period.

Were any of theserisks to materialise, they could have
a significant impact on the organisation. A pandemic
could lead to prolonged staff shortages which would
impact our ability to maintain our operations across
the business. Services and materials provided by
other organisations could be compromised.

Loss of a major treatment works, or head office could
cause disruption tonormal operations, potential to
cause serious operational incidents, regulatory non-
compliances, customer dissatisfaction, additional
expense, reputational damage, and loss of services
including major communications andIT systems.
Critical infrastructure failure could lead to failure to
supply some of our customers with safe drinking water.

Corporate governance

Financial statements

Mitigating actions

Business continuity plans are in place which focus
on dealing with areduction of staff due to pandemic
illness, with critical activities and staff identified.
Links established with agencies (including civil
contingency community) that provide information
and advice to assist in day-to-day and long-term
planning. Continuity plans provide some mitigation
for loss of power (e.g. emergency power generation,
rezoning, emergency communications systems), and
buildings are maintained to appropriate standard

of fire protection and security. Disaster recovery
procedures are in place with alternative sites
identified for critical staff, and processes exist for
systems and backup data.

Fire alarms and emergency procedures regularly
tested and resilience built into the server room. There
are systems in place for rapid response to incidents
and breaches, and contingency plans (residual
storage) in place if a breach were to occur.

Movement in residual risk exposure: No movement in residual risk exposure. This remains a significant on-
going consideration for the Company but there are controls and mitigations in place and there hasbeen no

material change to therisk level in the year.

Looking ahead, a Strategic Asset Management Plan will be implemented to enhance asset resilience.

Link to strategy: Impact on ODIs: Customer satisfaction from surveys; Overall SIM score; Quality of raw water

sources.

Executive responsibility: Company Secretary, Asset Management Director
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Cyber security and data protection

Corporate

Risk description and potential impact

Therisk of customer or employee data breaches, with
resulting loss of significant amounts of personal data.
Theloss of head office data and corporate network
could be theresult of cyber attack. Thereis also the
threat of data corruption for critical datasets, loss of
systems and prolonged recovery times. Our network
and control systems could be infiltrated, directly
affecting water supply to customers.

Failing to protect personal data could resultina
penalty fine of up to £500k under the current Data
Protection Act1998.

From May 2018, under the new General Data
Protection Regulation and Network and Information
Systems Directive, the penalty fine could be up to 4%
of worldwide turnover or €20m, whichever is the
higher. The impact on our business and operations,
and thereputational cost with customer satisfaction
and loss of stakeholder confidence may also be
significant and this could be reflected in the SIM
SUrvey score.

Mitigating actions

Projects have been delivered in both 2017/18 and

2018/19 in order to mitigate the risks associated with

GDPR compliance. Actions include:

« Company-wide training has been delivered to all
employees and the Board;

» Commercial contracts with our high risk suppliers
havebeen updated and signed;

» The Privacy Notice has been updated;

« Renal Care Patients have been contacted for
Consent;

» Subject Access Processes have been implemented;

» DataDiscovery hasbeen completed;

» High Risk Processes have been mapped and GDPR
risk identified;

» Cyber security and the Cyber Essentials+
accreditation;

« Dataminimisation of structured and unstructured
data;

» Processimprovements around data management
techniques;

« Embed behavioural changes; and

« Bristol Water'srisk based approach has been
assured externally by PA Consulting.

Movement in residual risk exposure: No movement in residual risk exposure.

Link to strategy: Impact on ODIs: Asset reliability - non-infrastructure; Customer satisfaction from surveys.

Executive responsibility: Chief Customer Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
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Strategic report

Financial resilience

Corporate governance

Financial statements

Organisational change

Corporate

Risk description and potential impact

Financialresilienceis arisk category in which risks
relating to fraud, interest rates, volatile material

costs, shareholder value generation, inflation, capital
programme cost control, bank funding, and debt
financing are considered, as well as a number of lower
scoringrisks. Of these, therisk of adverse financial
market movements and the potential for rising costs
have been assessed as having the highest residual risk
exposure. Costrisk, delivery risk and cost of capital
risk also need to be closely managed, as thereisan
increased focus on efficiencies and ambitious cost
allowance are forecast in our PR19 Business Plan.

Volatility in the financial markets could have a
significantimpact on our organisation. In particular
achangeininflation rates could impact the business
due to our index linked debt and revenues; and
movements in financial markets could impact interest
rates and hence our cost of borrowing.

In addition, instability in the supply markets could
drive up prices and lead to supply issues. Energy costs,
chemical prices and carbon taxes could increase
materially and impact our financial performance and
sustainability.

The impact of Brexit is unknown and could provide
upward cost pressure, putting a strain on the
Company'’s finances.

Movement in residual risk exposure: No change in residual risk exposure. There is an on-going risk of sustained

Mitigating actions

Inflation rates and market movements are closely
monitored as part of on-going financial oversight of
the Company. Financial position and performance
is continually scrutinised across the business by
executive management and the Board. We adopt a
rigorous budgeting process and conduct detailed
quarterly reviews to highlight any corrective actions
that may become necessary throughout the year.

Quarterly financial forecast review meetings

are attended by the CEO and CFO, theresults are
communicated to the Board, and performance
against the updated forecasts is closely monitored
and reported.

Bristol Water has an increased focus on alternative
suppliers, and optimisation work and innovation is
on-going. For example, power monitors have been
installed to characterise energy usage and provide
enhanced management data. Our energy policy and
purchasing strategy has been finalised, and contracts
havebeen established with chemical suppliers
offering longer term security.

The impact of Brexit has been considered by the
Board, and the price review has considered the
impact of higher operating costs in stress-testing
scenarios.

higher prices and uncertainty in the financial markets, but the close management oversight of financial
performance means that corrective actions would be put in place, were this risk to materialise.

Link to strategy:: Impact on ODIs: Credit rating; Post-tax return on capital.

Executive responsibility: Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer

Corporate

Risk description and potential impact

Dueto a culture of change, people may become
unsettled and therefore there isarisk of losing
experienced people. The need to manage the
aspirations of individuals and groups provides
challenges, requiring strong leadership. Thereisa
risk of single points of failure and lack of knowledge
transfer, coupled with the same key individuals
required to deliver different projects. Thisrisk is
increased by a shifting age profile, with the risk of
multiple retirementsin the next5-10 year period. We
are also competing for skilled staff with the largest
new nuclear development within Europe, situated 20
miles from our Head Office.

The impact of failing to retain key staff would be
reduced resilience, increased vulnerability during
incidents, potential inability to resource work, or
poor quality work and errors. This could impact staff
morale, lead to increased stress, and could prompt
further resignations or under-performance.

The gender pay gap at Bristol Water may resultin
failure to attract talented people to join the business.

Mitigating actions

“Bristol Water..Clearly” sets out our long-term
ambitions and strategic direction, which indicates that
there will be on-going change within the business.
Culturally people are becoming more resilient to
change and viewing it more positively. In delivering
the transformation programme outlined in our PR19
Business Plan we will learn from the past in terms of
delivering good communication.

Thereis a talent management programme in place,
and increased focus on career planning, especially for
high potential individuals. Internal recruitment and
headhunting gives options tofill gaps as they arise
and succession planningis in place.

Actions from the results of our employee survey are
being implemented, and include an increased focus
on training and development. Our resourcing strategy
and learning and development strategies are in place
to ensure we deliver against the people plan. Audits
are undertaken to ensure internal quality standards
are delivered.

Bristol Water is working to close the gender pay

gap through engagement with local schools, and
participating in events such as “Women in Work” and
‘“Women in Engineering”.

Movement in residual risk exposure: Residual risk exposure remains unchanged. Employees are settlingin
to the new structure and the talent management programme is having a positive impact and creating career
paths for high potential, high retention risk individuals. However, there is a high degree of change on-going
across the business, with continuing risk that operations are significantly affected. The transformation
programme will have a financial impact (cost) for the Company; to build the infrastructure to support the new
operating model; before delivering financial benefit in the longer term.

Link to strategy: Impact on ODIs: Staff satisfaction survey.

Executive responsibility: HR Director
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Business planning

Risk description and potential impact

Bristol Water updates its future plans and targets,
adjusting them for new information and in the light of
experience periodically. Bristol Water is developing
our Business Plan for the next 2020-25 period. Thereis
arisk that Bristol Water develops a business plan that
has insufficient evidence to support the assumptions
made, or does not have customer and stakeholder
support for what it commits to delivering. This could
resultin a plan that was not deliverable, or may result
inregulatory scrutiny and amendments. It may also
not meet stakeholder and customer expectations.

This would adversely affect the financial
performance of Bristol Water. The cost of delivering
our planis forecast in the cost, financing and service
target assumptions made when controls are set by
Ofwat on Bristol Water's regulated revenues. A poor
quality business plan may imply expenditure levels
insufficient to deliver service commitments that
prove to be inefficient or unsustainable. This would
have aresulting impact on Bristol Water's reputation
and on the future of the business.

Corporate governance

Financial statements

Mitigating actions

The success of business planningrelies on the
performance of Bristol Water as a whole. Bristol Water
is committed to business planning based on what
customers and stakeholders have told us they want, at
a price that they consider to be affordable. Investment
continues to be required to deliver stretching targets
for service levels and excellent customer services. A
high quality business plan, which includes appropriate
revenue and efficiency targets, will, after scrutiny by
Ofwat, allow Bristol Water to finance the investment
and activities to enable delivery of the services that
customers and stakeholders want us to deliver.

Our business planning process relies on the on-going
governance of performance by the business. The
2020-2025 business plan has additional governance
controlsin place. Internal programme governance
processes include Working Groups, an Executive
Steering Group, PR19 Board Sub-committee and Board
ownership of the decisions surrounding the Business
Plan. Extensive customer research and engagement
on the plan has assisted its development, supported
by challenge from the independent Bristol Water
Challenge Panel.

External assurance includes use of third party
experts inboth key elements of the business planning
process and independent review for the Board in
preparing the plan with Pricewaterhouse Coopers
LLP.

Along-term ambition document Bristol Water..Clearly
and draft business plans have been published for
consultation, setting out the choices that customers
and stakeholders face.

Regulatory and legal environment

Risk description and potential impact

Bristol Water operatesin a complex and evolving
regulatory and legislative environment. Bristol Water
has to anticipate and adapt its operations to changes
inpolicy that affect the water industry and business
organisations in general. Changes to the regulatory
environment and the licence within which Bristol
Water operates can present risks and opportunities to
the financial position of Bristol Water.

Over thelong-term, regulatory change can include
risks and opportunities relating to reform of
abstraction licencing and water trading and the
potential for residential customers to have a choice of
retailer. Our regulators are accountable to Parliament
for operatingin line with the policy framework

that the Government sets.In September 2017 Defra
published a Strategic Priorities and Objectives
Statement which described their priorities for Ofwat
and the water industry in pursuit of an industry that
works for everyone.

Regulatory change can also arise from the need to
invest to deliver water quality and environmental
improvements. Such changes are considered
independently from the economic regulation of the
water industry.

Mitigating actions

Bristol Water engages with its stakeholders, industry
bodies, other participants in the water sector and
regulators in order to help shape the future strategy for
the water industry. We emphasise the wider benefit to
sector of the diversity of companies operatingin the
industry, reflecting the local community needs that
companies such as Bristol Water must meet.

In our long-term ambition document Bristol Water...
Clearly we set our “trust beyond water” vision for
Bristol Water and the future of the sector. We believe
that companies that want to be around for the
decades to come must ensure that society and the
environment are at the heart of everything they do.
We set out how our plans and actions anticipate and
help to shape changes in the regulatory environment.

This ambition has been communicated widely at
industry platforms, through dialogue with customer
and stakeholder forums and through trade media.
Bristol Water has adapted successfully to previous
industry changes, such as the introduction of
businessretail competition and we welcome further
development of the water sector.

Movement in residual risk exposure: The long-term risk exposure and potential opportunities are stable,
reflecting aregulatory environment designed to encourage long-term investment in water services and the
environment. There hasbeen arecent increase in political interest in the water sector which echoes the topics

considered in our mitigating actions.

Link to strategy: Bristol Water..Clearly sets out how the strategy for Bristol Water is reflected in the long-term

ambition context for our business planning process.

Executive responsibility: Director of Strategy and Regulation, Company Secretary

Movement in residual risk exposure: In December 2017 Ofwat published its Final methodology. Significant Mel Karam
uncertainty has been removed from the PR19 programme as the final methodology was well signalled by Chief Executive Officer
the draft in July 2017. This allowed Bristol Water to submit a Business Plan in September 2018, which Ofwat 5 July 2019

recognised had many high quality elements, including the extensive customer and stakeholder engagement
that we identified as an important factor that mitigates this risk. Following Ofwat’s initial assessment of plans,
we submitted a revised plan and provided additional information in April 2019. The price review remains
more challenging than previous reviews. Effective assurance processes are in place which, together with
communication activities, ensures that we are well placed to assess Ofwat’s Draft Determination in July 2019
and ensure that the outcome is in customer and stakeholder long-term interests.

Link to strategy: Bristol Water..Clearly sets out how the strategy for Bristol Water is reflected in the long-term
ambition context for our business planning process.

Executive responsibility: Chief Executive Office, Director of Strategy and Regulation
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Chairman's welcome Strategic report Corporate governanle:]

Chairmans
introduction

Keith Ludeman

Dear Shareholder

[ am pleased to introduce our
Corporate Governance report

for 2019 on behalf of the Board of
Directors of Bristol Water plc. The
pages which follow provide details
on the activities and governance
processes of the Board and its
Committees.

During the year, the Board has spent
a significant proportion of its time

on operational delivery, strategic
development and in particular theb
year business plan for the Ofwat Price
Review 2020-2025. The scope of the
Board's activities, discussions and
actions are detailed on page 70.
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My role, along with the Board, is to
ensure that Bristol Water operates to
the highest standards with a robust
governance framework in order

to deliver its objectives and meet
stakeholder obligations. Last year, a
board effectiveness review was carried
out by the consultancy Indepen.

The objective of the review was to
explore the understanding of the

role of the Board; the legislative and
regulatory requirements; the behaviours
that characterise an effective Board;

and how the Board might improve

its performance and impact. The
evaluation concluded that the Board and
Committees are effective and that the
Directors demonstrate commitment and
time to their role. The review included
some recommendations to improve
board effectiveness further and these

recommendations are being acted upon.

The Board sets the long term strategy,
which it monitors by both challenging
and supporting the executive
directors in its implementation.

As Chairman, I continue to focus

on maintaining a Board whichis
diverse, having a broad range of skills,
backgrounds and perspectives. We
have seen a number of changes to

the Board during the year. In June

2018, Tony Hemus and Tracey Wood,
both INEDs, resigned from the Board.
Following those departures we have
appointed three new INEDs to the Board
in order to replenish and rebalance the
composition of the Board and to ensure
the Board’s continued effectiveness.
Paul Francis joined us in June 2018,

a Chartered Accountant from the rail

and transport sector. Jeremy Bending
was appointed in October 2018, he

has a wealth of asset management
expertise. In November 2018 we
welcomed Jim McAuliffe whoisalsoa
Chartered Accountant with strong local
connections. Mick Axtell, our Chief
Financial Officer, left in July 2018 and
was replaced by Laura Flowerdew in
October 2018. We have been developing
and strengthening the relationships
within the Board to enhance the

Board effectiveness for the future.

Keith Ludeman
Chairman
5 July 2019
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Strategic report

Board of Directors

Keith Ludeman
Non-Executive Chairman,
Chair of Nomination
Committee

Mr Ludeman was appointed to the
Board in July 2012. He is the Non-
Executive Chairman of the London
Transport Museum, the Chairman of
HSI Limited and ten other subsidiary
companies within the high speed rail
infrastructure group and Eversholt Rail
Group.Heis also an advisor to Lloyds
Development Capital. Formerly he
was Chief Executive Officer of Go-
Ahead Group plc and has forty years’
experience in the transport industry.

Mel Karam

Chief Executive
Officer, Member of the
Safety Committee

Mr Karam joined the Company in April
2017 as Chief Executive Officer. Prior to
joining the Company, he was Partner
and Global Head of Asset Management
at KPMG International leading their
work across 25 countries. Mr Karam
has over 25 years of experience in
operations asset management and
capital delivery in the power and
utility sector with senior positions in
British Gas, National Grid, Thames and
Southern Water. He is a non-executive
director of MOSL, representing Licenced
Water Undertaker members and
anon-executive director of Bristol
Wessex Billing Services Limited.

Laura Flowerdew
Chief Financial
Officer

Ms Flowerdew was appointed to

the Board on1 October 2018. Ms
Flowerdew is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants and joined the
Company from Bristol Energy where
she held the role of Finance Director.
Ms Flowerdew has also held senior
roles at Anglo American Plc, De Beers
Group and Tribal Group Plc. Prior to
that, she was a director at Deloitte in
their Energy and Ultilities business.

Tim Tutton

Senior Independent Non-
Executive, Member of the
ARAC,Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Mr Tutton was appointed to the Board
in January 2015. He is an economic
consultant specialising in economic
regulation, especially in the energy
sector. He is currently a member of
various Competition and Enforcement
Panels at the Financial Conduct
Authority and the Payment Services
Regulator. His previous roles have
included UK Director of Regulation

at National Grid, Director of UK Utility
Regulation at PricewaterhouseCoopers
and a Panel Member at the
Competition and Markets Authority.

Corporate governance

Financial statements

Paul Francis

Independent Non-
Executive, Chair of ARAC,
Member of Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Mr Francisjoined the Board on 25 June
2018.He is a Chartered Accountant

with 30 years experience in the rail and
transport sector. Until his retirement in
2017 he was CEO of Porterbrook Leasing.

Jeremy Bending
Independent Non-
Executive, Chair of the
Safety Committee, Member
of the ARAC, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees

Mr Bending joined the Board on

25 October 2018. Mr Bending has over
40 years experience in the power

and utilities sector and was previously
Chief Operating Officer of National
Grid Gas Distribution and Director of
Network Strategy at National Grid. He
isa Chartered Engineer and a member
of the Institute of Asset Management.
Mr Bending is a non-executive director
of Phoenix Natural Gas Limited, Glover
Gas and Power BV and a director

of Armco Solutions Limited.
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Jim McAuliffe
Independent Non-
Executive, Chair of

[ Remuneration Committee,
Member of the ARAC, and
Nomination Committees

Mr McAuliffe was appointed to the Board
on 29 November 2018. Mr McAuliffeis a
Chartered Accountant and held the role
of Finance Director at Bristol Airport from
2002 until July 2018.He isalso a Trustee
of the Ashley Clinton Barker Mills

Trust, which isa Trust Fund set up to
support the Arnolfini Gallery and, more
widely, contemporary art in Bristol. Mr
McAuliffe is also a member of the Board
of Lighthouse Relief, a Swedish NGO
which provides emergency relief and
long-term support to refugees in Greece.

Hajime Ichishi
Non-Executive, Member of
the ARAC, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Mr Ichishi was appointed to the Board
of Bristol Water plc on 10 May 2012. He
isa Manager at the Itochu Corporation
of Japan, responsible for development
of [tochu’s global water and environment
sector project. He has held various
senior positions within the Itochu
group. He is also a non-executive
director of Canaragua Concesiones,
S.A. and Bristol Water Group Limited,
Bristol Water Core Holdings Limited,
Bristol Water Holdings Limited, and
Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited.

Paul Malan

Non-Executive, Member of
the ARAC, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Mr Malan is the Senior Partner of iCON
Infrastructure LLP, an independent
infrastructure investment firm which
he founded in 2011. Mr Malan has over
20 years of experience in infrastructure
advisory and investment at iCON
Infrastructure LLP, Deutsche Bank AG
and Macquarie Bank Limited. He was
appointed to the Board on 7 July 2016.
Mr Malan is a non-executive director

of iCON 11l Water Investments Limited,
iCON 1 Bristol Limited, iCON 111 Water
Investments Limited, Bristol Water Group
Limited, Bristol Water Core Holdings
Limited, Bristol Water Holdings Limited,
and Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited.

Indradoot Dhar
Non-Executive,
Member of ARAC

Mr Dhar is amember of the iCON
Infrastructure LLP team where he
focuses on asset oversight and risk
management. Prior to joining iCON
Infrastructure, he worked at Cambridge
Associates, a global investment
consultancy firm, and Deutsche Bank
AG. He was appointed to the Board on
8 May 2018. Mr Dhar is a non-executive
director of Bristol Water Group Limited,
Bristol Water Core Holdings Limited,
Bristol Water Holdings Limited, and
Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited.
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Ownership and
corporate structure

iCON Infrastructure
PartnersIIL, LP

iCON Infrastructure
Partners III (Bristol), LP

Itochu

iCON III Water
Investments Limited

I-Environment
Investments Limited

iCON III Bristol Limited

Bristol Water Group Limited

Bristol Water Holdings
UK Limited

Bristol Wessex Billing
Water 2 Business Limited Bristol Water Holdings services Limited
Limited trading as “Pelican
Business Services”
100%

Bristol Water Core

Holdings Limited

Searchlight Collections Limited

Bristol Water plc
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Company

iCON Infrastructure PartnersIII, LP

iCONIII Bristol Limited

Bristol Water Group Limited
iCONIII Bristol -50%

iCONIITI Water - 30%
I'Environment Investments - 20%

Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited
Wholly owned by Bristol Water Group

Bristol Water Holdings Limited
Wholly owned by Bristol Water
Holdings UK Limited

Bristol Water Core Holdings Limited
Wholly owned by Bristol Water
Holdings Limited

Bristol Water plc
Wholly owned by Bristol Water Core
Holdings Limited

Bristol Wessex Billing Services Limited
50% owned by Bristol Water Holdings
Limited

Searchlight Collections Limited
Wholly owned by Bristol Wessex Billing
Services Limited

Water 2 Business Limited
30% owned by Bristol Water Holdings
Limited

Company Details

English Limited Partnership, domiciled
in Guernsey

Incorporated in Guernsey
Taxresidentin the UK

Incorporated in England & Wales

Holding company

Incorporated in England & Wales

Holding company
Incorporated in England & Wales

Holding company
Incorporated in England & Wales

Holding company
Incorporated in England & Wales

Holds Water Undertaker Licence under
Water Industry Act 1991

Incorporated in England & Wales

Joint venture billing company

Incorporated in England & Wales

Debt Collection Company
Incorporated in England & Wales

Non Household Retailer

Holds water supply licence

Directors

No Designated Members
Managing General Partner -iCON
Infrastructure Management Il Limited

Paul Malan
Richard Stevens

Hajime Ichishi
Paul Malan
Indradoot Dhar

Hajime Ichishi
Paul Malan
Indradoot Dhar

Hajime Ichishi
Paul Malan
Indradoot Dhar

Hajime Ichishi
Paul Malan
Indradoot Dhar

Details of Directors on pages 60 to 61

Colin Skellet
Andrew Pymer
Ben Newby
Mel Karam

Alex Chapman
Amy Badman

Sarah Johnson
Alan Morgan
Mark Watts
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Ownership and corporate structure

The Board of Bristol Water plc (‘Bristol
Water”) seek to uphold the highest
standards of transparency and
opennessin performingits functions
and dealing with all of our stakeholders.
Akey aspect of thisrelates to the
ownership of Bristol Water plc.

At 31 March 2019, 80% of Bristol

Water was ultimately owned by

two investment funds (the “ICON
Funds”) which are affiliated with iCON
Infrastructure LLP ("iCON”), with the
remaining 20% of Bristol Water owned
by [FEnvironment Investments Limited,
a UK subsidiary of Iltochu Corporation
(‘Ttochu”). The iCON Funds interest are
split as follows: iCON Infrastructure
PartnersIIl, L.P.(iICON III") own 50% and
iCON Infrastructure PartnersIII (Bristol),
L.P.(“iCON Bristol”) owns 30%.

TheiCON Funds have owned their
interestsin Bristol Water since 2016.
They are constituted as English limited
partnerships, which are domiciled in
Guernsey. The iCON Funds employ
typical partnership structures used

for institutional investment, pursuant

Beneficial Ownership by Investor Type

Asset
Manager

Corporate 12%

Pension
21%

Itochu 20%

to which partners themselves (rather
than the partnership) are taxable on
their share of any profits or gains of
the partnership as and when these
arise. The ultimate investorsin the
iCON Funds are pension funds, asset
managers and insurance companies
from countries around the world
including the UK, Germany, France,
Canada, the United States and Japan.
Further information concerningiCON,
whichis an experienced investor in the
UK water sector, can be found at
www.iconinfrastructure.com.

Itochu has owned its indirect 20%
shareholdingin Bristol Water since
2012.Ttochuis a diversified group based
in Japan whichislisted on the Tokyo
stock exchange. Further information
concerning [tochu can be obtained at
www.itochu.co.jp/en.

The graphs below show the beneficial
ownership of Bristol Water by both
investor type and country:

Sovereign
Public Wealth
Pension Fund 5%

37%

UK17%

Canada 20%

The ultimate holding company of
Bristol Water is Bristol Water Group
Limited (‘Bristol Water Group”), which
isaUKincorporated and UK tax
resident company. The iCON Fundsand
Itochu are indirect investors in Bristol
Water Group. TheiCON Funds hold

their interests in Bristol Water Group
through holding companies which

were incorporated in Guernsey but are
taxresidentin the UK, namely iCON IIT
Bristol Limited in the case of iCON Il and
iCON I Water Investments Limited in
the case of iCON Bristol. Itochu owns its
shareholding through a UK incorporated
and UK tax resident holding company,
which isal00% owned subsidiary.

Bristol Water Group owns 100% of Bristol
Water indirectly through three further
wholly-owned, UK incorporated and

UK taxresident holding companies,
namely Bristol Water Holdings UK
Limited (Bristol Water Holdings UK),
Bristol Water Holdings Limited (Bristol
Water Holdings) and Bristol Water Core
Holdings Limited (Bristol Water Core
Holdings). Bristol Water Holdings, the

Beneficial Ownership by Country

Other 4%

USA10%

EU (excl.
UK) 27%

Japan 22%
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intermediate holding company,also
ownsa30% shareholdingin Water 2
Business Limited and a 50% shareholding
in Bristol Wessex Billing Services Limited,
alongside its100% indirect shareholding
in Bristol Water.

Financing and dividend policy of the
group with its ultimate shareholders:
During the year, Bristol Water paid
dividends of £6.3m (2017/18:£73m) toits
immediate holding company Bristol Water
CoreHoldings. Ofthisdividend, £3.3m
wasreturned to Bristol Water inrespect
ofinterest owingonintragroup debt
facilities (see below under “Group financing
arrangements’)and the £3.0mbalance
wastore-pay inpart,short termfunding
provided by theiCON Fundsand Itochu
in2016,asdescribed below.No dividends
were paid during the year (2017/18: £nil)

by Bristol Water Group to the holding
companies of Itochu or the iCON Funds.

Therearenolongterm shareholderloans
provided by the ultimate owners of Bristol
Water, theiCON Fundsand Itochu, to Bristol
Water Group or any ofits subsidiaries
(including Bristol Water).

InDecember 2016, theiCON Fundsand
Itochu contributed £9.0m additional
fundstothegroup. These fundswere
provided onashortterm,non-interest
bearingbasis to Bristol Water Group by
the holding companies of theiCON Funds
and Itochu, pro-rata to their ownership
interestsin Bristol Water Group. They were
on-lent by Bristol Water Group to Bristol
Water Holdings UK to fund paymentsto
Agbar,aprevious partowner of Bristol
Water Holdings UK, on 15 December 2016
inconnection with the ending of an O&M
arrangement between Agbar and Bristol
Water Holdings UK.In 2018,a payment of
£34mwasmade (2017/18:£nil) inrespect
ofthis payable thus £5.6mremained
outstandingat 31 March 2019.

Asat 31 March 2019, Bristol Water'snet
debt, excluding preference shares, was
£331.0mcorrespondingtoaratio of 62.0%
toitsregulated assetbase, whichisinclose
proximity to the 62.5% notional capital

structure that Ofwat assumed for water
companiesin AMP6. Thenetdebt of the
consolidated group comprising Bristol
Water Group anditssubsidiariesisalso
consistent with Ofwat'sassumption,

after adjusting for the £5.6mof short term
receivablesand accounting for mark-to-
market adjustmentsfor debtarisingatthe
time of Bristol Water Group's acquisition of
itsinterestsin the group.

Group financing arrangements
Therearetwo upstreamloans from Bristol
Water toitsimmediate 100% shareholder
Bristol Water Holdings:a £470m loan
earninginterest of 6.042%and a£21.5m
loan earning interest of 5.550% (together
the “Upstream Loans”). Bristol Water
received interest payments of £3.3mnet

of taxinrespect of the Upstream Loans
from Bristol Water Holdings UK inthe year
ended 31March 2019(2017/18:£3.3m). These
interest paymentsare currently funded by
dividendsreceived from Bristol Water. The
Upstream Loans have been outstanding
since 2003and 2005, respectively,and are
entirely internal to the consolidated group
headed by Bristol Water Group.

Governance

iCON has confirmed that theiCON
Fundsareawareand supportive of
Ofwat's Principles of "Board leadership,
transparency and governance' published
in April 2014 which set out Ofwat's
expectationsfor holding companies of
regulated water companies to show their
adherencetothe highest standards of
corporate governance.

Therearealist of mattersthatarereserved
for the Board of Bristol Water plc which
indicates where shareholder approval
may berequired. Thisisavailable on our
website'. Where shareholder approval
isrequired, thisis obtained prior to
approval by the Bristol Water Board. iCON
has confirmed onbehalf of iCON I that,
other thaniCONIIT'slimited partners
andiCONIII'sdirect and indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries, thereareno other
beneficiaries of theregulated Company
within theiCON group structure.iCON
has,onbehalf of iCONIIIinits capacity as

managing general partner of iCONIIL given
anundertaking compliant with Condition
P of the Company'slicence whenit took
control of the Company (the “Condition P
Undertaking”).

iCON has confirmed,onbehalf of iCONIIIin

its capacity asmanaging general partner of

iCONIIL, asfollows:

« Ithasbeenbriefed on Bristol Water's
dutiesunder the Water Industry Act1991
and thelicence;

« Jtisaware of and will comply with the
terms of the Condition P Undertaking,
including:

- itsobligationto provideall such
informationasmay benecessary to
enable Bristol Water; to comply with
therequirements of the conditions of
itsappointmentasa water undertaker;
and

- itwillrefrainfromany action which
would or may cause Bristol Water to
breachany of its obligations under
the Water Industry Act1991 or the
conditions of itsappointmentasa
water undertaker;

« [twill provide Bristol Water with the
informationitneedstoassureitself
that Bristol Waterisnot atrisk fromthe
activities of the wider Bristol Water
group;

- ItwilldisclosetoBristol Water details of
any issueidentified by itsdirectorsin
respect of the Bristol Water group that
might materially impact upon Bristol
Water so that Bristol Water can takeall
appropriate steps;

- Itwillfacilitate the ability of Bristol Water
tomeet therequirements of itsown code
of Corporate Governance andanew
Corporate Governance Statement for
thenextfinancial year whichhasbeen
approved by the Board;and

« ItwillsupportBristol Water's ability
tomake sstrategic and sustainable
decisionsinthelongterminterestsof the
Company.

www.bristolwater.co.uk/wp-content/
uploads/2018/09/2018-Apr-23-Matters-
Reserved-for-the-Board-of-Bristol-Water-plc-
Final pdf
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Corporate governance report

Principles of corporate governance
Bristol Water has developed its own
corporate governance code (‘the BW
Code”) which combines the UK 2016
corporate governance code (‘the

Code”) and the “Ofwat principles.” The
‘Ofwat principles”are set outin the
Ofwat document “Board leadership,
transparency and governance”
published in January 2014 and enforce
the UK corporate governance code.
InMay 2019 the Board approved the
adoption of anew corporate governance
statement which incorporates by
reference the new UK corporate
governance code 2018 and the new
Ofwat Principles of board leadership,
transparency and governance. This new
corporate governance statement will
apply with effect from1 April 2019.

Our new corporate governance
statement is available on our website;
and our viability statement can be found
onpage38to43.

Bristol Water is a private company
withlisted debt including Cumulative
Irredeemable Preference Shares but no
listed ordinary shares as categorised
asa‘standard listing’ on the main

market of the London Stock Exchange,
therefore is not under an obligation to
report compliance with the 2016 or 2018
corporate governance code, however,
the conditions of our Water Licence
require ustoreportasif wehavea
‘premium listing’ The Boardis pleased to
confirm that Bristol Water complied with
the provisions set out in the BW Code for
the period under review.

Role of the Board

The Board is committed torun the
Company in the best long-term interests
of our customers, shareholders

and wider stakeholders. The Board
and its committees have overall
responsibility for the management

of the Company and itsregulated
business. They set the Company’s
values and standards, make strategic
decisions, and provide leadership for
the long term success of the Company.
Webelieve this can only be achieved
if the activities of the Company are
supported by appropriate governance
processes, within a framework of
effective controls, enabling risks tobe
managed and the necessary financial
and human resources are in place for
the Company to meet its objectives.
The Board monitors the Company’s
compliance with its statutory and
regulatory obligations toits customers,
shareholders, regulators, other
stakeholders and the environment.

The Boardisresponsible to all of

the Company’s stakeholders for the
approval and delivery of the strategic
objectives of Bristol Water, by ensuring
that all financial, technical and human
resources are in place and also lead
the Company within an effective
framework of monitoring and
managingrisk.

The Board executes overall control of
the Company’s affairs by reference to
the schedule of mattersreserved for its
decision. These include the approval
of strategy, financial statements, major
capital expenditure, authority levels

for expenditure, treasury,and risk
management policies.

The Board delegates certainroles and
responsibilities to the Committees,
detailed below, in the Committee
reports. These Committees assist the
Board by focussing on their specific
areas and making recommendations
to the Board in line with their Terms of
Reference.

The Board has a schedule of matters
reserved specifically for the Board. This

isavailable on the Bristol Water website.

The Board delegates day-to-day and
business management control to the
Executive Directorsin accordance with
an approved scheme of delegation.
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Board and Board committees

The Chairman

The Chairman, whoisaNED,
independent upon appointment,
isresponsible for the leadership of

the Board and its effectiveness. The
Chairman sets the agenda for the
Board meetings, in consultation with
management, providing adequate time
for each agendaitem. He isresponsible
for the culture of the boardroom

which is one of openness, debate and
constructive challenge, encouraging the
effective contribution of non-executive
directors, particularly, the three new
directors who joined the Board during
the year.

Non-Executive Directors (“NED”)

The NEDs monitor the performance

of the Executive Directors and senior

management, and form the majority

of the members of three key Board

committees, namely:

« Audit and Risk Assurance Committee
(‘ARAC") whichreviews the integrity
of financial information, financial
controls and risk management;

« Remuneration Committee which
reviews Company remuneration
policy and Executive remuneration
packages; and

« Nomination Committee which
oversees the Board composition and
succession planning

Ofwat Principles of board leadership

transparency and governance require

that:

« independent directors (including
anindependent chairman) are

thelargest single group on the
Board, compared with (i) executive
directors,and (ii) NEDs who are not
independent;

« thenumber of shareholders’
representatives on the board is
not greater than the number of
independent directors (excluding an
independent chairman); and

« therearefewer executives than INEDs
(including an independent chairman)
on the Board.

A copy of the letters of appointment for
Non-Executive Directors are available to
shareholders by writing to the Company
Secretary.
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Board meetings and attendance
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The following table sets out the attendance of Directors at scheduled board meetings during the financial year:

Vember of the Boara Meetings Chairman (@NED) two Executive The Bgarq consi.ders the Chairmantobe
attended appointment period Directorsand seven other NEDs. the principal point of reference to whom
Five of the NEDs (including the concerns of whatever nature may
KLudeman, Chairman 11 11 100% Chairman) are, in the opinion of the be conveyed. Mr Tutton is the Senior
Board, independent. None of the NEDs Independent Director on the Board and
M Karam, Chief Executive Officer 1 1 100% have served for more than nine years inthe event that an individual does
onthe Board. not wish toraise a concern with the
L Flowerdew, Chief Financial Officer 5 5 100% Chairman, such concerns may beraised
(appointed 10ct 2018) Thereis clear segregation between the with Mr Tutton.
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
P Malan,NED 10 1 90.9% Officer to ensure appropriate Board
balance and the Board has approved a
HIchishi, NED 11 11 100% specific statement on responsibilities for
eachrole.
T Tutton, INED 10 1 90.9%
Independence of NEDs
IDhar, NED (appointed 8 May 2018) 10 10 100% The Board considers each of its INEDs
tobeindependentin character and
P Francis, INED (appointed 25 June 2018) 7 8 875% judgement and there isnorelationship
or circumstance that islikely to affect (or
JBending, INED (appointed 25 Oct 2018) 5) 5) 100% could appear to affect) the judgement of [
such NEDs.
JMcAuliffe, INED (appointed 28 Nov 2018) 4 4 100%
The Chairman, was considered °
M Axtell, Chief Financial Officer 5 4 50% independent at the time of his original
(resigned 13 July 2018) appointment in July 2012. However, in
accordance with the Code, the on-going
T Hemus, INED (resigned 19 June 2018) 2 2 100% test of independence is not applicable in
relation to the Chairman.
T Wood, INED (resigned 19 June 2018) 2 2 100%

Board Composition
At 30 May 2019 the Board of Bristol
Water (the “Board”) comprised the

The INEDs constructively challenge
and help develop proposals on strategy

carry significant weight in the Board’s
decision making.

and bringindependent judgement,
knowledge and experience to the

IDhar and P Francis were appointed to the board on 8 May 2018 and 25 June 2018 respectively. J Bending was appointed
on 25 October 2018 and J McAuliffe was appointed on 28 November 2018.

Board's deliberations. The independent
L Flowerdew was appointed as Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director of the Company from 1 October 2018; details Directors are of sufficient calibre and
of her background and experience are set out on page 60. number to ensure that their views -—
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Board activities

The below details some of the matters considered during the year by the Board:

Topic Discussion

Safety

Customers

People

Operating Performance

Regulatory

Finance

Governance & Risk

« Health and Safety Strategy
«KPI'sinrelation to safety
» Accidents, hazards and near misses

- Creation of a separate Safety board sub-committee

« Customer Service SIM performance

Corporate governance

Financial statements

« Discussion with the Chair of the Customer Challenge Panel

- Customer strategy

» Well being of employees

- Considered theresults of the employee engagement survey

» Gender Pay Gap

« Senior management team selection and development
» Approval of annual employee pay awards

- Continual review of performance to AMP6 performance commitments and ODIs
- Review of general operating performance

« Responses to incidents

« Sub-contractor performance
- Leakage performance

- Metering targets

» Review and approval of Business Plan for AMP7 2020-2025

« Strategy for the period
» Water Resource Management Plan

- Long term strategy document ‘Bristol Water Clearly’
« Review of licence and other regulatory consultations

» Annual and Interim Performance Report

- Reviewed and approve the interim and full year Financial Statements

« Annual budget approval

« Review of performance against budget and forecast

- Funding requirements
» Review of financial viability

« Approval of contracts with values of £1m or more

« Review and approve the quarterly Ofwat Commitments Monitoring Report

« Review of measures associated with prescribed status

« Review principal risks

« Review of governance framework
- Board effectiveness review

« Reappointment of external auditor

« Effectiveness of internal controls and risk management processes

« General Data Protection Regulations “GDPR”
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Accountability

The Board isresponsible for
presenting a fair, balanced and
understandable assessment of
Bristol Water’s position and future
outlook in the Financial Statements.
The preparation of the Financial
Statements and Annual Reportis
supported by a number of functions
across the Company and numerous
reviews are undertaken by the Audit
and Risk Assurance Committee and
the Board.

Details of how the Company generates
and preserves value over the long
term is set out in the Strategic Report
onpages7to55.

Evaluation of Board effectiveness
The Board has established a formal
process for the evaluation of the
effectiveness of the Board and its
Committees with an external review
conducted every 3 years. During
2017/18,the Chairman engaged with
Ann Bishop of Indepen Limited to
undertake a Board Effectiveness Review
which was highlighted inlast year’s
Corporate Governance Report. The
recommendations have continued to
beimplemented during this financial
year and the Board regularly monitor
progress.

Inaccordance with Ofwat’s “Principles
of Board Leadership, Transparency
and Governance” updated in January
2019, itisrequired that an annual
evaluation of the performance of the
Board isundertaken to ensure that

its composition has theright balance
of skills, experience, independence,
knowledge and diversity, in addition to
evaluating how stakeholder needs are
addressed and how the overarching
objectives of the Board are met. In May
2019, the Chairman met with the Board
toreview the findings of an evaluation
questionnaire issued to directors by
the Company Secretary to assess the
performance of the Board.

The NEDs met without the Executive
Directors present on 30 May 2019.

The Senior Independent Director and
the NEDs met without the Chairman
present on 30 May 2019 to appraise the
Chairman’s performance. The Senior
Independent Director had, prior to the
meeting,issued to directors a Chairman
Performance evaluation questionnaire,
theresults of which were reviewed at
this meeting.

Such interaction ensures that the
members of the Board, and in particular
the NEDs, develop an understanding

of the views of shareholders and vice
versa.

Information and support

The Directors are provided with
appropriate, accurate and relevant
financial and operational information
necessary for them to discharge their
duties. The management information

is prepared by senior management of
the Company and produced on a timely
basis for consideration and review by
the directors. Clarification, amplification
and specific updates are provided as
requested by directors. Senior managers
who are not Executive, periodically
attend the Board to provide appropriate
levels of information on key issues.

The Company Secretary isresponsible
for the provision of legal guidance and
supportasand when appropriate and
on corporate governance matters.

In furtherance of its duties, there are
agreed procedures for the directors to
take independent professional advice, if
necessary, at the Company’s expense.

All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary.
The appropriateness of the information
received isreviewed as part of the Board
evaluation process carried out annually.

Induction and training of Directors
New Directorsreceive appropriate
induction on their appointment to the
Board covering the activities of the
Company and its key business and
financial risks, the terms of reference of
the Board and its committees and the
Company's latest financial information.

On-goingtrainingis provided as
necessary and includes updates from
the Company Secretary on changesto
the Listing Rules, requirements under
the Companies Act and other regulatory
matters. Directors may consult with

the Company Secretary at any time

on mattersrelated to their role on the
Board. The Chairmanregularly reviews
and agrees with directors their training
and development needs. Alsoall the
directors have access to independent
professional advice at the Company’s
expense where they judge it necessary
to discharge their duties, with requests
for such advice being authorised by the
Chairman or the Company Secretary.
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Risk management and internal control
The Company has complied and
continues to comply with the Code
provisions on internal control having
established the procedures necessary
toimplement the guidance issued

in September 2014 by the Financial
Reporting Council, Guidance on Risk
Management and Related Financial
and Business Reporting and by regular
review and reporting in accordance
with that guidance.

—

=

N

The Board has overall responsibility
for the system of risk management
and internal control, and for reviewing
its effectiveness, whilst the role of
managementis toimplement the
Board policies onrisk and control. The
system of internal control is designed
to managerisks to appropriate minima
rather than eliminate any risk of failure
inachievingbusiness objectives.In
pursuing these objectives, internal
controls can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board encourages a culture of risk
identification and management across
all aspects of the business, and uses the
following main processes to review the
effectiveness of the system of internal
control:

The Executive Directors:

» havedelegated to them the authority to
manage the business and to implement
internal control and risk management
processes, specifically the Company
has compiled arisk register containing
the key risksit faces during the conduct
of itsbusiness; and

» haveestablished a system of KPIsand
risk identification matrices.

Inaddition, the Company hasa
schedule of mattersreserved for the
Board which is available on our website,
www.bristolwater.co.uk/wp-content/
uploads/2018/09/2018-Apr-23-Matters-
Reserved-for-the-Board-of-Bristol-Water-
plc-Final.pdf

Corporate governance

Financial statements

The Company operates through a

formal board structure, which:

- considers material financing and
investment decisions;

« reviewstherole of insurancein
managingrisks;

« reviewsand approves financial
budgets and emerging financial
results;and

« reviewsonaregular basis detailed
Key Performance Indicator reports,
which include the identification of
material risks and the actions taken to
manage suchrisks.

The ARAC:
- reviewsinternal and external audit
work plans and commissions, where

appropriate, reviews of specificissues;

» reviewsand where appropriate,
approves non-audit services
undertaken by the statutory auditor;

« assessestherisk management and
control arrangements including risk
reporting;

- considersreports from management,
internal and external auditors on
the system of internal control and
any material control weaknesses
identified;

» discusses with managementthe
actions taken on any problem areas
identified by the Board membersand
management or in the internal and
external auditreports; and

 the Chairman of the Committee
reports the outcome of the ARAC
meetings to the Board and the Board
receives the minutes of all ARAC
meetings.
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The Board:

* monitors compliance with the
obligations of the Company under its
licence as a water undertaker;

« considersmaterial financing and
investment decisions including the
giving of guarantees and indemnities,
and monitors policy and control
mechanisms for managing treasury
risk;

« reviewsonaregular basisasummary
KPIreport which includes the
identification of material risks and the
actions taken to manage such risks;

« reviewsthe effectiveness of the risk
management process and significant
riskissues;and

» reviewsand approves financial
budgets and emerging financial
results.

The Board undertook formal
assessments of risk management and
control arrangementsincluding the

risk register on 28 March 2019 and
concluded that the overall internal
control framework was working
effectively. Thereview included an
assessment of the effectiveness of
internal controls within the group’s joint
venture, BWBSL.

Commitment

Sufficient time is available both for the
executive and NEDs to undertake their
responsibilities. The expected time
commitment is considered as part

of the appointment process of NEDs
including therequirement for additional
commitment outside scheduled Board

meetings whenrequired including for
induction. A defined expected time
commitmentis set outin the terms of
appointment of NEDs.

Directors disclose their other
commitments at the time of
appointment. Further updates are
made asrequired, ifa NED takes any
additional commitment. Non-Executive
Directorships are stated in the Directors’
biographies.

Retirement and Re-election of Directors
All Directors are subject to election by
shareholders at the first annual general
meeting after their appointment. At the
AGM on 10 September 2018, having been
appointed during the year, Paul Francis
offered himself for re-election. Also at
the AGM, Keith Ludeman, Indradoot
Dhar, Hajime Ichishi; Tim Tutton
eachretired and offered themselves

for re-election by shareholders. The
shareholders at the AGM unanimously
approved there-election of each
director.

Inaccordance with the new UK
Corporate Governance Code, at the next
AGMin September 2019, all directors will
offer themselves for annual re-election
by shareholdersin general meeting.

Relations with Shareholders

The Company is privately owned and
representatives of each shareholder are
Board members thus there is good face
to face on-going contact during the year
and at Board meetings.

Directors’ Conflicts of Interest and
External Appointments

All Directors have a statutory duty

to avoid situations, where they have,
directly or indirectly,a conflict of
interest. Procedures are in place to
disclose any such conflicts to the Board
asthey arise. During the year, no such
conflicts arose.

Under its Instrument of Appointment
asawater undertaker, the Company

is subject to anumber of ring-fencing
conditions to protectit fromthe

risks arising from other activities
which may be carried out by other
companies within the group so that the
Company doesnot, whether through
its involvement in those activities or by
its financial policies, put at risk its ability
either to carry outits functionsasa
water undertaker or to finance them.
The Nomination Committee Report,
ARAC Reportand Remuneration
Committee Report form part of this
Governance Section and are contained
onpages 74to 75,76 to 8l and pages 85
to108.

The Board Diversity Policy is contained
within the Nomination Committee
Reporton pages74to75.
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Chairman's welcome

Strategic report

Nomination
committee report

Keith Ludeman, Chair of the Nomination Committee

Introduction

As Chair of the Nomination Committee, I
am pleased to introduce the Nomination
Committeereport detailingitsrole and
the work undertaken by the Committee
duringthe year.

The Committee plays a key role
insupporting the Board on its
responsibility for succession planning
and diversity.

Only members of the Committee

have theright to attend Committee
meetings; other individuals such as the
CEO, Senior Management, HR Director
and external advisors may attend, on
aninvitation only basis, as deemed
appropriate.

Attendance during the financial year
Member of Committee
KLudeman, Chair
T Tutton, Non-Executive
H]Ichishi, Non-Executive
P Malan, Non-Executive

The committeeis chaired by Keith
Ludeman, and comprises the following
INEDs; Tim Tutton, Paul Francis
(appointed 25 June 2018), Jeremy
Bending (appointed 25 October 2018),
Jim McAuliffe (appointed 29 November
2018) and two shareholder NEDs, Paul
Malan and Hajime Ichishi.

Nomination Committees
Responsibilities
Under the Chairmanship of Mr

Ludeman this committee has the task of:

- recommending new appointments
tothe Board and reviewingre-
appointments when they become
due;

- evaluating the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on
the Board and, in the light of this,

P Francis, Non-Executive (appointed 25 June 2018)

JBending, Non-Executive (appointed 25 October 2018)
JMcAuliffe, Non-Executive (appointed 29 November 2018)
T Hemus, Non-Executive (resigned 19 June 2018)

T Wood, Non-Executive (resigned 19 June 2018)

Corporate governance

Financial statements

prepare a description of the role and
capabilities required for a particular
appointment;

- reviewingthe structure, size and
composition of the Board and makes
recommendations to the Board with
regard to any changes; and

« undertaking annual performance
evaluations of the Board Members.

Mr Ludeman does not chair this
committeeifit discusses the performance
of the chairman or the appointment of a
new chairman of the Board.

The Committeeis formally constituted
with terms of reference. A copy of
theterms of referenceisavailable to
shareholders on the Bristol Water website
or by writing to the Company Secretary.

Meetings attended Max possible
3 3
2 3
3 3
3 3
1 1
0] 0]
0] 0]
1 1
1 1
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During the year, the Company
concluded an executive search using
Korn Ferry to find anew Chief Financial
Officer following the resignation of
Mick Axtell. Korn Ferry undertook an
extensive search culminatingin the
appointment to the Board on1October
2018 of Laura Flowerdew in therole of
Chief Financial Officer.

In June 2018, following the resignation
of Tracey Wood and Tony Hemus, the
Company undertook an extensive
executive search process for additional
NEDs using Odgers Berndtson and
Wheale Thomas Hodgins PLC. The
preferred candidates were interviewed
by members of the Committee and on
25 October 2018 and 29 November 2018
respectively, Jeremy Bending and Jim
McAuliffe were each appointed to the
Board.

Asreported in thelast year'sannual
report, Indradoot Dhar was appointed
asaNED on 8 May 2018 and Paul Francis
was appointed as an INED on 25 June
2018. Their biographies are set out on
pages 60 to 61.

Diversity and succession planning

The Committee met during the year
todiscuss succession planning for the
NEDs.It was agreed that in addition to
appointing replacements for the two
NEDs whichresignedin June 2018 an
additional NED be appointed, local to the
Company to helprepresent the interests
of thelocal community in Bristol and

its surrounding water supply areas and

in November 2018 Jim McAuliffe was
appointed to the Board.

Inaccordance with our BW Code the

Committeereports that the Board has

a ‘Board Diversity Policy’ which was

updated and approved by the Board on

29 November 2018, which confirms that

the Board is committed to:

- allsearchesfor the Board candidates
being conducted, and appointments
made, onmerit, against objective criteria
and with dueregard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board, including gender,
age and ethnicity;and

« satisfyingitself that plansarein place for
orderly succession of appointments to
the Board and to senior management to
maintain an appropriate balance of skills
and experience within the Company
and on the Board and to ensure
progressive refreshing of the Board.

Aspartof theboard effectiveness review,
detailed above, consideration was given
to the number of external positions held
by the NEDs to ensure that there was

no over-boarding and that the directors
have sufficient time to commit to Bristol
Water.

The Board is committed to the principle
of equal opportunities and equal
treatment for all employees set outin
the Company’s Equal Opportunities
Policy.In 2018, we have new learning
and development interventions, as well
asfocusing on talent and succession
planning, to support employee
engagement, motivation and retention.

Talented people are the foundation

of our success and we do all we can

to care for our staff, to motivate them
and develop their many and varied
skills, creating an inclusive and diverse
workplace. During the year 12 employees
took partin our first Talent Programme
which provides additional and focused
opportunities for employees that the
Company believes can develop and
become future leaders of the business.
In March 2019, the second cohort of

10 employees started on the Talent
Programme.

The Nomination Committee has
reviewed and monitored compliance
with the Board Diversity Policy and is of
the view that the Board Diversity Policy
is complied with.
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Audit and risk assurance
commiittee “ARAC” report

Paul Francis, Chair of the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee

Introduction

AsChair of the ARAC,Iam pleased to
introduce our report on therole of the
ARAC and the work undertaken during
this year. The following pages provide
additional details of our activities and
discussions and also an overview of the
significantissues addressed and steps
taken to address these issues.

The Committee continues to play

akey part supporting the board in
dischargingitsresponsibility on the
integrity of the Financial Statements,
risk management and internal controls.

The Committee is chaired by Paul
Francis, INED, and comprises three
other INEDs Tim Tutton, Jeremy
Bending (appointed 25 October 2018),
Jim McAuliffe (appointed 29 November
2018),and two other NEDs Hajime
Ichishi and Indradoot Dhar. Paul Malan

Attendance during the financial year

Member of Committee

resigned from the Committee on 24
May 2018. Tony Hemus resigned from
the Committee and the Board on 19
June 2018. The Company considers that
Paul Francis, Chair of the Committee,
possesses the necessary recent and
relevant financial experience to
effectively chair the Committee.In
addition, the Company considers that
all the members of the Committee
possessrelevant skills and experience
tomeaningfully support the activities of
the Committee. The biographical details
of all the members of the Company are
shown on pages 60 to 61.

The Company Secretary is secretary to
the Committee.

In addition to the attendance set out
below, the Chairman of the Board,
CEO, CFO, External Auditorsand
Internal Auditors normally attend, by

Meetings attended

Paul Francis, Chair (appointed 25 June 2018)

T Tutton, Non-Executive
H Ichishi, Non-Executive

IDhar, Non-Executive (appointed 8 May 2018)

JBending, Non-Executive (appointed 25 October 2018)
JMcAuliffe, Non-Executive (appointed 29 November 2018)
P Malan, Non-Executive (appointed 22 March 2018, resigned 24 May 2018)

T Hemus, Non-Executive (resigned 19 June 2018)

T Wood, Non-Executive (resigned 19 June 2018)

invitation, meetings of the Committee.
Other members of staff are invited as
appropriate.

The Committee holds private
discussions with the internal and
external auditors separately without
management present. The Committee
Chair holds separate one to one
meetings with the CFO and external
auditors to fully understand any issues
or areas of concerns.

w
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Committee’sresponsibilities

The ARAC'sresponsibilities include:

» monitoring internal controls and risk
management;

» approving the accounting policies;

« oversight of the Internal Auditand
External Audit;

» reviewingtheinterimand annual
financial statements before submission
totheBoard;and

« review arrangements for raising
concernsrelating to fraud and other
nefarious activities.

The Committee is formally constituted
with terms of reference. A copy of

the terms of referenceis available to
shareholders on the Bristol Water website
or by writing to the Company Secretary.

Below isa summary of the Committee’s
work during the year:

Meeting on 23 April 2018

« Review of Non-Audit Services Policy
prior torecommendation for Board
approval;

« Review of Data Protection Policy which
hasbeen updated to cover GDPR
legislation prior to Board approval;

« Review of Corporate Risk Register;

« Review of the progress on the Risk
and Viability Statement for the Annual
Report;and

« Received update onthe Company’s
GDPR preparedness for 25 May 2018.

Meeting on 24 May 2018
- Review of the progressin preparing the
financial statements and results for the

year ended 31 March 2018 including the
accounting policies;

Review the PwC Audit Reportinrespect
of the 2018 financial statements;

Review of the Investor Report;
Furtherreview of the draft Risk and
Viability Statement; and

Review of Internal Auditreports of IT,
General Controls and Payroll.

Meeting on 5 July 2018

Review of the financial statements
andreport for the year ended 31 March
2018 including the accounting policies
corporate governancereport,long term
viability statement, impairment of fixed
assets, related party transactions and
going concern opinion and heard from
external auditors;

Reviewed the Annual Performance
Report for 2017/18 and discussed with
external assurers;

Reviewed the Risk and Compliance
Statement;

Reviewed and agreed the submission
to Ofwat of the PR14 reconciliation
model, noting that data tables had been
reviewed and assured by PwC and
Jacobs;and

Received an update of the new
accounting treatment for revenue
under contracts with customersIFRS15.

Meeting on 29 November 2018

Reviewed areportby the CFOon
significant accounting mattersin

the context of the Interim financial
staterments for the 6 months ended 30
September 2018;

Reviewed the interim financial

statements for the 6 months ended 30
September 2018;

» Reviewed the Statement on Strength,
Risk and Weakness of Information;

» Reviewed the Mid-year Performance
Report;

« Reviewed the PwC Audit Plan for the
statutory audit 2018/19;

» Reviewed Risk Report;

» Updated on the Company’s approach to
the preparation of financial statements
for 2019;and

« Reviewed internal audit reportsand the
actionsarising.

Meeting on 21 February 2019

« Reviewed the updated Risk Report;

» Reviewed thebudget whichistobe sent
tothe Artesian Loan lenders pursuant
totheloan covenants;and

» Reviewed and approved the Group Tax
Strategy.

Meeting on 28 March 2019

« Reviewed the Company’sfinal
Assurance Plan;

« Deepdiveinto Corporate Risks,
particularly thoseriskstobereported
in the financial statements for the year
ending 31 March 2019;

» Review of the processin preparing the
Viability Statement to ensure that it was
inline with Ofwat requirements and
Financial Reporting Council guidance;

» Reviewed progress for the preparation
of the financial statements for the year
ending 31 March 2019;

« Reviewed internal audit reportsand the
actionsarising;and

« Session without management present.
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Audit andrisk assurance committee ‘ARAC report

Category What this means

Significant accounting matters

AXkey responsibility of the Committeeis
theintegrity of the financial statements.
The Committee considered significant
accounting matters and judgments
inrelation to the Company’s financial
statements and management presented

Self assurance The Company must meet the minimum assurance requirements, but it has discretion to .
. s . areport setting out the approach to these
decide what additional assurance arrangements to put in place. .
areas. Details of how each of these was
addressed are shown in the table below.
Atthe Committee’'s meetings throughout
Targeted assurance The Company must meet the minimum assurance requirements. It must also carry out the year the Cqmmittee and 'the'e'xtemal
arisks, strengths and weaknesses exercise; and consult stakeholders and publish draft auditor have d1scusseq Fhe agmﬁcant
assurance plans on the areas identified as risks/weaknesses. accounting mattersarising during the
year and the areas of particular audit
focus, asreported onin the independent
auditorsreport on pages157to163.
Prescribed assurance The Company must meet the minimum assurance requirements and the requirements Section 4 of the notes to the financial

for targeted companies, and its draft assurance plan must cover all information. Areas
of significance or greatestrisk to customers require independent external assurance. It
must publish its assurance plans for all information ahead of reporting and engage with
stakeholders (and Ofwat) before it publishesits final assurance plans.

statements also details the critical

accounting estimates and judgements.

Significant

accounting matter

Specific factors considered by the Commiittee in determining the judgements
or estimates were appropriate:

Going Concernand The Committee reviewed and challenged the evidence and assumptions underpinning the
Viability Statement Viability Statement including:
Promotion to Targeted assurancestatus ~ Framework assessment of Bristol as a whole, was fair, balanced and « cash flow management and working capital assumptions;
Ofwat expect companies tobe Water, said that “the Company has understandable and provided the « sensitivity analysis and mitigating actions; and
open and transparent with all their demonstrated that it had acted upon information necessary for shareholders « the time frame for the Viability Statement.
stakeholders and to communicate feedback we provided, and has made to access the Company’s performance, . . ) . )
) e ) P ) Paly’s p Measured income The method of estimating water consumed by measured customers over the period between their
clearly their performance. It uses the significant improvements from business model and strategy. . . .
. ) accrual last meter reading date and the year-end date was reviewed, and the resulting income accrual was
company monitoring framework as the previous year. It has exceeded . .
. . . compared with previous years.
atool to encourage companies to our expectations for the Risk and
deliver high quality assurance of the Compliance Statement..” Accounting for The Committee considered the process under which the nature of capital projectsis reviewed
information they produce. Ofwat's expenditure on by Capital Project Managers and Finance to determine whether expenditure is capitalised as an
assessment places companies in one The Company continues to seek infrastructure assets addition to fixed assets or treated as an operational cost in the Income Statement.
of three categories to reflect their ways toimprove the quality of the Capitalisation of The Committee reviewed employment costs capitalised to ensure the required criteria for
view of the quality of each company’s information and data provided to employment costs capitalisation was met.
approach to assurance. Th? category custorpers apd cher stakeholders _ Bad debt provision The Committee reviewed the key aspects of the calculation and has had detailed discussions
defines the lev.el of dlscyet}on the and will maintain its approach t? th}rd with management about the judgement applied to the bad debt provision. This judgement either
company has in determining the party assurance of the information it increases or decreases the provision calculation using historic collection rates, depending upon
assurance process for information it publishes going forward. recent collection trends and economic factors.
blishes going forward, as shown . : ) ) . . . e
Publl goinglorw W Pension surplus The Committee considered the actuarial assumptions used in the valuation of the future liabilities,
above. Annual Report . )
valuation assetout in note 24:

In January 2019 Ofwat re-categorised
the Company’s assurance status and
promoted it to ‘Targeted assurance’
following Ofwat’s review of the
Company’s Business Plan for 2020-
2025. Ofwat, in its Company Monitoring

The Committee reviewed and
evaluated the Company’s financial
statements and reports from the
external auditor on the outcome of

its audit in 2018/2019. At the Board's
request it also considered whether
the annual report and accounts, taken
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« longevity estimation for scheme members;

- rate of return on the scheme assets;

« calculation of the present value of pension liability;

- tax deduction;

« impact of the High Court Ruling in respect of GMP; and
« other demographic factors.
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External Auditors

The Company’s external auditors are
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (‘PwC")
who have been the Company’s auditors
since 2012. The audit partner is Colin
Bates who became the audit partner on
1April 2017.

Inaccordance with best practice and
professional standards, the Company
requiresits external auditor to adhere
to arotation policy whereby the audit
partner isrotated after 5 years. The
external auditor is also required to
periodically assess whether, inits
professional opinion, itis independent
and to share those views with the
Committee.

AsaPublic Interest Entity with

debt listed on the London Stock
Exchange, the Company is subject

to the mandatory audit and rotation
requirements of the European Union.
This means that the Company will put
the external audit out to tender at least
every ten years,and change auditors at
least every twenty years. Under current
regulations the external audit must be
put out to tender by 2022.

Independence

In order to ensure the independence

and objectivity of the external auditors,

the Committee hasreviewed:

« the external auditors’ plan for the
financial year, noting therole of the
senior statutory audit partner, who
signsthe auditreport;

« the arrangement for day-to-day
management of the audit relationship;

« areport from the external auditors
describing their arrangements to
identify, report and manage any
conflicts of interest; and

« the overall extent of non-audit services
provided by the external auditors, in
addition toits case by case approval of
the provision of non-audit services by
the external auditors.

Effectiveness

Toassess the effectiveness of the
external auditors, the Committee has
reviewed:

« the arrangements for ensuring the
external auditors independence and
objectivity;

« the external auditors' fulfilment of the
agreed audit plan and any variations
from the plan;and

- therobustness and perceptiveness of
the auditorsin their handling of the
key accounting and audit judgements.

Based on the above assessments, the
Committeeis of the view that the external
auditors are independent and effective.

Non Audit fees

The Company has a policy for the
provision of non-audit services aimed

at safeguarding and supporting the
independence and objectivity of the
external auditor. The policy sets out the
approach taken when using the services
of the external auditor including non-
audit services which are prohibited.

Before approving non-audit services,
the Board considers whetheritisin

the interest of the Company that the
services are procured from PwC rather
than another supplier. Where PwC
have been chosen, thisisbased on their
detailed knowledge of our business and
understanding of the Water Industry

as well as demonstrating the required
expertise.

Non-audit services where the external
auditor may be used include: audit
related servicesrequired by statute

or regulation, regulatory support and
Corporate Responsibility report reviews.

FromthelApril 2017 the EU introduced
legislation which imposes a limit on

the value of non-audit services that the
auditors can undertake on behalf of

the client. Permitted non-audit services
are subject toa 70% cap of the average
statutory audit fees paid in the last three
financial years for the group and hence
firstimpacts the year ending 31 March
2020.During the year, PwCreceived
£82,940(2018:£64,972) in feesrelating to
the audit services they provided to the
Company and £113,001(2017/18: £93,907)
for the Group, including audit related
assurance work. Non-audit related work
undertaken amounted to £147,227 (2018:
£129,228) and significant work is set out
overleaf.
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Nature of Service Reason for PwC appointment

Audit related assurance services

Assurance of regulatory returns

Audit of sections1& 2 of the Annual

Performancereport is closely linked
to the Statutory Audit and the two are
performed in parallel.

Other assurance services

Assurance in connection with
Ofwatregulatory reports

PRI19 support

Agreed upon proceduresrelating to
Wholesale Charges and RCV allocation.

Water Industry knowledge and expertise

in project planning, preparing evidence,
drafting and editing business plansin the
water and energy sector.

Inform subscription

Total non-audit fees

% of non-audit fees in respect of
group audit fees

In autumn 2016, PwC were selected
tobe our “Strategic Partner” to

review our business plan and make
recommendations after comparing

it to the strategic requirements of
PR19,and to provide advice inrespect
of assurance required and reports
received. PwC were selected for their
operational insight and experience of
the values and attributes required in the
business plan submission to Ofwat. This
team are based in the LLondon office,
whereas the audit work is performed
by ateam from the local Bristol office
with a different management structure
and expertise. A requirement of the
selection process was that there is
aclearring-fencing of the separate
functions. ARAC hasnoreasonto
believering fencingis not effective
practice.

The detail of auditors remuneration
isprovided in note 7d of the financial
statements.

Access to technical information

Internal auditors

Internal audit servicesto the

Company are provided by Mazars an
international company specialising

in audit accountancy, tax,legal and
advisory services. The Mazars audit
manager attends meetings of the ARAC
to present their internal audit reports
and key findings and any audit follow
upreports. The internal audit plan

is prepared annually in conjunction
with the Committee and the executive
management team of the Company. The
role and services offered by internal
auditis currently beingreviewed, with
proposals brought to the ARAC with
regard to achievingimprovements

and strengthening of the process going
forward.

Inaddition, in the current year, given

the criticality of the business planning
cycle and investment programme, our
assurance work has focussed on these
areasrather than business as usual. To
this end, we have worked with a number
of assurance providers to gain detailed,
comprehensive and expert assurance

2017/18 fees 2018/19 fees
£000 £000
37 25
10 2
81 119
1 1
129 147
137% 131%

over individual areas. Such work has
included challenge and review of our
investment planning process, detailed
procedures over our data quality and
management, over and above the
standard assurance requirements of our
regulator. The ARAC and Board have
been provided with the output of such
reports, and had the opportunity to
challenge and question our assurance
partners as part of the Board assurance
process.

The ARACisrequired to assist the Board
tofulfilitsresponsibilities relating to the
adequacy of the plansrelatingto the
internal controls. To fulfil these duties
the Committee reviewed:

- Internal Audit’s terms of reference and
access to ARAC and all members of
the Board;

» Internal Audit’s plansand its
achievement of the planned activity;
and

« Theresults of internal audits
undertaken by Mazars were reviewed
duringthe year.
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PR19 Sub-Commiittee report

Tim Tutton, Chair of the PR19 Sub-Committee

Introduction

As Chairman of the PR19 Sub-
Committee, I am pleased to introduce
the PR19 Sub-Committee report
detailingitsrole and the work
undertaken by the Sub-Committee
duringthe year.

The PR19 Sub-Committee has

played and continues to play a key
rolein supporting the Board onits
responsibility for oversight of the
development of Bristol Water's Business
Plan for the Ofwat price review period
from 2020 to 2025.

The PR19 Sub-Committeeis formally
constituted with terms of reference
approved by the Board in November
2016. The PR19 Sub-Committee is
chaired by Tim Tutton,and comprises
one INED which was Tony Hemus and
he hasbeenreplaced by Paul Francisin

June 2018, one NED Paul Malan, the CEQO,

and the CFO. The Director of Strategy

Attendance during the financial year
Member of Committee
T Tutton, Chair
P Malan, Non-Executive

M Karam, Chief Executive Officer

and Regulation attends the meetings.

PR19 Sub-Committee Responsibilities
Under the chairmanship of Tim Tutton
the primary function of this sub-
committeeis to ensure that the PR19
Business Plan is governed appropriately,
diligently developed and robustly
challenged to ensure that it meets the
expectations of customers, regulators
and other stakeholders.

This year the work of the Committee
intensified with significant operational
and strategic optionstoreview and
challenge which fed into the 2020-
2025 Business Plan. In addition to the
Committee meetings, the Boardasa
whole where fully briefed throughout
the year so that they were well informed
toreview and challenge management
recommendations and to make the
necessary strategic decisions in relation
to approving the 2020-2025 Business
Plan submission and the signing of

P Francis, Non-Executive (appointed 25 June 2018)

L Flowerdew, Chief Financial Officer (appointed 1 Oct 2018)
T Hemus, Non-Executive (resigned 19 June 2018)

M Axtell, Chief Financial Officer (resigned 13 July 2018)

the Board Assurance Statementin
September 2018 and further inrespect
of the resubmission of the 2020-2025
Business Plan and Board Assurance
Statement on 1 April 2019 following
Ofwat’sinitial assessment of the plan
(‘IAP") published at the end of January
2019.

The PR19 Sub-Committee:

« provided strategic guidance on the
content and direction of the PR19
Business Plan to the executive
management team and will continue
to provide guidance until the final
determination is provided by Ofwat;

« provided assurance to the Board of
the Company that Ofwat’s strategic
requirements for the price review have
been addressed within the Company’s
submission and engagement with
customers, regulators and other
stakeholders;

« agreed the areas of the Business Plan
that required assurance and provided

Meetings attended Mazx possible
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subsequent and continued oversight of
the assurance framework;

«» agreed the most appropriate source of
assurance (internal/external, nature of
consultancy);and

« ensured all assurance
recommendations have been
considered and applied appropriately.

PwC hasbeen engaged by the Company
during the year to provide assurance
to the PR19 Sub-Committee and the
Board that the third party assurance
providers (Jacobs, ICS Consulting and
PwC) engaged by the Company had
appropriate terms of reference and
scope of work and comment where
necessary on thereports provided to
the Committee and the Board by such
assurance providers.

In addition to PwC who advise on
assurance plans, the Company has
appointed further experts to provide
independent assurance on such things
as:investment planning; corporate
modelling; cost adjustment claims;
customer engagement; and efficiencies.

PR19 Sub-Committee

Therole of the PR19 Sub-Committee will
bemaintained throughout 2019 so that
it canreview and advise on the outcome
of the Interim Determination by Ofwat
in August 2019 and toreview and
advise on any additional submissions
or commentsback to Ofwat prior to the
Final Determination in December 2019,
aswell asreview and provide input.

JIi¢
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Safety committee report

Jeremy Bending, Chair of the Safety Committee

As Chair of the Safety Committee, [

am pleased to introduce the Safety
Committeereport detailingitsrole and
the work undertaken by the Committee
duringthe year.

In November 2018, the Board set up

a Safety Committee whichisanew
sub-committee of the Board to which
Iwas appointed asits Chair. Therole
of the Safety Committeeis to focus on
the responsibility for health and safety
matters arising from the Company’s
activities and operations.

O

l—

The Safety Committee will:

- review and make recommendations

tothe Board on the strategic direction

for effective health and safety

management, and to communicate,

promote and champion health and

safety issues;

keep under review the adequacy

of the framework of safety, health

and policies and procedures within

the Company (including training

and competency assessment),and

compliance with relevant health and

safety legislation;

review appropriate health and safety

measures, performance targets and

KPIs for the Company;

review significant health and safety

incidents &investigation reports

including near misses for both

the Company and its third party

contractors;

injury and illness prevention measures

within the annual health and safety

plan aimed at enhancing standards

and promoting a culture free from

harm to people;

consider health and safety issues

that may have strategic business

and reputational implications for

the Company and, where necessary,

recommend appropriate measures,

responses and targets (including

performance targets and KPIs for

Directors and senior managers);

« public safety whilst on Company
premises;

« review of related contractor and
supplier performance;and

« receive andreview any relevant health

and safety audits.

The Terms of Reference for the
Committee were approved at a Board
Meeting on 29 November 2018. Meetings
shall be held at such times asthe
Committee deems appropriate, and at
least four times a year.

Themembership of the Committee
shall be appointed by the Board from
amongst the Directors and senior
management of the Company and shall
consist of at least three members. In
addition to Jeremy Bending as Chair,
the Board has appointed Mel Karam
(CEO), David Smith (Director of Asset
Management and Production), Richard
Price (Strategic Projects & Network
Operations Director) and Simon

Fry (Head of Health & Safety) to the
Committee.

Asanew NED, I needed to get a better
understanding of the business and

its operations across our service area
and, with the support of management,
[Tundertook visits to water treatment
works and street works. I had meetings
with Simon Fry the Company’s Head of
Health & Safety. Following thisinduction
Iconvened the first meeting of the
Safety Committee on 27 April 2019.
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Introduction

Iam pleased to present, on behalf of

the Board, our Directors' Remuneration
reportinrespect of the year ended 31
March 2019 together with our approach
toremuneration for Executive Directors
for 2019/20.During the year there have
been anumber of changes within the
structure of the Committee culminating
inmy appointment as Chair of the
Committee on 24 December 2018,
replacing Tim Tutton who stepped
down from therole having taken over
from Tracey Wood who resigned from
the Board on19 June 2018.

Thisreport has been prepared under
the principles of Schedule 8 to the
Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
(Amendment) Regulations 2013
governing the content of remuneration
reports and the provision of the
Companies Act 2006.

TheBoard hasreviewed the Company’s
compliance with its policy on
remuneration-related matters.Itisthe
opinion of the Board that the Company
complied with all remuneration-related
aspects of this policy during the year as
detailed in the table overleaf.

Key matters

Inthe year under review the Company
hasmetitsmany challenges,
delivering on the AMP6 programme
for our customers whilst continuing to
implement a new operating model and

embedding subsequent ways of working.

Directors’ remuneration report

Annual Statement by Jim McAuliffe, Chair of the Remuneration Committee

The Committee continues to ensure our
remuneration framework supports the
strategic direction of the Company. This
section summarises the key matters
considered by the Committee and
decisions made duringthe year.

» Salary - Areview of salaries, as well
as affordability, was conducted in
2018/19resultinginal5% increase
inbasesalary as of 1 April 2019 (3%
in 2017/18) for employees with a
base salary over £40,000, including
the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ”)
and Chief Financial Officer (‘CFO”).
The Company in consultation with
representatives of the recognised
trade union GMB agreed an increase
of 2.2% for employees with a
base salary below £40,000. This
salary increaseislower than the
3.0%awarded in1April 2018 and
isreflective of our business plan
efficiency assumption and the cost
challenge within the PR19 Price
Review process.

« Annualbonus - The Committee
gave consideration to the objectives
and targets of the Company’s annual
bonus scheme for 2018/19, in which
employees participated during the
year.

The following sets out the annual
bonus payments for Executive
Directorsawarded in respect of 2018/19.
A summary of the annual bonus
performance measures and the extent
to which performance was achievedis
set out on pages 98 to 101.
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Pension - The Company continues

to operate a company stakeholder
(defined contribution) scheme. All
employees are now enrolled in this
scheme with matching employer
contributions (to a maximum
employer contribution of 6%), unless
they have “opted out”.

Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) -
The Company operates an LTIP for
the CEOand CFO only. This LTIPis
based on performance delivered over
the AMP6 period from 1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020 and was granted on

15 May 2017 Participants can earn

up to 34.2% of salary for each year

of the plan based on the Company’s
performance againstlong-term
strategic goals of the Company,
including customer outcomes. There
wasno payment made inrespect of
the LTIP during the year as there was
no payment due. Further details are
provided on page 107 and 108.
Departing directors - Mick Axtell,
CFO,resigned on 6 October 2017 and
left the Company on 13 July 2018. Due
to hisresignation Mr Axtell was not
eligible toreceive abonus inrespect of
2017/18 or for the portion of the 2018/19
financial year during which he wasin
employment.

New appointment - Laura Flowerdew
was appointed as CFO on1October

2018 and was eligible to participate
in the Annual Cash Incentive Plan
("‘ACIP") bonus scheme and LTIP from
thisdate.

« Implementation of remuneration
policy inrespect of 2019/20 — There
are no proposed changes to the
remuneration policy for 2019/20.

- Remuneration and Standards of
Performance — Non-Executives
Directors'basic salary is not linked
to performance targets. However
bonuses paid by the Company to staff
(including Executive Directors) are

based on performance against certain

targets linked to the standards of
performance of the Company

Jim McAuliffe
Remuneration Committee Chairman
5 July 2019

Corporate governance Financial statements

Role and composition of the
Remuneration Committee

The Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration strategy,and

on theremuneration of the Executive
Directors and senior executives of the
Company, in consultation with the
Chairman and/or CEO as appropriate.

The membership of the Committee
during the year comprised of Tracey
Wood (resigned 19 June 2018), Chair,
Tim Tutton (Chair from 22 June 2018
until 23 December 2018), Tony Hemus
(resigned 19 June 2018), Paul Malan

and Hajime Ichishi. Paul Francis was
appointed to the Committee on 25 June
2018, Jeremy Bending was appointed
to the Committee on 25 October 2018
and Jim McAuliffe was appointed to the
committee on 29 November 2018 and
Chair from 24 December 2018.

Member’s biographies are given on
pages 60 to 61. The Company Secretary
issecretary to the Commiittee.

The Committee is formally constituted
with written terms of reference. A copy
of the terms of reference is available on
the Company’s website.

Duringthe year the CEO, HR Director
and Company Secretary provided
advice and services to the Committee.
Guidance was also obtained from

Willis Towers Watson to support
decisions on the Company’s grading
structure and remuneration strategy
and Pinsent Mason who conducted an
Equal Pay review. The total fees paid

to Willis Towers Watson in the year for
servicesto the Committee were £2,368
(2018 - £5,039). The total fees paid to
Pinsent Mason in the year for services
tothe Committee were £21,250 (2018
-£nil). Fees charged by Willis Towers
Watson and Pinsent Mason are on a
time and material basis. Our Directors’
Remuneration Report advisors for year
2017/18 were Deloitte to whom we paid
£2,000.

Willis Towers Watson is a founding
member of the Remuneration
Consultants Group and adhere to
its Code inrelation to executive
remuneration consulting in the UK.
The Committee is satisfied that the
advicereceived from Willis Towers

Watson, Pinsent Mason and Deloitte was

independent. No Director played a part
in any decisions about his or her own
remuneration. No Committee member
has any personal financial interest

or conflict of interest arising from
cross-directorships or from day-to-day
involvement in running the business.

Executive Directors’ remuneration
policy

TheXkey principle underpinning
remuneration policy is to offer

remuneration packages which areatan
appropriate level to attract, motivate and
retain Directors and senior managers

of the calibre needed to execute the
Company’s business strategy, which
isimportant for the delivery of a
consistently high quality service to
customers and a sound, sustainable
financial performance.

The Committee’'s approach on
incentivesis for any annual bonus tobe
aligned to the Company’s performance
against its strategic and business
objectives for the year, and for the
performance targets of any LTIP scheme
tobebased on the longer term strategic
and sustainable success of the business
inthe current regulatory environment.

JMcAuliffe, Chair (appointed 24 December 2018) 2 2
T Tutton, Non-Executive, Chair from 22 June 2018 to 23 December 2018 6 6
P Francis, Non-Executive (appointed 25 June 2018) 3 4
JBending, Non-Executive (appointed 25 October 2018) 3 3
Mel Karam - CEO 45.81% £65114 P Malan, Non-Executive 5 6
Laura Flowerdew - CFO 45.81% £10,307* T Wood, Chairman (resigned 19 June 2018) 2 2
T Hemus, Non-Executive (resigned 19 June 2018) 2 2

*pro-rated amount based on start date of 1 October 2018
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Summary of Directors’ remuneration policy
The main elements of the remuneration package for Executive Directors are:

Maximum

Remuneration

Purposeand link Policy and approach Change in policy since LTIP Incentivise long- The LTIPisbased on performance The maximum The LTIP will continue
element tostrategy opportunity 2018/19 and changes term delivery of over the AMP6 period from 1 April paymentis to operate during
implemented for safe, excellent 2015 to 31 March 2020. 34.2% of salary 2019/20.
2019/20. quality water, for each year of
Salary Toattractand Factors taken into account when Basesalary The salaries for the outstanding LTIPawards arebased on the the performance
retain high determining basic annual salary increasesare CEO and CFO were customer service ~ Company's performanceagainstlong  period the director
performing levels are market data provided by appliedinline increased by 1.5% andachievement  termstrategic goalsof the Company  isinemployment
individuals aselected market leading provider, withtheoutcome  with effect from1 offinancial Including customer outcomes. withan expected
reflecting market objectiveresearch, the individual of any Company April 2019 in line with objectives. minimum
value of role and Executive Director’s performance wide annual pay the Company wide 50% willbe paid followingtheendof ~ payment of
Director’s skills, during the year and pay and awardfollowinga  annual pay award Align CEO AMP6 with the remaining 50% paid £55000p.a. for Mel
experience and conditions throughout the Company.  review conducted  for salaries above and CFOlong: one year later. Karam
performance. by the Committee  £40,000. terminterests
Salaries arereviewed at the in consultation with those of Awards may be subject tomalusand
discretion of the Committee. withtradeunions.  Salaries willnextbe customers, long- clawbackas described below.
Increases will reviewed with effect term shareholders
normally beinline  from1April 2020. and other Thereisno share option schemein
with the increases stakeholders. operation.
awarded to therest Pension Attractandretain Pension contributions are made to Maximum No change for 2019/20.
of the Company high performing the Company stakeholder schemes Employer
workforce. individuals ata specified percentage of basic contribution of 6%
Annualbonus  Todrive 2018/19 Annualbonus is based: Maximum of: No change for 2019/20. reflectingmarket  salary. ofbasesalary.
(AnnualCash  andreward + 80% onachieving certain business valueofroleand
IncentivePlan)  performance objectives;and + 60% of base Director's skills,
('ACIP") againstpersonal  « 20% ontheachievement of role salary for the experienceand
objectivesand specific strategic objectives. CEO performance.
selected financial » 30% of base Benefits Attractandretain Reflecting market practice and N/A Relocation expenses
and operational Business objectives include salary for the high performing comprising the provision of a for Mel Karam were
KPIswhich are customer service and operational CFO individuals company car and private medical extended to17 June
linked directly targets set around measurable reflecting market insurance. 2018.
with business outcomes which the Company saveinexceptional value of role and
strategy and believes are important to customers circumstances. director’s skills, CEO entitled to1year relocation
customer such as water quality, leakage experience and expenses until 31 March 2018.
outcomes Ofwat’s target compliance, minimising performance.
measures of interruptions to supply and the Ofwat
SuCCess. customer service measure, the SIM.
Bonus scheme targets are set
annually.
Awards may be subject tomalus and
clawback provisions as described
below.
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Malus and clawback provisions

The Annual Bonus (inrespect of 2018/19 and subsequent financial years) and LTIP are subject to ‘malus’and ‘clawback’
provisions as set out below:

Annual Bonus (ACIP) LTIP

A ‘malus’ and ‘clawback’ provision has been
included in the rules for the Annual Bonusin
respect of 2018/19 and subsequent financial
years.

Prior to the second anniversary of the payment
date for the Annual Bonus the Committee may
require repayment of all or part of the bonusin

the event of:

®

amaterial misstatement or error in
assessing performance measures which
hasled to an overpayment of the bonus; or

(i) inthe event of dismissal due to gross

misconductin the bonus year or in the
event of criminal behaviour.

Prior to the vesting of an LTIP award the Committee may determine

that the award isreduced (including to zero), or the basis is amended,

or that additional conditions are placed on an award in the event of:

(1)  amaterial misstatement in financial results;

(ii)  errorinassessing performance measures;

(iii) theinformation on which the award wasmade;

(iv) amaterial failure of risk management;

(v)  seriousmisconduct;

(vi) asignificant failure in operations or risk management which
come to the attention of Ofwat;

(vii) seriousreputational damage to the corporate Group; or

(viii) any other circumstance which the Committee considers to
be similar in their material nature or effect as those instances
above.

Prior to the second anniversary of the end of the LTIP performance
period the Committee may require repayment of all or part of the
award payment in the event of (i) to (viii) above occurring.

Themalus and clawback rules donot apply to the CEO’s guaranteed
payment.

920
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Remuneration in different performance
scenarios

Inline with the Remuneration
Reporting Regulations requirements,
the chartbelow illustrates the CEO’s
remuneration package under three
different performance scenarios:
Minimum, performance in-line with
expectations and maximum.

The chart hasbeenbased on the
following assumptions:

« Minimum =fixed pay (base salary,
benefits and pension).

« In-line with expectations = fixed pay
plus 50% of maximum bonus pay-out
and 50% pay-out under the LTIP which
hasaccruedintheyear.

M Karam: Chief Executive Officer

M Salary M Bonus

Maximum 50.4% 30.2%
Expectation 63.5% 18.3%

Minimum 77.7%

0 100 200

300

Maximum = fixed pay plus 100% of
bonus pay-out and 100% LTIP pay-out.
Itis the opinion of the Committee that
the maximum levelis highly unlikely
tobereached given the stretching
nature of the targets set.

Salary levels (on which other elements
of the package are calculated) are
based on those applying on1April
2019. The value of taxable benefits as
disclosed in the single figure for the
year ending 31 March 2019. Pension is
based on a fixed percentage of base
salary linked to employee contribution
up toamaximum employer
contribution of 6%.

LTIP M Pension [ Benefits

| 2.9% £477232

| 37% £378,550

| 5% £309,300
400 500 600

£000s
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L Flowerdew: Chief Financial Officer

M Salary M Bonus LTIP M Pension [ Benefits

Maximum 57.2% 17.1%

Expectation 68.9% 9.9%
Minimum 89.9% 54% 4.7% £169,363

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

W :0% £266338

) 41 36%  £220987

£000s

Remuneration policy for the The Committee may also make
appointment of new Executive Directors ~ arrangements to compensate the
Whenrecruiting an Executive Director, new Executive Director for “loss” of

the Committee aims to offer a package existing remuneration benefits when
inline with the policy outlined above. leaving a previous employer. In doing
However, the Committee retains 5o, the Committee may take account
discretion to make a proposal which of the form in which the previous
isoutside the standard termsin order remuneration was granted, the relevant
to secure the appointment of the right performance conditions and the length
calibre of individual. In determining of the time which the performance

the appropriate arrangements, periods haveremaining.

the Committee retains theright to

benchmark therole against other

similar positions in the wider market

and may take into account any other

relevant factors.

Financial statements
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Directors’ appointments

The dates of each of the Director’s original appointment and expiry of current term are as follows:

Directors

Executive Directors

MKaram

L Flowerdew

M Axtell

Non-Executive
Directors

KLudeman

T Tutton

HIchishi

P Malan

IDhar

PFrancis

JBending

JMcAuliffe

T Hemus

T Wood

Employment
contract date

15 May 2017
1October 2018

11 November 2015

Date appointed to the
Board

26 July 2012

1January 2015

10May 2012

7 July 2016

8May 2018

25 June 2018

25 October 2018

29 November 2018

1 April 2016

1January 2017

Expiry of
current term

12 September 2019

12 September 2019

Resigned July 2018

12 September 2019

12 September 2019

12 September 2019

12 September 2019

12 September 2019

12 September 2019

12 September 2019

12 September 2019

Resigned 19 June 2018

Resigned 19 June 2018

Next AGM at which
the Director will stand

for re-election

2019

2019

Not applicable

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

Not applicable

Not applicable

Notice period

Rolling 6 months

Rolling 6 months

lyear

1month

1month

1month

1month

1month

1month

1month

1month

1month

1month
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Inaccordance with the new UK
Corporate Governance Code published
July 2018, Directors will stand for re-
election annually.

The notice periods disclosed above
are considered by the Committee tobe
suitable given the nature of each role
and each Director’s function within the
business.

Upon loss of office, a Director will
normally be entitled to salary and
benefits during their notice period
subject, however, to the Company’s right
to exercise discretion having regard to
the individual's performance during

the period of qualifying service and the
circumstances contributing to the loss
of office.

Where an executive leaves they

would normally forfeit entitlement to
any futurebonus payment. In certain
circumstances, however, the Committee
may determine that itis appropriate for
an Executive Director to continue to
receive an annual bonus for the year

of departure. Such payment would
normally be pro-rated toreflect the
period in employment, based on the
extent to which performance against
objectivesisachieved and paid at

the usual time. The Committee may
determine that an alternative treatment
should apply.

Under the LTIP, executives would
normally forfeit entitlement to
payments under the LTIP unless

they left ina “Good Leaver” special
circumstance. “‘Good Leaver” includes:
injury, disability, ill-health, or death;
redundancy (within the meaning of
the Employment Rights Act 1996);
retirement as determined by the
relevant group company; or any other
reason the Committee determinesin
its absolute discretion. If the executive
isa Good Leaver then they would
normally continue to be entitled toa
payment under the planbased on the
length of time they have participated
inthe plan and the extent to which the
performance conditions have been met.

Payments would be made at the normal
time. The Committee retains discretion
that an alternative treatment should

apply in accordance with the planrules.

Mick Axtell resigned as CFO which was
effective from 13 July 2018. He received
base salary, benefits and pension up to
this date but was not eligible toreceive a
bonus or payment under the LTIP.

Directors’ contracts do not provide for
other compensation payable on early
termination.

Remuneration policy for NEDs

The remuneration of the INEDs, other
than the Chairman, is determined

by the Board following consultation
between the Chairman and the CEO. It
isbased on market evidence of fees paid
toNEDs in companies of comparable
size and on the time required for

the proper performance of therole.

Corporate governance

Financial statements

Additional responsibilities are also
taken into account. No Director votesin
respect of his own remuneration. The
Chairman’s fee is determined by the
Board, following consultation between
the Committee and the CEO.

NEDs do not have contracts of
employment, donot participate in the
Company designated pension schemes
or incentive schemes and do not
receive any benefits. Non executives
are paid reasonable expenses and the
Company may settle any tax arising in
relation to such expenses. The terms

of appointment do not entitle NEDs to
receive compensation in the event of
early termination of their appointment.

Fees for any newly appointed NED
would be in-line with the above policy.
The table overleaf sets out our current
policy inrelation to fees paid to NEDs.
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Position held by NED

Chairman of the Board

Chair of ARAC

Chair of Remuneration Committee
Chair of PR 19 Sub Committee

Chair of Safety Committee

Additional fee for role of Senior Independent Director

NED

*the base fee for NED and Chairman increased by 1.5% on 1 April 2019

Shareholder and employee input in
setting remuneration policy

The Committee is aware of the need

to set performance targets which align
theinterests of the executive team with
those of the Company’s shareholders.
The Committee has assistancein
setting this vital alignment as certain
Committee membersrepresent the
Company'’s shareholders. Asthe
shareholders are represented on the
Committee, and therefore their views
are taken into account in the Committee
meetings, the AGM does not review

the details of remuneration policy
separately.

The Committee does not consider it
appropriate to consult with the general
workforce on matters of executive
remuneration, but it hasregard tothe
levels of remuneration throughout

the workforce when considering pay
for Executive Directors to achieve an
appropriate balance.

Application of remuneration policy in
2018/19

This section has been prepared under
the principles of Schedule 8 to The
Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
(Amendment) Regulations 2013. The
information hasbeen audited as
indicated.

Fee

£101,500*
£44,540
£41540
£41540
£41540
£2,000
£36,540*
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Single total figure for remuneration of Executive Directors for 2018/19 (audited)

L Flowerdew ? M Axtell
2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Salary/fees
Annual Bonus 65 83 10
Benefits 14 36 4 = 2 5
Pension g 10 5 g 2 9
Single Figure pre-LTIP 316 359 97 = 48 161
Change since prior year (12.0%) - - - (70.2%) (13.9%)
LTIP* g 2 = = = o
Single Figure 316 359 97 - 48 161

2 MsFlowerdew was appointed on1October 2018

3 Mr Axtell resigned on 6 October 2017 and left on 13 July 2018 and was not eligible to receive a bonus for 2017/18.

4 Included within the Financial Statements is an accrual for the AMP6 LTIP; however this is not shown above as the LTIP has not vested in the
period and the components of the LTIP are dependent on the performance in future years

Bonus includes amounts earned based on performance during 2018/19, which have been accrued and approved, but not paid as
at 31 March 2019 and relates to the period served as a director.

Personal factor score 8 out of 10 determined by the Board,
having regard to the recommendation of the Committee,
including performance on the following key criteria:

« competently and successfully lead the Company’s
responses to dealing with material issues and events that
emerge in the Company over 2018/19;

lead development of sound strategy and deliverable
implementation plans for restructuring of outsourcing
arrangements of the Company;

develop deliverable transformation plans for the Company
to meet commitments contained in PR19 Business Plan for
AMP6;

« recruit, develop, change and retain (as appropriate)
members of the Company’s management team to build a
sustainable and effective team with the right skills for the
future of the Company, including succession planning
process for key roles; and

drivingimprovements to processes and effectiveness of the
Board and its subcommittees over 2018/19.

Laura Flowerdew

Personal factor score 8 out of 10 determined by the Board,
havingregard to the recommendation of the Committee,
including performance on the following key criteria:

» undertake areview of the competencies and capabilities of
the finance team, and develop a plan for strengthening and
improving performance, in particular commercial finance,
financial planning and regulatory implications of financial
outcomes;

» undertake areview of the risk management framework
and set out proposals for updating and strengthening the
Company’s approach;

« review theinternal audit activities,and make
recommendations with regard to improving the Company’s
assurance approach;

» review the company wide governance and financial

control processes, and identify key areas for improvement

and change in particular the forecasting and budgeting at
totex level;and

develop industry knowledge and profile in order to

establish a network in the sector.

Salary (audited)

A salary review conducted by the
Committee during 2017/18 resulted ina
3% increase in base salary effective from
April 2018 for all employees, including
the CEO but not the previous CFOas he
hadresigned on 6 October 2017 and left
on13July 2018.

Annual bonus for 2018/19 (audited)

The maximum opportunity for the
CEOfor the year ended 31 March 2019
is60% of base salary and 30% of base
salary for the CFO.Laura Flowerdew was
appointed as CFO on1October 2018 and

her bonus entitlement will be pro-rated
for the year.

Mick Axtellleft hisrole as CFO on13 July
2018 and, pursuant to therules of the
scheme, he wasnot paid abonus.

The table overleaf represents the
business performance measures which
form 80% of the basis of thebonus. In
addition to these performance measures,
theremaining 20% of each Executive
Directors'bonusisbased onarole-
specific measure which is determined by
the Remuneration Committee.

The achievement of the performance
measures hasbeenreviewed, with
appropriate input from the ARAC,
following the end of the 2018/19 financial
year. The maximum 2018/19 bonus
opportunity against each of the main
performance measuresis shown
overleaf together with the award actually
received. During the year under review,
role-specific objectives were set for

each executive director, as per the

table overleaf.
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Throughout the year Mel Karam

has continued to enhance the
management team strength and
improved succession planning by
filling key strategic openings and
providing development opportunities.
A new strategy isin place for the
development of high potential
employees.

Performance against these objectives,
together with business performance
and bonus scheme entitlement,
dictates the amount of bonus awarded.
Key performance highlights include:

« Step change in volume of operational
activities delivered within the year.

« Creation of anew Asset Management
capability.

» Anew Health & Safety team focusing
onimproving performance as well as
practices.

» Our long-term strategy, Bristol Water....
Clearly’ hasbeen developed and
published.

« Strong market performance in the

second year of Business Retail Market.

Sincejoining the Company as the CFO

on1October 2018, Laura Flowerdew has

restructured the Finance organisation
in Bristol Water in order toimprove
operational and commercial focusand
improved support to the operational
functions. Under her leadership

the finance organisation have been
instrumental in the Price Review
process. Laura has worked closely with
the Chair of the ARAC on improvement
of governance, financial control and
assurance activities.
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Mel Karam was assessed as achieving 8 out of 10.

Mel Karam Scorecard

Category % of Weighted
Category Weighting Sub category Measure Performance | Score Score

Health &
Safety

Financial

ODIs

Customer
Service

PRI9

20.0%

10.0%

15.0%

15.0%

20.0%

11AFR-
employees

12LTIFR-
contractor
rates

2.1Budgeted
Opex

3.1Domestic
Meter
Penetration

32
Unplanned
Customer
Minutes Lost

3.3 Leakage

SIM Ranking

51PR19
Business
Plan
publication

5.2 Ofwat
IAP position

15%

5%

10%

5%

5%

5%

15%

10%

10%

AFR =(No. of accidents x 100,000) / (No. of
hours worked) [employees]. Based ona 12
month rolling period.

LTIFR=(No of Lost Time Injuries x
100,000)/ (No hours worked) [Contractors].
Based on al2monthrolling period.

Budgeted Opex of £65.3m subject to
approval at Board. Judgement to be taken
by the Committee on any major variations
-either overspend or underspend
including where thereis a decision to
invest further than budget envisaged.

Percentage of all properties metered,
measured against internal target

for 2018/19, which islower than the
Regulatory profile for the year toreflect
planned catch up profile.

Asper the modified ODIs from the CMA.

Actualreported Leakage figure using the
updated actual NHHNU.

Service Incentive Mechanism (“SIM”)
position.

NB: Uses full year qualitative data and
17/18 quantitative results for other
companies to measure against league
table position.

Delivering all submissions and regulatory
responses in time and to high quality as
outlined in PR19 Programme timetable,
with a score out of 10 determined by the
Board, having regard to views expressed
by the PR19 Sub-committee.

Outcome of Ofwat'sinitial assessment of
the Business Plan (‘IAP”)

Financial statements

5

68.2m*

56%

1467

4173

10

10

Slow track

0%

0%

27%

41%

0%

100%

0%

100%

100%

0%

0%

1.64%

1.25%

0%

3%

0%

6%

6%

Role
Specific

100.0%

performance as detailed in the Strategic Report.

20.0% 20%

Personal factor score out of 10
determined by the Board, having
regard to the recommendation of the
Committee, including performance on
the following key criteria:

- competently and successfully lead the
Company'sresponses to dealing with
materialissues and events that emerge
in the Company over 18/19;

« lead development of sound strategy
and deliverable implementation
plans for restructuring of outsourcing
arrangements of the Company;

» develop deliverable transformation
plans for the Company to meet
commitments contained in PR19
Business Plan for AMP6;

« recruit, develop, change and retain
(as appropriate) members of the
Company’s management team to
build a sustainable and effective team
with the right skills for the future of
the Company, including succession
planning process for key roles; and

« driving improvements to processes
and effectiveness of the Board and its
subcommittee over 2018/19.

2749%

*included in the £68.2m is an adjustment to the leakage costs; costs were significantly higher than budget in order to achieve the leakage

8 80% 9.6%
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Laura Flowerdew was assessed as achieving 8 out of 10.

Laura Flowerdew Scorecard

Category % of Weighted
Category Weighting Sub category Measure Performance | Score score

Health &
Safety

Financial

ODIs

Customer
Service

PRI19

20.0%

10.0%

15.0%

15.0%

20.0%

11AFR-
employees

12LTIFR-
contractor
rates

2.1Budgeted
Opex

31Domestic
Meter
Penetration

3.2
Unplanned
Customer
Minutes Lost

3.3Leakage

SIM Ranking

51PR19

Business Plan

publication

5.20fwatIAP

position

15%

5%

10%

5%

5%

5%

15%

10%

10%

AFR =(No. of accidents x 100,000) / (No.
of hours worked) [employees]. Based on a
12 month rolling period.

LTIFR=(No of Lost Time Injuries
x100,000) / (No hours worked)
[Contractors] Based on a12 month
rolling period.

Budgeted Opex of £65.3m subject to
approval at Board.

Judgement to be taken by the Committee
onany major variations - either
overspend or underspend including
where thereis a decision to invest
further than budget envisaged.

Percentage of all properties metered,
measured against internal target

for 2018/19, which islower than the
Regulatory profile for the year toreflect
planned catch up profile.

Asper the modified ODIs from the CMA.

Actualreported Leakage figure using the
updated actual NHHNU.

Service Incentive Mechanism (‘SIM”)
position.

NB: Uses full year qualitative data and
2017/18 quantitative results for other
companies to measure against league
table position

Delivering all submissions and regulatory
responses in time and to high quality as
outlined in PR19 Programme timetable,
with a score out of 10 determined by the
Board, having regard to views expressed
by the PR19 Sub-committee.

Outcome of Ofwat's initial assessment
of thebusiness plan (‘IAP”)

Financial statements

68.2m*

56%

1467

4173

10

10

Slow track

0%

0%

27%

41%

0%

100%

0%

100%

100%

0%

0%

0.82%

0.62%

0%

1.5%

0%

3%

3%
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Role
Specific

20.0% 20%

100.0%

performance as detailed in the Strategic Report.

. Undertake areview of the

competencies and capabilities

of the finance team, and develop
aplan for strengthening and
improving performance, in particular
commercial finance, financial
planning and regulatory implications
of financial outcomes.

. Undertake areview of the risk

management framework and set
out proposals for updating and
strengthening the Company’s
approach.

. Review the internal audit activities,

and make recommendations with
regard to improving the Company’s
assurance approach.

4.Review the company wide

governance and financial control
processes, and identify key areas
for improvement and change in
particular the forecastingand
budgeting at totex level.

5.Develop industry knowledge and

profile in order to establish a network
inthe sector.

8

80%

4.8%

*included in the £68.2m is an adjustment to the leakage costs; costs were significantly higher than budget in order to achieve the leakage

13.74%
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Theresulting bonus awards, after
assessment of personal and business
performance elements, for the full year
were:

45.81% of maximum
bonus entitlement,
which is 27.49% of
year end base salary
45.81% of maximum
bonus entitlement,
which is 6.87% of
year end base salary

LFlowerdew

Not eligible for
abonus dueto
resignation

M Axtell

Mel Karam's and Laura Flowerdew’s
bonus was based on their salary at the
end of the year and was pro-rated for
LauraFlowerdew based on her start
date of 1 October 2018.

The Committee determined that the
level of bonus awards above were
appropriate, reflecting the levels of
performance achieved against the
strategic objectives during the year.

Benefits (audited)

For Executive Directors benefits include
the provision of a company car or
equivalent cash allowance, and private
medical insurance. Depending on the
individual employeerole, the benefits
may include provision of company car
and fuel, car and fuel allowances, health
care or child care vouchers.

Pension arrangements (audited)

At 31 March 2019, no Director was
accruingbenefits under the Company’s
defined benefit pension scheme.

Mr Karambecame a member of the
Company designated stakeholder
pension scheme in April 2017 until
his decisiontoleave thisschemein
January 2018, the Company made
contributions equivalent to 6% of
annual base salary to the scheme on
Mr Karam’'s behalf. Contributions paid
to the scheme for the financial year
totalled £nil (2017/18: £10,350).

Ms Flowerdew became a member of
the Company designated stakeholder

Corporate governance

Financial statements

pension scheme on 10ctober 2018 and
contribution paid to the scheme for the
financial year was £4,696, an amount

equivalent to 6% of annual base salary.

Mr Axtell was amember of the
Company designated stakeholder
pension scheme up to 15 July 2018 and
the contribution paid to the scheme was
£2,542, an amount equivalent to 6% of
annual base salary (2017/18: £8,831).

Any newly-appointed Executive
Directorsrecruited externally will be
offered membership of a Company
designated stakeholder pension scheme
or the option of a contribution by the
Company to a personal pension plan.

Interests in shares (audited)

During the year ended 31 March 2019
none of the Directors had any interest in
the ordinary or preference shares of the
Company.
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Single total figure for remuneration of NEDs for 2018/19 (audited)

KLudeman (Chairman)

R Davis

T Tutton

T Hemus (resigned 16 June 2018)

T Wood (resigned 16 June 2018)

P Francis (appointed 25 June 2018)
JBending (appointed 25 October 2018)
JMCcAuliffe (appointed 29 November 2018)
HIchishi®

P Malan®

IDhar ° (appointed 8 May 2018)

Single Figure

5 Noremuneration has been paid by the Company.

The NEDs do not receive a bonus or any other benefits.

2018/19
100

53

9
6
B8

18
14

233

Salary/fees £'000s

2017/18
100

23
38

44
41

246
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Change in CEO’s Remuneration

The following table shows the total remuneration payable by the Company to the appointed CEO. Inline with the Large and Medium-

sized Companies Regulations 2008 this table shows 8 of the required 10 years of information, with the base year being 2012.

Luis Garcia MACK Total Mel Karam
Axtell

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016  2017¢ 20177 2017 2018 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Basesalary 156 185 189 194 194 173 42 215 230 237
Annual bonus
Annual bonus 33 58 54 51 40 35 1 46 83 65

Annual bonus as proportion

21% 31% 29% 26% 21% 24% 26% 21% 36% 28%
of salary

Maximumbonusachievable g0, 000 000 3600 30%  30%  30%  30%  60%  60%

(of base salary)

Egﬁfgﬁggﬁmmum 50%  87%  79%  73%  68% 8%  84%  87%  60%  60%
LTIP earned = - 48 187 - - -

LTIP as proportion of salary 0% 0% 25% 96% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Benefits 8 9 9 10 11 8 1 9 36 14
Pension = = 6 12 12 10 2 12 10

Total remuneration 197 252 306 454 257 226 56 282 359 316

¢ The remuneration for 2016/17 reflects the fact that Mr Garcia resigned as CEO on 15 December 2016. It includes £27k for payments he
was entitled to on leaving under his contract. His bonus was based on the salary excluding these amountsi.e. his salary pro-rated to the
proportion of the year that he was in post (£145Kk).

7 The above table apportions Mick Axtell’'s remuneration to reflect the period that he was interim CEO from 16 December 2016 to 31 March 2017.

Payments under the previous LTIP were made in two equal instalments; the first instalment was paid on 31 December 2015 and
the second instalment was paid on 25 November 2016.
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Percentage Change in Remuneration for

the CEO Compared to all Employees

» Salary - Thesalary paidtothe
individual undertaking therole of
CEOfor 2018/19increased by 3.0%
compared to 2017/18. The average
salary for other employees for 2018/19
increased by 2.8% compared to 2017/18.

- Annualbonus - The bonus awarded
tothe CEO for 2018/19 decreased
by 21.2% compared with the prior
year (2017/18:increase of 79.7%).
Thetotal bonus paid to employees,
excluding the CEO, for the period is
£1.2m compared with £1.2min 2017/18.
The average bonus payment per
employee for those in the lowest grade
group for 2018/19 was £708 (2017/18:
£747).

- Benefits - Benefits, including benefits
inkind, payable to the CEO decreased
by 61.4% for 2018/19 compared with

EBITDA
PBT

Payments to shareholders:

Baselevel dividends

Inter-company loan interest related
dividends

Payments to employees:

Wages and salaries excluding Directors
Wages and salaries including Directors

the prior year (2017/18:increase
358.0%). Benefits have decreased this
year asrelocation and subsistence
costs were paid by Bristol Water on
behalf of the CEO. Benefits payable to
all other eligible staff have remained
constant compared with the prior
year (2017/18: constant).

Relative importance of spend on pay
The Committeeisaware of the
importance of pay across the Company
in delivering the Company’s strategy and
of the level of executive remuneration
inrelation to other cash disbursements.
The table below shows the relationship
between the Company’s financial
performance, payments made to
shareholders and expenditure on payroll.

Year ended 31 March 2019

£m Change compared to prior year %
50.0 -5.7%

164 7.2%

30 -25.0%

33 0%

196 10.7%
20.3 9.7%

Thebaselevel dividend was paid to Bristol Water Core Holdings Limited.

£m

53.0

153

40

33

177
18.5

Year ended 31 March 2018

Bristol Water plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2018/19
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How the remuneration policy will be applied in 2019/20
The same remuneration policy as outlined above will be applied during 2019/20.

Salary

Asoutlined above, areview of the impact of inflation on salaries was conducted in 2018/19 resulting in a 2.2% increase in base
salary for employees with abase salary under £40,000 as of April 2019 and a1.5% increase for employees with abase salary over
£40,000 as of April 2019, including the CEO and CFO. The salaries for 2019/20 for Executive Directors are therefore as follows:

Executive Director Salary 2019/20

CEO Mel Karam £240,454
CFO Laura Flowerdew £152,250
Annualbonus

The annual bonus scheme will continue to operate for all employees. The CEO and CFO will continue to operate under the
separate ACIP scheme.

The maximum bonus for 2019/20 for the CEO is 60% reflecting the leadership required and criticality of the role. The maximum
bonus opportunity for 2019/20 for the CFOis 30%.

The performance weightings have been agreed as follows:

Financial 10%
Outcome Delivery Incentive (‘ODI") 15%
Customer Service 15%
Price Review 2019 (‘PR19") 20%
Health and Safety 20%
Role-specific 20%
Total 100%

Their achievement will be reviewed, with appropriate input from the ARAC at the end of the year.
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2019 LTIP Grant (audited)

Assetout previously anew LTIP was approved by the Board in March 2017 and grant was made to the two Executives on 15 May
2017. The performance periodis1April 2015 to 31 March 2020. The period which the AMP6 LTIP relates to spans 1 April 2017 until
31 March 2020 for Mel Karam and 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2020 for Laura Flowerdew. Due to the resignation of Mick Axtell he is
no longer eligible to benefit from this LTIP scheme. An estimate of the cost accrued to the end of March has been included in the
2018/19 accounts. The LTIP is based on achievement against the following performance conditions:

Totex Performance Measure 20%
Dividend Performance Measure 10%
Outcome Delivery Incentive (‘ODI") Performance Measure 10%
Service Incentive Mechanism ("SIM”") Performance Measure 10%
Company Monitoring Framework Performance Measure 10%
PRI9 Final Determination / Delivery Plan Performance Measure 15%
Asset Management Capability Assessment Performance Measure 25%

The maximum paymentis 34.2% of salary for each year of the performance period the Director is in employment subject to the
achievement of the performance with an expected minimum payment of £55,000pa in respect of Mel Karam.

Assoon as practical following the end of the Performance Period, the Committee shall determine the extent to which the
Performance Condition has been achieved, and shall determine the Award Payment (if any).

50% of the Award Payment shall be paid as soon as practical after the Award Payment Determination Date and the remaining
50% shall be paid as soon as practical after the firstanniversary of the Award Payment Determination Date.
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Illustration of the timeline for the LTIP payment to CEO and CFO is shown below.

Performance period

AMP 6: 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020

1Apri15 31 Mar 16 31 Mar17 31Mar18 31 Mar 19 31 Mar 20 31 Mar 21

+ Meljoined the plan from 1 April 2017

» The maximum payment is 34.2% of
salary for each year with an expected
minimum payment of £55,000p.a.

Mel Karam Deferral

period

» Laurajoined
the plan from

Laura 1October 2018

» The maximum
paymentis
34.2% of salary
for each year

]
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
Flowerdew |
|
|

\ \

50% of 50% of
award award
pays out released
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their report and the audited

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Financial results and dividends

The enhanced financial review
including financial results and KPIs is
contained in the Strategic Report on
pages34to37.

The total dividend paid during the year
ended 31 March 2019 was 105.0p (2017/18:
121.7p) per ordinary share. The Board has
not proposed a final dividend in respect

of the financial year 2018/19 (2017/18: £nil).

The Company’s practice for dividends
toshareholdersis contained in the
Strategic Report on page 37.

Capital structure

Details of theissued share capital are
showninnotes19and 26. The Company
has one class of ordinary shares,

which carry noright to fixed income.
Each ordinary share carries theright

to one vote at general meetings of the
Company.

There areno specificrestrictions on

the size of aholding or on the transfer
of shares, which are both governed by
the general provisions of the Articles of
Association and prevailing legislation.
The Directors are not aware of any
agreements between indirect holders
of the Company’s shares that may
result inrestrictions on the transfer of
securities or on voting rights. No person
has any special rights of control over
the Company’s share capital and all
issued shares are fully paid. The Articles
of Association themselves may be
amended by special resolution of the
shareholders.

Under its Articles of Association and
the Companies Acts, the Company has
inissue 5,998,025 ordinary sharesas
disclosed in note 10. All the ordinary
shares are owned by Bristol Water Core
Holdings Limited, which isitself a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Bristol Water
Group Limited group. In addition, the
Company hasinissue 12,500,000 8.75%
irredeemable cumulative preference
shares of £1 each, details of which are
disclosed innotes19 and 26.

Going Concern

Inassessing the going concernbasis, the
Directors have considered the cash flow
and financial ratios projections of the
Company for the foreseeable future.

Thekey risks to the Company
areregulatory requirements and
developments, operational events and
performance problems. The Company is
well placed torespond to the near future
events, with cash of £171m available

and uncommitted borrowing facilities
of £770m as at 31 March 2019. During
2018/19 the Company entered into three
new credit facilities totalling £125.0m

of which £50.0m has an expiry date of

21 June 2023, £50.0m with an expiry
date of 14 June 2028 and £25.0m with

an expiry date of 24 August 2028.1In
addition, the maturity dates of the HSBC
facility A & Bwere extended by one year
to2December 2021 and 2 December
2023 respectively.

The Company is not immune to
the continuing financial market

uncertaintiesin the medium term,
which have the potential to impactits
ability to obtain appropriate financing

to deliver the current and future capital
programmes. The Directors have
considered the viability of the Company
in accordance with the requirements for
aviability statement which can be found
onpages38to43.

The Directorsreport that, after making
enquiries, they have concluded that

the Company has adequate resources

or the reasonable expectation of

raising further resources asrequired to
continue in operation for the foreseeable
future.

Accordingly, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the
Financial Statements.

Financial Risk Management

Details of financial risks faced by the
Company and therelated mitigating
factorsare included innote 21 to the
financial statements.
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Directors and their interests
The Directors who served during the year
or were appointed before this report were:

KLudeman, Chairman

M Karam, Chief Executive Officer

T Tutton, Senior INED

P Francis, INED (appointed 25 June 2018)
HIchishi, NED

P Malan, NED

IDhar, NED (appointed 8 May 2018)

L Flowerdew, Chief Financial Officer
(appointed 1 October 2018)

JBending, INED (appointed 25 October
2018)

JMcAuliffe, INED (appointed 29
November 2018)

M Axtell, Chief Financial Officer
(resigned 13 July 2018)

T Hemus, INED (resigned 19 June 2018)
T Wood, INED (resigned 19 June 2018)

In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, all Directors will offer
themselves for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting in September 2019.

Colin Caldwell resigned as Company
Secretary on 29 May 2019. Helen
Hancock was appointed Company
Secretary on 30 May 2019.

Service contracts

All current Executive Directors have
service contracts, notice periods

are detailed in the Remuneration
Committee report on page 93. Each of
the NEDsis provided with a Letter of
Appointment which sets out the terms
of their appointment.

Strategic report

Other interests

Atnotime during the year hasany
Director had a material interest in
any contract of significance with the
Company.

Theinterests in shares and other
contracts of Mr Ichishi with other
companies within the Itochu group are
not disclosed within thisreport.

Theinterests in shares and other
contracts of Mr Malan and Mr Dhar with
other companies within the iCON group
are not disclosed within thisreport.

Ultimate Parent Company and
Controlling Party

The details of ultimate parent company
and controlling party, and the smallest
and largest group in which this
company is consolidated, are provided
innote 30 to the financial statements.

Research and development

The Company undertakesresearch and
development projectsinrelation toits
business. Expenditure during the year

amounted to £42,000 (2017/18: £35,000).

Financial instruments

The details of the financial instruments
are provided in note 3.15 to the financial
statements.

Instrument of Appointment and
Regulatory Accounts

Inaccordance with its Instrument

of Appointment made under the
Water Industry Act1991 asamended,

Corporate governance

Financial statements

the Directors are of the opinion that

the Company isin compliance with
paragraph 3.1 of Condition K of that
Instrument, which relates to the control
of the assets of the Appointed Business.
Copies of the Regulatory Accounts
required under the Instrument of
Appointment are available from the
Company Secretary.

Directors’ Qualifying Third Party
Indemnity Provisions

During the year, and to the date of
approval of the financial statements, the
Company hadin force a qualifying third
party indemnity provision in favour of
all Directors of the Company against any
liability which may arise in respect of
their current or past duties as Director of
the Company or its holding companies,
subject to the conditions set out in the
Companies Act 2006.

Auditors and Disclosure of Information
to Auditors

Each of the persons whois a Director

at the date of approval of this report
confirms that:

« sofar as the Director isaware, thereis
norelevant audit information of which
the Company’s auditors are unaware;
and

« the Director has taken all the steps that
they ought to have taken as a Director
in order to make themself aware of
any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of that information.
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This confirmation is given and should
be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of s418 of the Companies Act
2006.

Employees

Information on employment policies
and practices is contained within the
‘Best peopleright culture’ part of the
Strategic Report on pages 28 to 29.

Political donations

Bristol Water's policy is not to make any
donations for political purposesin the
UK or todonate to EU political parties.
Accordingly, for the financial year under
review, no political donations were made.

Environmental matters

The quality of our water sources,
particularly in the Mendip lakes, canbe
impacted due to nutrients and sediment
that can enter the watercourses from
land and activitiesin the catchment area
of the source. We have been working
withlocallandholders and farmers

to identify where such issues canbe
addressed and through our partnership
programmes with key stakeholders,
such as the Mendip Lakes Partnership,
we are able to work together on these
issues.

The partnersinvolved include Natural
England, the EA, Wessex Water, Avon
Wildlife Trust, Farming & Wildlife
Advisory Group and Catchment
Sensitive Farming. We are continuing
to hold arange of successful farm
engagement and training sessions

with landholders in the key catchment
areas and we have supported farmers to
invest in water protection measures on
their landholdings.

We monitor the quality of water in

the Mendip reservoirs and during the
period of our catchment management
programme this monitoring has
indicated a gradual reduction in the
level of algal blooms experienced in
these water sources.

We monitor our protection and
enhancement of the natural
environment through aninnovative
approach that we have called the
Biodiversity Index. This quantifies an
environmental value of our sites and
creates a 'direction of travel" for the way
we manage our operational activities
and property, helping us to protect

and enhance the natural environment
by using the Index to quantify the
impact of our actions on the broader
environment. We will continue to
develop this approach through the
coming years, using the calculator tool
tomeasure our performance on habitat
protection and enhancement.

We monitor all of our discharges which
havebeen consented by the EA to
ensure full compliance, where there
are failures these arereviewed and
remedial measures are implemented.

Greenhouse gas emissions
We use almost 80 million kilowatt
hours of electrical energy to treat and

distribute water. This accounts for
almost 90% of our total carbon footprint.
We can play our part inreducing the
carbon emissions associated with
energy use by improved pumping
efficiency; reducing leakage and
helping our customers use water more
efficiently. This, together with improved
energy efficiency of our buildings

and vehicle fleet, and development of
renewable energy sources, enables us
tomanage those aspects of our carbon
footprint that we can control.

We take partin the Carbon Reduction
Commitment, a UK initiative for large
energy usersto cut their carbon
footprint. Our carbon footprint has
reduced over the year from 34.2k tonnes
of CO, equivalent to 277k tonnes of CO,
equivalent.

We use the Standard Water UK
calculation methodology to calculate
our carbon emissions shownas a
normalised kg CO, per Ml of water into
supply. In 2018/19, this decreased to
263C0O,e/MIfrom 336C0O,e/MIin 2017/18.
Thismeasure hasreduced significantly
since 2010 thanks to our use of
renewable energy, our energy efficiency
programmes and a national reduction
in the carbon emissions associated with
energy use.

Outlook

Commentary on the main drivers of
future profitability is contained in the
Strategic Report on page 43.
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Disclosuresrequired under Listing Rule
9.84R

The information required tobe
disclosed by Listing Rule 9.8 4R canbe
found on the following pages:

A statement of the amount of interest
capitalised in accordance with IAS23
canbe found innotel1l.Inline with
current UK tax legislation, the amount is
fully deductible against the Company’s
corporation tax liability. Tax relief is
£73,923(2017/18:£139,538).

Strategic report

Details of long term incentive schemes
canbe found on page 107 and 108.

Details of significant contracts between
the Company and Directors canbe
found on page 110. During the year, there
were no contracts for the provision

of services to the Company by a
controlling shareholder.

There areno other disclosures tobe
made under Listing Rule 9.84.

The statement of the Directors in respect
of the Annual Report, and the statement
of Directors'responsibilities are
contained within the Directors’ Report
onpages109and113.

Asrequired by the UK Corporate
Governance Code and the Bristol

Water Code, as set out in the Corporate
Governance Reporton pages 66to 73,
the Directors confirm that they consider
that the Annual Report, taken asa whole,
isfair,balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s
performance, business model and
strategy. When arriving at this position
the Board was assisted by anumber of
processes including the following:

- the Annual Reportis drafted by
appropriate senior management with
overall co-ordination by the Chief
Financial Officer;

« communications to ensure
consistency across sections;

« an extensive verification process

Corporate governance

Financial statements

isundertaken to ensure factual
accuracy;

« comprehensive reviews of drafts of
the Report are undertaken by the
Executive Directors and other senior
management;

« thefinal draftisreviewed by the ARAC
prior to consideration by the Board;
and

« review individually, and collectively,

by Board members prior to publication.
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Statement of Directors’
responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the Annual Report including
the Remuneration Committee Report
and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the Directors

to prepare financial statements for

each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the financial
statements in accordance with

United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (reflecting United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law). Under company law the
Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of

the state of affairs of the Company and
of the profit or loss of the Company for
that period. In preparing these financial

statements, the Directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

« state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements respectively;
and

» prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unlessitis
inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for
keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain
the company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy
atany time the financial position of

the Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements
and the Remuneration Committee
Report comply with the Companies

Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Directors areresponsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the
Company’s website. Legislation in
the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors consider that the Annual
Report and accounts, taken as a whole, is
fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s
performance, business model and
strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names
and functions are listed on pages 60
and 61 confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge:

- the financial statements, which have
been prepared in conformity with
Financial Reporting Standard 101,

give atrue and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit
of the Company; and

« the Strategic Report contained in the
Annual Reportincludes a fair review
of the development and performance
of the business and the position of the
Company, together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties
thatit faces.

Approved by order of the Board, and
signed onitsbehalfby:

Helen Hancock
Company Secretary
5 July 2019
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INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Restated

Note £m £m
Revenue 326 1216 1165
Operating costs 7 (94.8) (855)
Exceptional operating income / (costs) 7 31 25)
Total net operating costs 917) (88.0)
Operating profit 299 285
Other net interest payable and similar charges 8 (12.4) 12D
Dividends on 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares an @D
Net interest payable and similar charges (13.5) (13.2)
Profit before tax 164 153
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 9 (CA)] (36)
Profit for the financial year 14.3 11.7
Earnings per ordinary share 10 238.3p 1950p
All activities above relate to the continuing activities of the Company:.
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Restated

Note £m £m
Profit for the financial year 143 117
Other comprehensive (expense) / income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Actuarial (loss) / gain on retirement benefit surplus 24 373 09
Remeasurements of defined benefit pension scheme 9 129 06)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss
Change in the fair value of the interest rate swaps 20 OD 15
Attributable deferred taxation 9 03
Other comprehensive (expense) / income for the year, net of tax (24.5) 15
Total comprehensive (expense) / income for the year 10.2) 132
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
at 31 March 2019 2019 2018
Restated
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 6294 5994
Intangible assets 12 105 86
Other investments - Loans to a UK holding Company 13 685 685
Deferred income tax assets 23 52 54
Retirement benefit surplus 24 95 335
7231 7154
Current assets
Inventory 14 16 16
Trade and other receivables 15,20 278 267
Cash and cash equivalents 16 171 150
465 433
Assets classified as held for sale 17 - 02
Total assets 7696 7589
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings and derivatives 19,20 (3476) (3255)
8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares 19,26 (12.5) (125)
Deferred income 22 (79.9) (780)
Government grants 0.3) 03)
Deferred income tax liabilities 23 (63.2) (62.2)
(5035) (4785)
Current liabilities
Current portion of borrowings and derivatives 19,20 (05) (O5)
Trade and other payables 18 404 (387)
Current portion of deferred income 22 a17) 1)
426) (40.8)
Total liabilities (546.1) (519.3)
Net assets 2235 2396
Equity
Called-up share capital 26 6.0 60
Share premium account 44 44
Other reserves 5.8 Bi5
Retained earnings 2073 2237
Total Equity 2235 2396

The financial statements of Bristol Water plc, registered number 2662226 on pages 115 to 156, were approved by the Board of Directors

onb July 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Mel Karam, Chief Executive Officer and Laura Flowerdew, Chief Financial Officer

116 | Bristol Water plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2018/19

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Share Capital
Called up premium redemption  Hedging Retained
sharecapital  account reserve reserve earnings Total
£m f£m £m £m f£m £m
Balance at1 April 2017 (Restated) 60 44 58 15) 2190 2337
Profit for the year - - - - 1.7 11.7
Other comprehensive income for the year:
Actuarial gain recognised in respect of
retirement benefit obligations - - - - 09 09
Remeasurement of defined benefit scheme - - = = 06) (€19
Fair value of interest rate swap = - - 15 - 15
Attributable deferred taxation - = = 0.3 - 03
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 12 120 132
Ordinary dividends - = = - (73) (73)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 (Restated) 60 44 58 03 2237 2396
Balance as at1 April 2018 (Restated) 6.0 44 58 03 2237 2396
Profit for the year = - - = 143 14.3
Other comprehensive income for the year:
Actuarial loss recognised in
respect of retirement benefit obligations - - - = (373) (373)
Remeasurement of defined benefit scheme = = = = 129 129
Fair value of interest rate swaps - - - ©D = ©n
Attributable deferred taxation
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - OD 10D (10.2)
Termination of interest rate swaps - - - 04 - 04
Ordinary dividends - - - - ®63) ©.3)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 60 44 58 = 2073 2235

The Board has not proposed a final dividend in respect of the financial year 2018/19 (2017/18: £nil).

During the year the board approved dividends totalling £6.3m, representing £3.3m in relation to the intercompany loan with Bristol
Water Holdings UK Limited (BWHUK") and £30m which was to repay, in part, short term funding provided by iCON Funds and Itochu
to BWHUK.
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Forthe year ended 1 March 2019 2019 e
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 164 153
Adjustments for:
Deferred income amortisation 22 a7 16
Depreciation 205 193
Amortisation of intangibles 27 24
Impairment of fixed assets 7 - 47
Difference between pension charges and contributions paid 24 0.8 04
Loss on disposal of assets 7 - 03
Profit on disposal of assets and liabilities held for sale 7 3D 22)
Interest income 8 @an @D
Interest expense 8 189 186
Pension interest income 8 3 13
Increase in inventory = (05)
Increase in trade and other receivables 12 4.7
Increase in trade and other creditors and provisions 10 38
Cash generated from operations 489 504
Interest paid 11.8) 11.8)
Corporation taxes paid 22) 29
Net cash inflows from operating activities 349 357
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (52.9) (55.2)
Contributions received 22 37 42
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets = 01
Proceeds from sale of assets and liabilities held for sale 35 o1
Interestreceived 8 41 41
Net cash used in investing activities 416) 377)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 28 970 299
Transaction costs related to loans and borrowings 28 1.0 02
Payment of finance lease liabilities 28 04 (oY)
Payment of loans and borrowings 28 (78.9) (200)
Termination of swap (0.5)
Preference dividends paid 8 an 1D
Equity dividends paid 6.3 (73)
Net cash generated from financing activities 88 09
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 21 1D
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 16 150 161
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 16 171 150
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Bristol Water plc (‘the Company”) is aregulated water only
supply company holding an instrument of appointment
as set out by the Water Industry Act1991. The Company is
the licensed monopoly provider of water servicesin the
Bristol area, and as such is regulated by the Water Services
Regulation Authority - Ofwat.

Bristol Water plc is a public company, limited by shares with
irredeemable preference shares and debenture stock listed
on the London Stock Exchange.

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in England. The
address of its registered office is Bridgwater Road, Bristol, BS13
7AT, England.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Company are prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) measured at fair
value and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
101, Reduced Disclosure Framework - Disclosure exemptions
from EU-adopted IFRS for qualifying entities (FRS 101) and
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity

with FRS 101 requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree

of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.

With effect from 1 April 2018 the Company has adopted IFRS
15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (‘IFRS 15”) and
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments’ (TFRS 9”). IFRS 15 has been
applied fully retrospectively and accordingly the comparative
figures for 2017/18 have been restated. The impact of adopting
IFRS 15 and the changes to accounting policies are set out

in note 5. There was no material impact on the Company’s
financial statements as a result of adopting IFRS 9.

The following exemptions from the requirements of IFRS
have been applied in the preparation of these financial
statements, in accordance with FRS101:

- Requirements of IFRS 13 Fair value measurement’
(disclosure of fair value techniques and inputs).

- Paragraph 38 of IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements’
comparative information requirements in respect of:

(i) paragraph 79(@)(iv) of IAS 1;

(ii) paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and

Equipment’;and

(ill) paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets’.

- The following paragraphs of IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements:

- 10(f) (a statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period when an entity
applies an accounting policy retrospectively or
makes a retrospective restatement of items in its
financial statements or when it reclassifies items in
its financial statements);

- 16 (statement of compliance with all IFRS);

- 38B-D (additional comparative information); and

- 134-136 (capital management disclosures).

- Paragraph 30 and 31 of IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes
in accounting estimates and errors' (requirement for the
disclosure of information when an entity has not applied a
new IFRS that has been issued but is not effective).

- Paragraph 17 of IAS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’ (key
management compensation).

- Therequirements in IAS 24, Related party disclosures’ to
disclose related party transactions entered into between two
or more members of a group.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the significant accounting policies applied
by the Company in preparing these financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all years
presented, unless otherwise stated:

31 Goingconcern

The Company meets its day-to-day working capital
requirements through its cash reserves and borrowings. The
Company’s forecasts and projections show that the Company
will be able to operate within the level of its current cash
reserves and borrowing facilities. After making enquiries,

the Directors have an expectation that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. The Company therefore continues to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.
Further information on the Company’s borrowingsis given in
note 315andnote19.

3.2 Revenue

Revenue comprises charges to direct customers and retailers
for water and other services, exclusive of VAT Revenue is
recognised as the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from metered water supply is based on water
consumption, and is recognised upon delivery of water. It
includes an estimate of the water consumption for customers
of both the Company and retailers whose meters were not
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read at the reporting date. For customers the estimate covers
the period between the last meter reading and the reporting
date, and for retailers the last month of the period. The
estimate is recorded within accrued income.

Revenue from unmetered water supply is based on either the
rateable value of the property or on an assessed volume of
water supplied. Cash received from customersis held in trade
and other payables and recognised to the income statement
over the period to which the bill relates.

Revenue from developers in respect of the network and
other assetsis recognised over the period of time water
services are expected to be provided though this connection.
Unrecognised revenue is held in deferred income.

Revenue from other servicesis recognised upon completion
of therelated services.

3.3 Research and development

Research and development expenditure is charged to the
Income Statement as incurred. Development expenditure is
capitalised only when it meets the recognition criteria of [AS38.

34 Exceptional items

Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial
statements where it is necessary to do so to provide further
understanding of the financial performance of the group.
They are items that are material either because of their size
or their nature and are presented separately within the line
items to which they best relate.

35 Distributions to shareholders

Dividends and other distributions to shareholders are
reflected in financial statements when approved by
shareholders in a general meeting, except for interim
dividends which are included in financial statements when
paid by the Company. Accordingly, proposed dividends are
notincluded as a liability in the financial statements.

3.6 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Tangible assets are stated at historic purchase costless
accumulated depreciation and comprise infrastructure assets
and other assets. The cost of assets includes their purchase
cost together with incidental expenses of acquisition and

any directly attributable labour costs and salaries which

are capitalised. Repairs and maintenance of assets is capital
expenditure when it is probable future economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use

Corporate governance Financial statements

are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs are capitalised using a weighted average
interest rate of applicable borrowings.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged, where appropriate, on a straight-
line basis on the original cost of assets over their expected
economic lives. Freehold land is not depreciated.
Depreciation of long-life assets commences when the assets
are broughtinto use.

Assets are depreciated after commissioning over the
following estimated economic lives:

Infrastructure assets 23to 213 years
Operational properties 310100 years
and structures
Plant and equipment
comprising:
Treatment, pumping 2to 30 years
and general plant
Computer hardware, 4tol5years
communications, meters
and telemetry equipment
Vehicles and mobile plant 4tol5 years
Assets under construction Not depreciated

The assets remaining useful lives are reviewed periodically
and adjusted prospectively, where appropriate.

Impairment

The values of fixed assets are reviewed annually to determine
whether their carrying amounts exceed their fair values in
use. Where such an excess is believed to exist it is treated as
an impairment loss and charged to the Income Statement.

Disposal

An asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Income
Statement when the asset is derecognised.

3.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised
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and expenditure isreflected in the income statement in the year
which the expenditure is incurred.

Assets are depreciated after commissioning over the following
estimated economic lives:

Computer software 3tol0years

Assets under construction Not amortised

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their
useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is

an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite life isreviewed at least at the end

of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life

or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates.

Disposal

An asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Income
Statement when the asset is derecognised.

3.8 Other Investments

Loans made to UK holding companies within the Bristol

Water Group Limited group of companies are recognised
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. In accordance with IFRS
9, other investments are considered to be alow credit risk where
they have alow risk of default and the issuing company has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
thenear term.

3.9 Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax, is provided at
amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) for the year,and
any adjustment to tax payable or receivable in respect of the
prior years, using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Advance Corporation Tax (‘ACT”) in respect of dividends in
previous years is written off to the Income Statement unless

it can be recovered against mainstream corporation tax in the
financial year or with reasonable assurance in the future. Credit
is taken for ACT previously written off when it is recovered
against mainstream corporation tax liabilities.

Deferred tax isrecognised in respect of all temporary timing

differences arising between the carrying amount of assets for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, carried forward tax credits or
taxlosses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on an
undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply
when the related asset is realised or liability is settled, based
on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
alegal enforcement right exists to that effect, the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxation authority and that authority permits
the Company to make a single net payment.

Tax is charged or credited to other comprehensive income

if it relates to items that are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income. Similarly, tax is charged or credited
directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or charged
directly to equity. Otherwise tax is recognised in the Income
Statement.

310 Pension costs

The Company operates both defined benefit and defined
contribution pension arrangements. Defined benefit

pension arrangements are provided through the Company’s
membership of the Water Companies’ Pension Scheme (‘WCPS")
via a separate section.

Defined benefit scheme

Defined benefit scheme liabilities are measured by an
independent actuary using the projected unit method and
discounted at the current rate of return on high quality
corporate bonds of equivalent term and currency to the liability.
Scheme running costs are charged to operating profit.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period or immediately if the benefits
have vested. Past service costs arising on a plan settlement or a
curtailment are included immediately within operating costs.

The amount charged or credited to finance costs is a net interest
amount calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the
net defined benefit liability or asset.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments,
changes in actuarial assumptions and amendments to pension
plans are immediately recognised in the period in which they
occur in other comprehensive income.
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Defined contribution schemes

Costs of defined contribution pension schemes are charged

to the Income Statement in the period in which they fall due.
Administration costs of defined contribution schemes are borne
by the Company.

311 Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Inventory valuation is determined using the weighted
average cost method. Following established practice in

the water industry, no value is included in the financial
statements for water held in store.

3.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance. See note 4
for a description of the Company’s impairment policies.

3.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial
Position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

3.14 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their
carryingamountis to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
stated at the lower of carry amount and fair value less costs to sell.

3.15 Financial instruments

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost.

The net costs of issue of loans (being expenses incurred less
premiums received) where material are amortised over the lives
of therespective loans and disclosed within net borrowings.
Immaterial amounts are written off as incurred. Index-linked
loans are valued at cost plus accrued indexation.

Hedge accounting

The Company documents at the inception of the transaction
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking a hedge transaction. The Company also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used

in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows of hedged items.
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Derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability. The
full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-
current asset or liability if the remaining maturity of the
hedged item is more than 12 months and, as a current asset
or liability, if the maturity of the hedged item is less than 12
months.

The effective portion of the swaps’ fair value movements
isrecognised in the other comprehensive income. Should
there be any ineffectiveness; the ineffective portion of the fair
value movements would be recognised immediately in the
Income Statement within finance charges.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Company
revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
expires, is terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. Accordingly the cumulative gains/losses
previously recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income are reclassified immediately to the Income Statement.

3.16 Leased assets

Assets financed by leasing agreements that transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset
to the lessee are capitalised and depreciated over the shorter

of their estimated useful lives and the lease term. The capital
portion of the lease commitment is included in current or
non-current creditors as appropriate. The capital element of the
lease rental is deducted from the obligation to the lessor as paid.
The interest element of lease rentals and the depreciation of the
relevant assets are charged to the Income Statement.

Operating lease rental payments are charged to the Income
Statement as incurred over the term of the lease.

3.17 Grants

Government grants received are shown within deferred
income on the Statement of Financial Position and the
related amortisation is recognised in the Income Statement
over the useful life of the relevant assets.

Grants in respect of expenditure charged to the Income
Statement are recognised when the related rechargeable
expenditureisincurred.

3.18 Trade and other payables

Creditors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

3.19 Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a legal

or constructive obligation as a result of past event and it

is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are discounted if
the effect of the time value of money is considered material.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates
and judgments are continually evaluated and are based

on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

Revenue Recognition

An estimate of water consumption by metered customers
since the date of the last bill and the corresponding income
that remains not billed (accrued income) is required to be
made each year. The accrual is based on metered volumes,
consumption already billed and tariffs. The accrued income
is £14.5m (2017/18 £12.7m). £12.7m (2017/18 £10.8m) is included
in note 15 prepayments and accrued income and £1.8m
(2017/18 £1.9m) relates to Water 2 Business Limited, a related
party company and is included within amounts owed by
group undertakings in note 15.

In accordance with [FRS 15 revenue from customers is

only recognised when it is probable that the Company will
collect the consideration to which it is entitled. Management
considers the payment history of customers and does not
recognise revenue where no payment has been received

for more than two years. Once consideration is received the
revenue is recognised.

Revenue recognition - developer contributions

Under previous reporting periods, contributions received

in respect of network and other assets were recognised in
line with the provisions of International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC") 18: Transfer of Assets
from Customers. Under this approach, contributions were
amortised to operating expenses over similar lives to the
associated asset.

Under IFRS 15 these contributions have been recognised as
revenue and as such must be recognised as the performance
obligation is satisfied. The performance obligation is deemed
to be the authorised connection to water services which

will be satisfied over the period of time water services are
expected to be provided through this connection. We have
estimated the average connection will be in place for a period
of 60 years which is based on the useful economic life of
domestic properties and building industry expectations.

Classification of costs between operating expenditure and
capital expenditure

Expenditure on assets can be for repairs, maintenance or
enhancement, and judgement is required to determine whether
it should be classified as operating expenditure or capital
expenditure.

The Company incurs a high level of infrastructure maintenance
expenditure. Each infrastructure scheme is reviewed to
determine the accounting treatment as either capital or
operating expenditure, depending on the nature of the scheme.
Consideration is given to a range of factors, including the degree
of upgrade which results from the maintenance project, the
frequency of the maintenance relative to the overall life of the
underlying asset, whether the maintenance is likely to result in
increased useful life or enhanced working standard or capacity
of the asset, and if the maintenance is expected toresult in a
separate component of infrastructure asset. The results are
assessed against the requirements of accounting standards.

Payroll costs are allocated to cost centres that reflect the nature
of activity being undertaken. A judgement is applied, based on
the activity for each cost centre, of an appropriate proportion

to capitalise. This is a formal procedure under which figures are
reviewed and assessed to ensure they meet the required criteria
(directly attributable to an asset, probable future economic
benefit and can be measured reliably). See note 7 for capitalised
payroll costs

Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment

The annual depreciation charge for property, plant and
equipment is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful
economic lives and residual values of the assets. These are
amended when necessary toreflect current estimates, based
on technological advancement, future investments, economic
utilisation and the physical condition of the assets. See note 11 for
the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment and
note 36 for the useful economic lives for each class of assets.

Useful economic lives of intangible assets

The annual amortisation for computer software is sensitive to
changes in the estimated useful economic lives of the assets. These
are amended when necessary toreflect current estimates, based
on technological advancement, future investments and economic
utilisation. See note 12 for the carrying amount of the intangible
assets and note 37 for the useful economic lives of the assets.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Company makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade
and other receivables. When assessing impairment of trade and
other receivables, management considers factors including the
credit rating of the receivable, the ageing profile of the receivables
and historical experience. The Company applies the [FRS 9
Financial Instruments (TFRS 9"). simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets. Tomeasure
the expected creditlosses, trade receivables have been group
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based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
sales over a period of 48 months before 31 March 2019 or 1 April
2018 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The Company reviews current
and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customer to settle the receivable but
historical loss rates have not been adjusted as the impact is
immaterial.

See note 15 for the net carrying amount of the receivables and
associated impairment provision.

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Company has an obligation to pay pension benefits

to certain employees. The present value of the obligation
depends on a number of factors, including; life expectancy,
asset valuations and the discount rate on corporate bonds.
Management estimates these factors and receives advice from
the pension scheme administrators in determining the net
pension obligation in the statement of financial position The
assumptions reflect historical experience and current trends.
In June 2018 the scheme purchased a bulk annuity policy to
insure the benefits for members in the Section. Following this
the method for valuing the liabilities of the pension scheme
hasremained the same however the scheme assets, in the form
of the insurance policy, now match the value of the liabilities
(before GMP equalisation).

The Company has included within valuation of the scheme
liabilities an estimate for removing the inequalities in members’
benefits as aresult of different Guaranteed Minimum Pensions
for men and women (‘GMP Equalisation”). This has been
calculated as 06% of the defined benefit obligation as at 31
March 2019.

In March 2016 the scheme closed to future benefit accrual and
asaresult any surplus on the scheme would only be available
to the Company as refund rather than as a reduction in future
contributions. Under current UK tax legislation an income

tax deduction of 35% is applied to arefund from a UK pension
scheme, before it is passed to the employer, which is shown asa
restriction to the value of the net pension scheme asset.

See note 24 for the disclosures of the defined benefit
pension scheme.

Corporate governance

Financial statements
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5. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 on the Company’s financial statements. The Company has elected to apply
full retrospective accounting for IFRS 15 and as such the comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2018 has also been
restated. In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening Statement of Financial Position was prepared as at 1 April
2017. This note also discloses the new accounting policies that have been applied from 1 April 2018, where they are different to those

applied in previous periods. There was no material impact on the Company’s financial statements as a result of adopting IFRS 9

Financial Instruments (‘IFRS 9").

Reconciliation of equity 31 March 2017 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
asat1April 2017 as originally restated as originally restated
and 31 March 2018 presented IFRS 15 (unaudited) presented IFRS15 (unaudited)
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and
equipment 5734 = 5734 5994 5994
Intangible assets 51 51 86 86
Investments 685 - 685 685 685
Deferred tax assets C 5 06 57 48 06 54
Retirement benefit surplus 323 323 335 - 335
6844 06 685.0 7148 06 7154
Current assets
Inventory 11 11 16 16
Trade and other receivables B 22.3 (eX2)) 219 271 (o2 26.7
Cash and cash equivalents 161 - 161 150 150
395 04 391 437 04 433
Assets classified as
held for sale 81 - 81 02 > 02
Total assets 7320 0.2 7322 7587 0.2 7589
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5. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Reconciliation of equity
asat1April 2017
and 31 March 2018

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings and derivatives

8.75% irredeemable
cumulative
preference shares

Deferred income
Government grants

Deferred tax liabilities

Current liabilities

Current portion of
borrowings and derivatives

Trade and other payables

Deferred income

Liabilities classified as
held for sale

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Called-up share capital
Share premium account
Otherreserves
Retained earnings

Total Equity

Strategic report Corporate governance Financial statements
31 March 2017 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
as originally restated as originally restated
presented IFRS15 (unaudited) presented IFRS15 (unaudited)
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m

(2909) (2909) (3255) (3255)

(125) 125) 125) 125)

A (71.8) (36) (754) (74.3) 37 (780)
0.3 03 0.3 0.3

(614) (614) ©622) 622)

(436.9) 36) (4405) 474.8) 3.7) 4785)

(20.8) (20.8) (©5) (O5)

(346) (346) (387) (387)

A @7 01 18 a7 01 1e
(571 01 (570) 40.9) 01 (40.8)

(10) 10)

(495.0) 35) (498.5) (515.7) 36 (519.3)

2370 3.3) 2337 2430 349 2396

60 6.0 60 6.0

44 44 44 44

43 43 55 55

A,B 222.3 33) 2190 2271 34) 2237
2370 33) 2337 2430 349 2396
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Reconciliation of total comprehensive Year to Year to

income for the year ended 31 March 2018 31 March 2018

31 March 2018 as originally presented IFRS15 restated (unaudited)
Note £m £m £m

Revenue AB 1149 16 1165

Operating costs AB (838) a7 (855)

Exceptional operating costs (25) 25)

Total net operating costs (86.3) 17 (88.0)

Operating profit 286 (OX)) 285

Net interest payable and similar charges 12D 12D

Dividends on 8.75% irredeemable cumulative

preference shares @D 1D

Net interest payable and similar charges 13.2) = 13.2)

Profit before tax 154 (OX)) 153

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 36) (36)

Profit for the financial year 11.8 D 1.7

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit

andloss

Actuarial gain on retirement benefit surplus 09 0S

Re-measurement of defined benefit

pension scheme 06) 06)

Items that may be subsequently reclassified

to profit and loss

Change in the fair value of the interest rate

swaps 15 15

Attributable deferred taxation 03 0.3

Other comprehensive income for the year,

net of tax 15 - 15

Total comprehensive income for the year 133 D 132
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5. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2017 and 31
March 2018 and total comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 March 2018

A Accounting for contributions received
Under the treatment allowed by IFRIC 18: Transfer of Assets

from Customers, contributions received in respect of network

and other assets were amortised to operating expenses over
similar lives to the associated assets.

Under IFRS 15 these contributions have been recognised as
revenue and as such must be recognised as the performance
obligation is satisfied. The performance obligation is deemed
tobe the authorised connection to water services which

will be satisfied over the period of time water services are
expected to be provided through this connection.

Toreflect this change in policy at 31 March 2018, an increase
of £36m (1 April 2017: £35m) was recognised in deferred
income as aresult of the change in amortisation period.

Profit before tax for the year ended 31 March 2018 in the
comparative Income Statement was decreased by £0.1m.
This decrease consists of an increase in revenues of £1.6m
and increased operating expenses of £1.7m.

6. REVENUE

Appointed income

Household - measured
Household - unmeasured
Non-household - measured
Non-household - unmeasured
Contributions from developers
Third party services

Rentalincome

Non-appointed income
Recreations
Rentalincome

Other

Corporate governance

Financial statements

B Identifying contracts

In previous reporting periods, the consideration from supply
of water was recognised upon delivery of water to customers.
A subsequent estimate was then made of the recoverable
value of the associated trade receivable.

Under IFRS 15 a contract, and its subsequent revenue, is only
recognised when collection of the consideration dueis
probable. An adjustment has been made to reverse revenue
previously recognised for customers where consideration has
not been received for more than two years.

Toreflect this change in policy at 31 March 2018, a decrease
of £04m (1 April 2017: £04m) was recognised in trade
receivables. This decrease consists of a decrease in trade
receivables of £10m (1 April 2017: £10m) offset by decrease in
bad debt provision of £06m (1 April 2017: £06m).

C Deferred taxation

The adjustments per notes A and B lead to different temporary
taxation differences. In line with the Company’s accounting
policies, the Company has accounted for such differences and
recognised the related net deferred tax liability.

At the date of transition to IFRS 15, a decrease of £06m (1 April
2017:£0.6m) was recognised in deferred tax assets.

Year to Year to
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
restated
£m £m
446 396
46.2 470
250 241
03 04
17 16
18 20
038 07
1204 1154
0.7 07
0.2 01
0.3 03
12 11
1216 1165

Appointed income is that earned under Bristol Water's licence to supply water. Non-appointed income relates to activities that do

not require a water supply licence.
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7. OPERATING COSTS

(a) Operating costs includes -

Wages and salaries, including termination benefits
Social security costs
Defined contribution scheme costs (note 25)
Defined benefit scheme costs (note 24)
Total payroll cost
Less capitalised as tangible and intangible assets
Net staff cost
Inventory recognised as an expense
Depreciation of tangible assets (note 11)
On owned assets
Onleased assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
On owned assets (note 12)
Other operating charges
Research and development expenditure
Auditors remuneration
Impairment of trade receivables (note 15)
Loss on disposal of tangible assets
Other charges less recoveries
Total operating costs before exceptional items

Impairment of fixed assets

Profit on disposal of assets and liabilities held for sale

Total exceptional items in the income statement

Total net operating costs

2019 2018
Restated
£m £m
203 185
22 19
21 19
038 04
254 22.7
(7.7) ©9)
17.7 158
27 24
20.2 190
03 03
27 24
0.2 01
39 29
= 03
471 423
94.8 855
S 47
3D 22
3D 25
917 880

The profit on disposal of assets and liabilities held for sale in the current year arose following the sale of an operational depot which
was sold in December 2018. The profit on disposal of assets and liabilities held for sale in the prior year arose following the sale of the
non-household activities to Water 2 Business Limited. The sale completed in April 2017.

The impairment of fixed assets arose following the Board of Bristol Water plc’s decision not to continue with the construction of the

Cheddar 2 Reservoir (note 11).
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7. OPERATING COSTS (continued) 8. NET INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES
(b) Employee details 2019 2018
The monthly average number of employees by activity, including Directors on a service contract, (on a full-time equivalents basis) £m £m
during the year was as follows: Interest payable and similar charges relate to:
2019 2018 Bank borrowings 2.2 21
No. No. Termloans and debentures:
Water treatment and distribution 274 248 interest charges 99 95
Support services 19 126 L 56 66
Administration 1o 98 Termination of swap 05
Non-appointed activities 15 12 Capitalisation of borrowing cost (oY) 7
518 484 Dividends on 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares 11 11
189 186
(©) Directors’emoluments - 2019 2018 Lessinterest receivable and similar income:
£m £m Interest income in respect of retirement benefit scheme (note 24) a3 13)
Aggregate emoluments of Directors, being remuneration, bonus, pension, LTIP and benefits in kind 0.8 08 Loan to Bristol Water Holdings UK Ltd - interest receivable 40 40
08 08 Other external investments and deposits income (X)) ©D
54 (54)
The highest paid Director during the year was Mr Karam; full details of his, and all other Directors emoluments, are disclosed in the Total net interest payable and similar charges 135 132

Remuneration Committee Report on pages 85 to 108.

Therate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 4.7% (2018: 5.3%), which is the weighted
average interest rate of applicable borrowings.

(d) Independent auditors’ remuneration
During the year the Company obtained the following services from the Company’s auditor and its associates:

Dividends on the 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares are payable at a fixed rate of 4.375% on 1 April and 1 October each

2019 2018 year. Payment by the Company to the share registrars is made two business days earlier. The payments are classified as interest in
£000 £000 accordance with [FRS 9.
Fees payable for the audit of the Company’s annual statutory financial statement 829 580
Fees payable for other services: 9. TAXATION
Services pursuant to legislation, principally assurance and audit of regulatory accounts and returns 275 475 2019 2018
Assurance over PR 19 process 1186 806 £m S
PwC Inform’subscription 11 11 Tax expense included in Income Statement
Total non-audit fees 1472 1292 T
Corporation tax on profits for the year 15 2.7
Adjustment to prior periods (05) 01
Total current tax 10 2.8
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences* 0.8 09
Adjustment to prior periods > ©D
Effect of change in accounting standard 0.3
Total deferred tax (note 23) 11 08
Tax expense on profit 21 36

*Included within the £0.8m current year figure is £0.1m credit relating to the termination of the swap. This has been reclassified to
current tax in the year.
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9. TAXATION (continued)

2019 2018
£m £m
Tax expense income included in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax:
Remeasurement of swap liability - 03
Remeasurement of post employment benefit liability 12.9) 06
Total tax (income) / expense included in other comprehensive income 12.9) 09

Reconciliation of the tax on profit on ordinary activities
The current tax rate for the year is lower (2017/18: higher) than the standard rate of tax. A reconciliation between tax expense and the
product of accounting profit multiplied by United Kingdom domestic tax rate is as follows:

2019 2018
£m Restated
£m
Profit before tax 164 153
At statutory income tax rate of 19% (2018:19%) 31 29
Adjustments in respect to prior periods (0.5) -
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:
8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference share 0.2 02
Pension adjustment ((eX)] 02)
Impairment of reservoir - 0S5
Utilisation of rollover relief (06) -
Other 01 D
Effect of tax rate change on current year movement ((0X)) ©D
Total taxation expense included in income statement 21 36
Effective income tax rate 12.8% 235%

The current tax charge in the year is lower than the standard corporation tax rate due to the gain on the sale of an operational depot
rolled over into new operational assets. In 2018, the corporation tax charge was higher due to the impairment of Cheddar 2
reservoir costs.

10. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE

2019 2018
m m
Basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated as follows -
Earnings attributable to ordinary shares £14.3 £117
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 6.0 60

As the Company has no obligation to issue further shares, disclosure of earnings per share on a fully diluted basis is not relevant.
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11. PROPERTY,PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freehold land,
operational Infra- Assets
properties and Plantand structure under
structures equipment assets construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At1April 2017
Cost 3233 366 4227 257 808.3
Accumulated depreciation (1326) (24.8) (775) = (2349)
Netbook amount 1907 1.8 3452 257 5734
Year ended 31 March 2018
Opening net book amount 190.7 11.8 3452 257 5734
Additions = - = 505 505
Disposals 02 - 03 - 05
Capitalisation of completed assets (restated) 94 34 448 (576)
Depreciation charge (note 7) (104) (35) B4 = (193)
Impairment - - - @7 @7
Closing net book amount (restated) 1895 17 3843 139 5994
At 31 March 2018
Cost (restated) 3323 370 4672 186 8551
Accumulated depreciation (142.8) (25.3) (829) @7 (255.7)
Net book amount (restated) 1895 17 3843 139 5994
Year ended 31 March 2019
Opening net book amount 1895 11.7 384.3 139 5994
Additions - - - 506 506
Disposals - - D - D
Capitalisation of completed assets 180 56 266 (50.2)
Depreciation charge (note 7) 110 37) 5.8 = (205)
Closing net book amount 1965 136 4050 14.3 6294
At 31 March 2019
Cost 3497 410 4937 190 9034
Accumulated depreciation (1532) 274) (887) @7 (2740)
Netbook amount 196.5 136 405.0 143 6294

At 31 March 2018 assets totalling £26.0m were incorrectly disclosed as capitalisation of completed freehold land, operation properties
and structures. The comparative figures have been restated to show the reclassification of these assets as completed infrastructure
assets.

Included within disposals are assets with a nil net book value at time of disposal. The original cost of these assets was £2.3m (2018:
£30m).

The impairment of fixed assets, in the prior year, arose following the Board of Bristol Water plc's decision not to continue with the
construction of the Cheddar 2 reservoir.
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
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Thenetbook value of property, plant and equipment includes £5.8m (2017: £5.5m) of borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
IAS 23.During the year ended 31 March 2019 £04m (2018: £0.7m) was capitalised using a weighted average interest rate of 4.7% (2018:
5.3%). Thisis the weighted average interest of applicable borrowings.

Assets under construction include all expenditure on plant, vehicles and other assets up to the point at which they are brought into

use upon completion.

Included above at 31 March 2019 is freehold land, not subjected to depreciation in the year, of £1.7m (2017/18: £1.7m).

Included above at 31 March 2019 are tangible assets held under finance leases analysed by asset type as follows:

Freehold land,
operational
properties and Plant and Infrastructure
structures equipment assets Total
£m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2019
Cost 100 08 12 120
Accumulated depreciation 91 (0.8 1.0) (10.9)
Netbook value 09 > 02 11
At 31 March 2018
Cost 100 08 12 120
Accumulated depreciation 89) 08 (10 107)
Netbook value 11 02 13
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Assets under
Software construction Total
£m £m £m

At1April 2017
Cost 257 03 260
Accumulated amortisation (209) (209)
Net book amount 48 0.3 51
Year ended 31 March 2018
Opening net book amount 48 03 Sl
Additions BS 59
Capitalisation of completed assets 53 5.3) =
Amortisation charge (note 7) 24) 24)
Closing net book amount 77 09 86
At 31 March 2018
Cost 301 09 310
Accumulated amortisation (224) (224)
Net book amount 7.7 09 8.6
Year ended 31 March 2019
Opening net book amount 77 09 86
Additions 46 46
Capitalisation of completed assets 30 30)
Amortisation charge (note 7) 27) 27)
Closing net book amount 80 25 105
At 31 March 2019
Cost 330 25 355
Accumulated amortisation (25.0) (25.0)
Netbook amount 80 2.5 105

Included within disposals are assets with a nil net book value at time of disposal. The original costs of these assets were £01m

(2018: £09m). Included above at 31 March 2019 are intangible assets held under finance leases analysed by asset type as follows:

Computer
software Total
£m £m

At 31 March 2019
Cost 13 13
Accumulated depreciation 1.3) 1.3)
Netbook value > =
At 31 March 2018
Cost 13 13
Accumulated depreciation (1.3) (1.3)

Netbook value
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13. OTHER INVESTMENTS - LOANS TO GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

£m
Balance at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 68.5
Other investments comprise loans advanced to Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited. The details are as follows:
Agreement Loan advance Fixed interest Loan repayment Principal outstanding
date date Rate* date £m
4 December 2003 12 February 2004 6.042% 30 September 2033 470
10 June 2005 13 July 2005 5550% 30 September 2032 215

*Interest rates for the above loans to parent company were based on the Company’s long-term loan interest rates at the time of
issuance.

14. INVENTORY

Inventory comprises consumable stores. The replacement cost of inventory is not considered to be materially different from its
carrying value in the balance sheet.

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables comprise: 2019 A ei?afed
£m £m
Tradereceivables 236 239
Lessbad debt provision (@) 137 140)
99 99
Amounts owed by group undertakings (b) 24 32
Other receivables 16 16
Prepayments and accrued income 139 11.9
Interest rate swap derivative - 01
278 26.7
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(@) The aging of net trade receivables was: 2019 2018
Restated
£m £m
Past due by O-30 days 15 13
Past due by 31120 days 12 11
Past due by more than 120 days 72 75
99 S8
Bad debt provision: 2019 2018
£m £m
Opening balance 140 135
Provision for trade receivables impairment (note 7) 39 29
Trade receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 4.2) 4
Closing balance 137 140

Asat 31 March 2019, based on a review of collection rates, £137m (2018: £14.0m) of trade receivables were considered impaired and
have been provided for.

Inaccordance with IFRS 9, the Company has created a general provision that cannot be specifically attributed to the trade
receivables that are impaired. The Group’s policy is to consider the trade receivables impairment to be allocated on a collective basis
and only impaired for the purposes of IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ when the loss can be specifically identified with
the trade receivables. The Company is required to continue providing residential customers with water regardless of payment.

Other receivables at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 have not been impaired.

(b) The sum of £04m (2017/18: £04m) is included within the heading “Amounts owed by group undertakings” in respect of amounts
advanced to BWBSL, a joint venture company between Bristol Water Holdings Limited, a parent company, and Wessex Water
Services Limited, to fund the purchase of tangible assets. This amount has no fixed repayment date.

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

2019 2018
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 110 89
Restricted cash 61 61
171 150

Restricted cash is funds the Company is required to maintain, under the terms of the Company’s Security Trust and Intercreditor
Deed (“STID"), in anominated account to cover estimated debt service payments arising during the following year. These funds are
therefore not available for other operational use or distribution to shareholders.

17. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

2019 2018
£m £m
Non current assets classified as held for sale
Property, plant and equipment - 02

The prior year assets held for sale related to property which was being actively marketed and hence was classified as held for sale.
The sale completed in December 2018.
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18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2019 2018
£m £m
Trade and other payables
Receiptsin advance 115 119
Trade payables 143 116
Amounts owed to group undertakings 1.8 17
Other taxation and social security 0.7 Q7
Corporation tax payable 0.2 13
Payments received on account 11 12
Accruals 108 103
404 387
All amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
19. BORROWINGS AND DERIVATIVES
2019 2018
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Finance leases - secured (note 27) 05 05
05 05
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Bank and other term loans - secured 230 799
Finance leases - secured (note 27) 05 10
Net unamortised premiums arising on issue of term loans - 02
Interest rate swaps - 04
Forward interest rate swaps* - 0D
235 814
Amounts falling due after more than five years
Bank and other term loans - secured 321.3 2407
Net unamortised premiums arising on issue of term loans 12 17
3225 2424
Irredeemable
Debentures 16 16
875% irredeemable cumulative preference shares (note 26) 125 125
141 141
Total 360.6 3384

None of the bank and other term loans included within creditors are payable in instalments.

*The prior year asset is included within note 15, trade and other receivables.
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Security for borrowings
The majority of the Company’s financial liabilities are secured. The security is given:

Inrespect of the Company:

by way of first fixed charges over any of its freehold or leasehold property belonging to it now or acquired in the future (other than
protected land under the Water Industry Act 1991), its present future goodwill, all rights and claims in relation to charged bank

accounts, all book debts, all insurances, all rights, title and interest to all investments and all plant and machinery; and
« afloating charge over the whole of its undertaking.

Prior to enforcement of the security by the lender, the Company is entitled to exercise all its rights, and perform its obligations in
relation to the charged assets in accordance with the provisions set out in the STID.

Inrespect of Bristol Water Core Holdings Limited (the immediate parent of the Company), as security for the obligations of

the Company:

- afixed charge over its shares in the Company together with a floating charge over the whole of its undertaking.

Total Total
Interest rate Maturity 2019 2018
% £m £m
Current loans and borrowings
Financeleases 373% 10 May 2020 05 05
Total current loans and borrowings 05 05
Non current loans and borrowings
£50000000 bank loan 241% 29 Nov 2019 - 500
Interest rate swap for £50000,000 bank loan 150% 29 Nov 2019 - 04
£13000000 bank loan 121% 31Dec 2019 - 130
£9900000 bank loan 1.25% 2Dec 2021 40 99
£7000000 bank loan 155% 2Dec 2023 30 70
£16000000 bank loan 150% 21 Jun 2023 160
£25000000 bank loan 261% 24 Aug 2028 250
£50000000 bank loan 195% 14 Jun 2028 50.0
Forward interest rate swap* 000% 24 Mar 2020 - ©n
Finance leases 397% 10 May 2020 05 10
£91,109686 indexed linked term loan 364% 30 Sept 2032 1393 1349
£57500000 term loan 6.01% 30 Sept 2033 575 575
£40000000 indexed linked term loan 2.70% 25 Mar 2041 495 483
Net unamortised premiums 12 19
£1405,218 Consolidated debentures 400% irredeemable 14 14
£36,740 perpetual debentures 425% irredeemable =
£54 875 perpetual debentures 400% irredeemable 01 01
£72,900 perpetual debentures 350% irredeemable 01 01
£12500000 cumulative preference shares 875% irredeemable 125 125
Total non- current loans and borrowings 3601 3379

*The prior year asset is included within note 15, trade and other receivables
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19. BORROWINGS AND DERIVATIVES (continued)

Borrowing facilities
Unutilised borrowing facilities are as follows: 2019 2018
£m £m
Expiring in December 2019 - 70
Expiring in December 2020 - 51
Expiring in December 2021 1.0 280
Expiring in December 2022 - 250
Expiring in December 2023 320
Expiringin June 2023 340
770 651

The facilities are floating rate and incur non-utilisation fees at market rates.

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value estimation
The fair values of the cash deposits, trade receivables, trade creditors, loans and overdrafts with a maturity of less than one year are
assessed to approximate to their book values.

In the case of bank loans and other loans due in more than one year the fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate available to the Company for similar
financial instruments.

The fair value of the Company’s debentures has been calculated by discounting the expected cash flows at prevailing market rates
including an estimated margin over gilts. Fixed rate loans from Artesian Finance II plc have been discounted by reference to the UK
Government fixed rate gilt 2032 plus an estimated margin. Index-linked loans from Artesian Finance plc have been discounted by
reference to the UK Government index-linked gilt 2030 plus an estimated margin.

The Company’s preference shares (shown as debt within these financial statements) are listed on the London Stock Exchange and
their fair value is assumed to be their quoted market price.

The long-term loans to Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited have been discounted by reference to the UK Government fixed rate gilt
2032 plus an estimated margin.

Interest-rate swaps
At 31 March 2018, the Company was party to an interest rate swap with a notional value of £50m which was valued asa Level 2
instrument as set out by IFRS 13 Fair value measurement'.

At 31 March 2018, the Company was also a party to a forward starting interest rate swap to hedge expected future borrowings. The
effective date of the swap was 24 April 2018 and the initial notional value of the swap was £25m and this was also valued as a Level 2
instrument.

During the year both of these instruments were terminated and accordingly the £0.4m hedging reserve was recycled to the income
statement (notes 8 and 9).

In accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ the net liability arising under the swap agreements was recognised in these
financial statements, as follows:
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Liability: 2019 2018
£m £m

Due under one year -

Due after one year - 04
= 04

Asset:

Due under one year -

Due after one year = oD
- ©D

Net liability:

Due under one year -

Due after one year = 03
= 03

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company has reviewed all material contracts for embedded derivatives that are required to be
separately accounted for if they do not meet the requirements set out in the standard. As a result of this review no embedded

derivatives were identified.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Although the Company does not intend to trade in any financial instruments, the following tables provide a comparison, by
category, of the carrying amounts and the fair value of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities. Where available,
market values have been used to determine fair values. Where market values are not available, fair values have been calculated
by discounting expected cash flows at the Company’s current incremental borrowing rates for borrowings of similar types and

maturities.

Fair values of non-current financial assets and liabilities 31March 2019 31 March 2018
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
£m £m £m £m
Primary financial instruments issued to finance the Company
Long-term borrowings (3476) 474.8) (3251 (4459)
8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares (125) (18.6) (125) (194)
Primary financial instruments issued to finance Bristol Water Holdings
UK Limited
Long-term loans 685 90.8 685 903
Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate profile:
Net interest rate swaps > - 03 0.3)
(291.6) (402.6) (2694) (375.3)

The movement in the comparison of the fair value of the long-term borrowings to book value is due to fluctuations in long-term

interest rates.
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair values of other financial assets and liabilities 31March 2019 31 March 2018
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 171 171 150 150
Trade and other receivables 266 266 256 256
Financial liabilities
Current portion of long-term borrowings (0.5) (05) (©5) (05)
Trade and other payables (39.5) (395) (36.7) (36.7)
37 37 34 34

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Company’s main financial instruments comprise:

» borrowings and cash;

» 875% irredeemable cumulative preference shares;

» variousitems, such as trade receivables and trade payables, that arise directly from its operations; and
» twolong-term loans made to Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited.

The Company’s significant debt financing exposes it to a variety of financial risks that include the effect of changes in debt market
prices, credit risks, liquidity and interest rates. The Company hasin place a risk management programime that seeks to limit the
adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company.

The Board isresponsible for setting the financial risk management policies applied by the Company. The policies are implemented
by the finance department. The finance department has a policies and procedures manual that sets out specific guidelines to
manage interest rate risk, credit risk and the use of financial instruments to manage these risks.

(a) Interest rate risk of financial assets

The financial assets include cash at bank and cash deposits which are all denominated in sterling. During the year cash and cash
deposits were placed with banks for either a fixed term or repayable on demand, earning interest at market rates. There are also
interest-bearing fixed rate loans totaling £68.5m (2017/18: £68.5m) to Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited.

(b) Interest rate risk and inflation risk of financial liabilities
The financial liabilities consist of interest-bearing loans, debentures, finance leases and 8.75% irredeemable cumulative
preference shares.

The Company’s practice is to maintain the majority of its net debt on a fixed rate or a fixed margin above movements in RPI basis.
At the year-end, 25% (2017/18: 34%*) of the Company’s gross financial liabilities, excluding the 8.75% irredeemable cumulative
preference shares, were at fixed rates. 79% (2017/18: 90%) of the Company’s gross financial liabilities, excluding the 8.75%
irredeemable cumulative preference shares, were at fixed or index-linked rates. The remainder was at floating rates.
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The Company’s current intention is to maintain a future interest rate management profile consisting of financial liabilities at either
fixed or index-linked rates amounting to 70% or more of such liabilities. The balance between fixed or index-linked, and floating
interest rate liabilities will be kept under review, and is dependent on the availability of such resources in the financial markets.

The carrying value of the Company’s index-linked borrowings is exposed to changes in RPIL. The Company’s regulatory capital value
and water supply revenues are also linked to RPIin the current regulatory period. Accordingly index-linked debt partially hedges
the exposure to changes in RPI and delivers a cash flow benefit, as compensation for the indexation is provided through adjustment
to the principal rather than in cash.

*Variable interest rate loans totalling £50m, covered by interest rate swaps, were considered as fixed interest rate loans for the
calculation of this percentage.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, on the Company’s profits.

The sensitivity analysis includes the effect on all financial instruments exposed to changes in interest rate.

31March 2019 31 March 2018
Profit Profit Profit Profit
before tax after tax before tax after tax
£m £m £m £m
Movement in interest rate of 100bp 0.7 06 03 02

Inflation rate sensitivity

The year-end carrying value of index-linked debt held by the Company is as follows:

2019 2018
£m £m
Index-linked debt 188.8 1832

The following table shows the illustrative effect on the Company’s profits of changes in RPIin relation to its index-linked debt.

31March 2019 31 March 2018
Profit Profit
before tax Equity before tax Equity
£m £m f£m £m
Movement in Retail Price Index by 1% 19 15 18 15
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Credit risk

The Company is required by the Water Industry Act 1991 to supply water to all potential customersinits licensed area. In the

event of non-payment by commercial customers, but not domestic customers, the Company has a right of disconnection. For all
customers the Company has implemented policies and procedures designed to assess the risk of further non-payment and recoup
debts.

Under the terms of the STID, cash at bank and cash deposits are placed with banks with a minimum of Moody’s P-1 and Standard &
Poors Al credit ratings.

Debt investments at amortised cost are considered to be low risk, and therefore the impairment provision is determined as 12
months’ expected credit losses. Applying the expected credit risk model resulted in an immaterial loss allowance at 31 March 2019
and 31 March 2018.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet. At 31
March the maximum exposure to credit risk was as follows:

2019 2018

£m £m

Long-termloans 685 685
Cash and cash equivalents 171 150
Trade and other receivables, net of bad debt provisions made 278 270
1134 1105

Collateral of £0.2m held as security from retailers is included in cash and cash equivalents.

(d) Liquidity risk
Itis the Company policy to maintain continuity of funding. At the year-end 93% (2017/18: 76%) of its financial liabilities, including
875% irredeemable cumulative preference shares, mature after five years or are irredeemable.

The Company actively maintains a mixture of long-term and short-term committed facilities that are designed to provide sufficient
funds for operations.

The Company has undrawn facilities of £11m expiring in December 2021, £32m expiring in December 2023, £34m expiring in June
2023. All the facilities are floating rate and incur non-utilisation fees at market rates.

Under the terms of the STID the Company is required to maintain sufficient funds in a nominated account to cover estimated debt
service payments arising during the following year. These funds, currently amounting to approximately £6.1m (2017/18: £61m), are
therefore not available for other operational use or distribution to shareholders.

The table below details the Company’s remaining contractual payments until maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The
table is based on the undiscounted cash flows, and includes estimates of future interest payments and loan indexation on financial
liabilities. At 31 March 2019 we have assumed that indexation will be applied at the rate of 25% p.a. At 31 March 2018 we assumed that
indexation will be applied at the rate of 34% p.a. These are the latest forecast rates for inflation on index linked loans to be applied at
31 March 2020 and have been applied for each year until maturity.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 Due within Betweenone  Betweentwo
one year andtwoyears andfiveyears Afterfive years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Trade creditors 14.3 = > = 14.3
Due to group and associated companies 18 - - - 18
Other taxation and social security 0.7 - - - 0.7
Corporation tax payable 0.2 - - - 0.2
Accruals 20 = > = 20
Interest bearing loans and related interest 125 12.7 60.2 5431 6285
315 127 60.2 5431 6475
Year ended 31 March 2018 Due within Between one Between two
one year andtwoyears andfiveyears Afterfive years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Trade creditors 116 = - = 116
Due to group and associated companies 17 - - - 17
Other taxation and social security 07 - - - 07
Corporation tax payable 13 13
Accruals 18 = = = 18
Interest bearing loans and related interest 116 744 490 5214 6564
287 744 490 5214 6735

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company entered into an interest rate swap with a notional value of £50m, effective from 3 December 2014. The Company also
entered into a forward starting swap to hedge expected future borrowings up to a notional value of £675m, effective from 24 April
2018. Both of these arrangements were terminated in the year. Accordingly the cumulative gains/losses previously recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income were reclassified immediately to the Income Statement.

The Company has no interest swaps as at 31 March 2019 and, accordingly, the table below only details the Company’s remaining
contractual payments and receipts until maturity for its interest rate swaps for the comparative year ended 31 March 2018. The table
isbased on the forecast undiscounted cash flows on its derivative financial liabilities based on the contractual settlement dates.
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2018 Due within Between one Between two
one year andtwoyears andfiveyears After five years Total

£m £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps
Forecast receipts 05 04 - - 09
Contractual payments 0.7) (05) - - 1.2)
Net forecast cash outflow 0.2) ((0X)) - - (0.3)
Forward interest rate swaps
Forecast receipts 0.2 0.7 - = 09
Contractual payments 0.2) 06) - - (0.8
Net forecast cash inflow - 01 - - 01
Total net forecast cash outflow (0.2) - - - (0.2)

(e) Covenants compliance risk

Under the terms of its principal debt agreements the Company is required to comply with covenants relating to minimum levels
of interest cover and to maximum levels of net debt in relation to regulatory capital value. Failure to comply may result in various
restrictions being imposed upon the Company. Risk is minimised through continuous monitoring of the relevant ratios in both
emerging and forecast results, and by close control of operating cash flows and capital investment programmes.

146 | Bristol Water plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2018/19

22. DEFERRED INCOME

2019 2018
restated
£m £m
Net book value, beginning of year 796 770
Additions 37 42
Recognised as income in the year (note 6) (W) 1)
Netbook value, end of year 816 796
2019 2018
£m £m
Current 17 16
Non-current 799 780
Netbook value, end of year 816 796
23. DEFERRED TAXATION
2019 e
restated
£m £m
Provision for deferred tax comprises:

Accelerated capital allowances and capital element of finance leases 63.2 62.2

Deferred income (X)) (53)

Short-term timing differences (o)D)

Interest rate swaps = ©n
Net deferred tax liability 58.0 56.8
Reflected in the statement of financial position as follows:

Deferred taxation asset (5.2) 54
Deferred taxation liability 63.2 62.2
Deferred tax liabilities net 58.0 56.8
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23. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
Accelerated
Deferred tax liabilities capital
allowances Total
£m £m
At1April 2017 614 614
Charged to the Income Statement 08 08
At 31 March 2018 62.2 62.2
Charged to the income statement 10 10
At 31 March 2019 632 632
Deferred tax assets Deferred
income Fair value gains Other Total

£m £m £m £m
At1 April 2017 (restated) 52 04 OD B7)
Charged / (credited) to the income statement (OX)) 01
Charged to other comprehensive income 03 03
At 31 March 2018 (restated) (53) ©D 54
Reclassification to current tax 03 03
(Credited) / charged to the income statement 0D 0D 02)
Reclassification of swap to current tax 01 01
At 31 March 2019 (GX)) ° D (5.2)

The accelerated capital allowance pool relates to the difference in capital allowances that are allowed under corporate tax law
compared with the accounting depreciation. The above shows that the assets have received higher tax relief through capital

allowances than the associated depreciation.

Deferred income relates to the write off of contributions in relation to capital assets which for tax are written off in line with the

capital allowance rates and not the accounting lives.

Fair value gains relates to the movement in the interest rate swap during the year.
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SURPLUS

Defined benefit scheme

Pension arrangements for employees are partly provided through the Company’s membership of the Water Companies’ Pension
Scheme ("WCPS"), which provides defined benefits based on final pensionable pay. The Company’s membership of WCPS is through
a separate section of the scheme. The assets of the section are held separately from those of the Company and are invested by
discretionary fund managers appointed by the Trustees of the scheme. The employees in the section stopped earning additional
defined benefit pensions on 31 March 2016. All eligible employees were offered membership of a stakeholder pension scheme.

In addition to providing benefits to employees and ex-employees of the Company, the section provides benefits to former
employees of the Company who transferred to BWBSL. The majority of the section assets and liabilities relate to the Company
employees and ex-employees.

The financial position of the section is determined by an independent actuary (Lane, Clark & Peacock LLP, “LCP"). The details of the
last triennial valuation and current update on the funding position are provided on page 37 in the Strategic Report.

From1 April 2016, there were no employer contributions to the scheme. On 30 June 2016, with the agreement of the trustees, deficit
contributions also ceased.

On 7 June 2018, the Trustees of the Bristol Water Section of the WCPS purchased a bulk annuity policy to insure the benefits for
members in the Section. Following this, the method for valuing the liabilities of the pension scheme has remained the same.
However the scheme assets, in the form of the insurance policy, now match the value of the liabilities. The insurance policy was
purchased at a premium which hasreduced the scheme’s surplus. The change in the value is reflected in the movement in the OCL

On 26 October 2018 the High Court issued a ruling in the Lloyds Banking Group court case requiring them to equalize benefits
payable to men and women under its UK defined benefit pension plans. The inequalities arose from statutory differences in the
retirement ages and rates of actual of benefits for men and women related to Guaranteed Minimum Pension (‘GMP”) benefits that
were included in UK defined benefit pension plans. This is a minimum level of benefit that certain pension schemes had to provide
in order to benefit from paying reduced National Insurance Contributions. In its ruling the High Court also provided details on
acceptable alternative methods of amending plans to equalise the pension benefits. Following advice from LCP £1m for estimated
GMP equalisation costs have been included within the valuation of the scheme liabilities. This estimate was made before the High
Court ruling and has therefore been reflected in the movement in the OCL

Risks of the scheme

Following the purchase of the buy in policy, the balance sheet asset is now only largely exposed to changes in the value of the
invested assets. Thisis because the value of the insurance policy is set equal to the value of the corresponding obligations meaning
that any changes in financial conditions or other assumptions will affect the value of the insurance policy and the corresponding
obligations by broadly the same amount.

The value of the pension scheme surplus has been restricted by an income tax deduction of 35% under UK tax legislation. An
increase in the income tax rate will reduce the net pension scheme surplus.

Basis of valuation
The formal actuarial valuation of the Company’s section of the WCPS as at 31 March 2017 was updated to 31 March 2019, by L.CP,
using the following major assumptions in accordance with IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’:
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SURPLUS (continued)

2019 2018
Assumptions:
RPIInflation 35% 34%
CPIInflation 25% 24%
Pension increases in payment (uncapped CPI) 2.6% 25%
Pension increases in payment (CPI capped at 5% pa) 25% 24%
Discount rate 2.3% 2.5%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience in
the UK. These assumptions translate into the following average life expectanciesin years:

2019 2018
Life expectancy at age 60 at the balance sheet date
- Men 275 288
-Women 297 300
Life expectancy at age 60, 25 years from balance sheet date
-Men 303 308
-Women 320 323
Reconciliation of scheme assets and liabilities: Assets Liabilities Total
£m £m £m
Pension scheme surplus at 1 April 2017 2339 (184.3) 496
Section expenses ©4) = 04
Interest income (note 8) 57 44 13
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income GD = G1D
Changes in financial assumptions - - -
Changes in demographic assumptions - 65 6.5
Experience adjustments on obligation - (05) (05)
GD 60 09
Benefits paid 1y 11 -
Pension scheme surplus at 31 March 2018 2230 171.6) 514
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Assets Liabilities Total
£m £m £m
Pension scheme surplus at 1 April 2018 2230 1716) 514
Section expenses 08 = (0.8)
Interest income (note 8) 55 “4.2) 13
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income (320) - (32.0)
Changes in financial assumptions = 87 8.7)
Changes in demographic assumptions = 30 30
Experience adjustments on obligation - 04 04
(320) (53) (37.3)
Benefits paid (79) 79 g
Pension scheme surplus at 31 March 2019 187.8 173.2) 146
Total amount recognised on the statement of financial position: 2019 2018
£m £m
Fair value of plan assets 1878 2230
Pension scheme obligation 173.2) 1716)
Pension scheme surplus 146 514
Less: restriction of surplus GD 179)
Net pension scheme surplus 95 35

In accordance with IASI9 Employee Benefits the value of the net pension scheme surplus that can be recognised in the statement
of financial position is restricted to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the scheme or
reductions in future contributions. As defined under [FRIC 14, the Company believes that it has an unconditional right to a refund of
surplus and that the gross pension surplus can be recognised.

This benefit is only available as a refund as no additional defined pension benefits are being earned. Under UK tax legislation
an income tax deduction of 35% is applied to a refund from a UK pension scheme, before it is passed to the employer. This tax
deduction has been shown above as a restriction to the value of the net pension scheme asset that can be recognised for this
scheme.

Sensitivity
The sensitivity of the pension scheme surplus at 31 March 2019 Changein Increasein Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
£m £m
Discount rate 05%pa 12.9) 146
Inflation assumption (CPI) 05%pa 119 (104)
Life expectancy lyear 7.8 77

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice,
thisis unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SURPLUS (continued)

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous period.

Following the purchase of the insurance policy, any changes in the value of the obligations would largely be matched by a
corresponding change in the value of the Section’s assets.

Total cost recognised as an expense: 2019 2018
£m £m
Interest income (note 8) 3 3
Section expenses 038 04
05 ©9)
The market value of the plan assets was:
2019 2018
Quoted Unquoted 2019 % Quoted Unquoted 2018 %
£m £m
Equities - - - - 35 = 35 15
Diversified growth funds - - - - 66 - 66 30
LDIfunds - - - - 1530 133 166.3 746
Liquidity funds 14.2 16 158 84 328 32 360 161
Emerging markets multi-asset funds - - - - 47 01 48 2.2
High yield bonds - - - - 42 - 42 19
Insurance policy - 172.2 172.2 917 = = = =
Cash = 0.2) 0.2) D - 16 16 o7
14.2 1736 187.8 100 204.8 182 2230 100
Thereturn on the plan assets was: 2019 2018
£m £m
Interestincome 55 57
Remeasurements (320) GBD
Total return on plan assets (26.5) 06

The current weighted average duration of the expected benefit payments from the Section is around 16 years.
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25. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION SCHEME

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for employees. Following the closure of the defined
benefit scheme all affected employees have been offered membership of this scheme. The total cost charged to income of £21m
(2017/18: £19m) represents contributions payable to the scheme. As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, all contributions due have

been paid over to the scheme.

The amount recognised as an expense for the defined contribution scheme was: 2019 2018

£m £m
21 19

26. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of £1 each

Issued and fully paid 2019 2019
No. £m

Asat1April 2018 and 31 March 2019 5,998,025 60

All shares rank pari passu in all respects.

Preference shares of £1 each

Issued and fully paid 2019 2019
No. £m

Asat1April and 31 March 12,500,000 125

The 875% irredeemable cumulative preference shares, which do not normally carry any voting rights, were issued in 1992 at £1 per
share. Shareholders are entitled to receive dividends at 8.75% per annum on the par value of these shares on a cumulative basis;
these dividends are payable half yearly on 1 April and 1 October. On winding up, the preference shareholders rank ahead of ordinary
shareholders and are entitled to receive £1 per share and any dividends accrued but unpaid in respect of their shares. In the event
that dividends on the preference shares are in arrears for six months or more, holders of the preference shares become entitled to

vote at general meetings of members.

The authorised preference share capital consists of 14000000 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares of £1 each.

The preference shares are classified as liabilities in the statement of financial position.
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27. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments at 31 March 2019 contracted for but not provided were £5.8m (2017/18: £5.8m).

Bristol Water is supplied raw water from the Gloucester and Sharpness Canal, under an agreement with the Canal and River Trust
(‘CRT"). The agreement provides for charges payable to CRT to be reviewed periodically and during 2018/19 CRT have triggered a
charges review seeking a substantial increase. Bristol Water does not believe such an increase is supportable and is challenging
the claim. Charges could increase or decrease under the terms of the agreement and there is uncertainty over the outcome of the
review. Until the matter is determined, the charges continue to be payable at previous levels, and are accrued accordingly.

Minimum lease payments under finance leases

The future minimum finance lease payments are as follows: 2019 2018
£m £m
Within one year 05 05
Between one and five years 05 10
Total gross payments 10 15

Impact of finance charges -

Carrying value of liability 10 15

The above payments relate to the lease of plant and equipment which ends in May 2020. There is no option to purchase at the end
of thelease.

28. CASHFLOW INFORMATION

(a) Net debt reconciliation

2019 2018

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 171 150
Borrowings - repayable within one year (including overdraft) (05) 05)
Borrowings - repayable after one year (360.D (3379)
Net debt (3435) (3234)
Cash and liquid investments 171 150
Gross debt - fixed and indexed interest rates (97.8) 1235)
Gross debt - variable interest rates (262.8) (214.9)
Net debt (3435) (3234)
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Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
Movementsinnet debt Cash/bank Financeleases Financeleases Borrowings Borrowings
overdraft due within due after due within due after
lyear lyear lyear lyear Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Net debt as at 31 March 2017 161 ©5) ((35)) (203) (301.9) (3081
Cash flows an 04 = 200 (297) 104
Other non-cash movements - (o2} 05 03 (53) 49)
Net debt as at 31 March 2018 150 ©5) 10) ® (3369 (3234)
Cash flows 21 04 - = 166) a4
Other non-cash movements - 04 05 = (&) ©0)
Net debt as at 31 March 2019 171 (05) (05) s (3596) (3435)

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Throughout the year, related parties include members and joint ventures of the Bristol Water Group Limited (formerly known
as CSE Water UK Limited) group of companies, members of the iCON Infrastructure LLP companies and members of Itochu
Corporation, and key management personnel.

The principal related parties are:

Bristol Water Group Limited (formerly known as CSE Water UK Limited), registered in England and Wales, whose year-end is 31
March, and is the Company's ultimate UK holding company.

Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited (‘BWHUK"), registered in England and Wales, whose year-end is 31 March.

Bristol Wessex Billing Services Limited (‘BWBSL"), registered in England and Wales, whose year-end is 31 March. The joint venture
interest is held by Bristol Water Holdings Limited, an intermediate holding company within the BWHUK group, which owns 100
class B shares in the company, representing a holding of 50% of the voting and equity rights of the company. BWBSL is a joint
venture undertaking between Bristol Water Holdings Limited and Wessex Water Services Limited, and provides meter reading,
billing, debt recovery and customer contact management services to this company and Wessex Water Services Limited, under a
cost sharing arrangement.

Water 2 Business Limited (“W2B”), registered in England and Wales, whose year-end is 30 June. The interest is held by Bristol Water
Holdings Limited, an intermediate holding company within the BWHUK group which owns 30 class B shares in the company
representing a holding of 30% of equity rights and 40% of voting rights of the company. W2B has a retail water and sewerage supply
licence and provides retail water services to non-household customers.
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Trading transactions
During the year the Company entered into trading transactions with related parties totalling:

Sales of goods Purchases of goods
and services and services
2019 2018 2019 2018
£m £m £m £m
Joint ventures and associates of the Bristol Water Group Limited group
BWBSL
-management charges - - 26 2.7
- capital expenditure - - 03 01
- other recharges - - 0.2 03
W2B
-non household supply of water 226 215 =
226 215 31 31
At the year end the balances held with related parties were: Amounts due from Amounts due to
2019 2018 2019 2018
£m £m £m £m
Joint ventures and associates of the Bristol Water Group Limited group
BWBSL 02 o7 14 13
W2B 18 21 5
20 2.8 14 13

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. As aretailer in the non-household market, W2B supplies
collateral under the market codes, no guarantees have been given or received. No provisions have been made, or are considered
necessary, for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts due from related parties.

Remuneration of key management personnel
Information about the remuneration of individual Directors is provided in the audited part of the Remuneration Committee Report
onpages 96 to103.

30. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The immediate parent company for this entity is Bristol Water Core Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in England and Wales.

As at 31 March 2019, the Directors considered the ultimate parent and controlling party of the Company to be iCON Infrastructure
Partners|II, L.P. acting through its Managing General Partner, iCON Infrastructure Management III Limited.

The smallest and largest group in which the Company is consolidated is Bristol Water Group Limited (formerly known as CSE Water UK
Limited) and copies of its consolidated annual report are available from Suite 1, 3rd Floor, 1112 St James's Square, London, SW1Y 4LB.

31. EVENTS AFTER THE PERIOD END

On 23 April 2019 the Company drew down a further £3m from the facility expiring in December 2023 and on 22 May 2019 £2m from
the same facility.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BRISTOL WATER PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our audit approach
Opinion
In our opinion, Bristol Water plc’s financial statements:
« give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs y 1
Nateriality

as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit and cash flows for the year
then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006.

Audit scope

Key audit
matters
We have audited the financial statements, included within
the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the "Annual
Report”), which comprise: the statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019; the income statement, the statement of

Context

The terms of the Company’s license
under the Water Industry Act 1991
require the Company to report as if it
had issued equity share capital listed
on the London Stock Exchange and
therefore the opinion below refers

to the Listing Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authority (FCA).

Overview

« Overall materiality: £675000 (2018:
£750,000), based on 5% of profit
before tax, capped by the level of
group materiality.

comprehensive income, the cash flow statement, the statement » The Company is structured as a single reporting unit and the

of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to
the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

audit was carried out by a single audit team.
« Provision for impairment of domestic accounts receivable.
« Classification of expenditure on infrastructure assets.

« Valuation of the pension scheme.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit
Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (‘ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the
Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Company in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical
Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-
audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not
provided to the company.

Other than those disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements,
we have provided no non-audit services to the company in the
period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.
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The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and
assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements.

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities,

including fraud

Based on our understanding of the company and industry;,

we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with
laws and regulations related to those laws and regulations

that have a direct impact on the preparation of the company’s
financial statements and includes relevant regulations from
Ofwat, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance
might have a material effect on the financial statements.

We also considered those laws and regulations that have a
direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements
such as the Companies Act 2006, the Listing Rules, Pensions
legislation and UK tax legislation. We evaluated management’s
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation

of the financial statements (including the risk of override of
controls), and determined that the principal risks were related
to posting of inappropriate journal entries to manipulate
financial performance, and management bias in accounting

estimates and judgements. Audit procedures performed by the

engagement team included:

« Discussions with management, internal audit and the
company’s legal advisors, including consideration of known
or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations and fraud;

« Challenging assumptions and judgements made by
management in their significant accounting estimates;

« Identifying and testing journal entries that met our predefined

risk criteria, in particular journal entries posted with unusual
account combinations.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures
described above and the further removed non-compliance
with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would
become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Corporate governance Financial statements

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’
professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the current period and include
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors,
including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall
audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and
directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters,
and any comments we make on the results of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our
audit.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Provision for impairment of domestic accounts receivable
The recoverability of customer debts is always a key issue
for water companies. The recoverability of customer debts
is very sensitive to changes in economic circumstances.
The company uses significant judgements and estimates
to determine its provision for impairment of domestic
accountsreceivable, which amounted to £137m (2018:
£140m).

Classification of expenditure on infrastructure assets
Expenditure on infrastructure assets is either capitalised
as an addition to plant, property and equipment (PPE’)

or written off to the income statement, depending on the
nature of the work done. Given the size and complexity

of the capital programme and how it relates to the
company's assessed performance for regulatory purposes,
the classification of expenditure requires management
judgement. Additions to PPE during the year amounted to
£506m (2018: £50.5m).

Valuation of the pension scheme

We focused on this area because the defined benefit
pension scheme surplus is material to the financial
statements, as it amounts to £95m (2018: £335m), and is
sensitive to anumber of subjective assumptions such as
discount rates, inflation and life expectancy.

The pension liability and disclosures are also an area of
interest to key stakeholders; thisis especially so in the
current year in light of the impact of the High Court Lloyds
ruling regarding Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMP).

We evaluated the model used to calculate the provision and
confirmed its consistency with prior years.

We also tested the underlying data upon which the
calculations were based and assessed the appropriateness
of the judgements applied in calculating the provision, using
historical cash collection trends from prior years and the
latest available cash collection data for the current year.

We also performed sensitivity analysis on the future cash
collection rates by major customer category in order to
identify the significance of the collection rates used on the
overall value of the provision.

We also assessed the impact of changes to the provision
methodology on account on adoption of IFRS 9.

We also assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the notes
to the financial statements of the key judgements and
estimates involved in the provision for bad and doubtful
debts and the description of changes arising as a result of the
adoption of [FRS 9.

We found that, consistent with prior years, the level of
provision is acceptable.

We tested a sample of expenditure on infrastructure

items in the year to supporting documentation, such as
contract certificates, invoices or payroll records in the case
of capitalised labour costs and were satisfied that they had
been classified appropriately.

We formed an independent expectation of the key pension
valuation assumptions, including the discount rate, inflation
rate and life expectancy and compared them with those
adopted by the company. In particular we used our own
actuarial specialists to evaluate assumptions made in
assessing the liability impact in relation to GMP. We found
the pension assumptions to be in line with our expectations.
Inrespect of the data provided to the actuary by the
company and used in the valuation, we agreed the
contributions paid by the company to bank statements.

We obtained third party confirmations of the valuation of
the pension assets.

We also obtained appropriate evidence for the competency
and qualifications of the actuary who performed the
valuation, and checked the information provided by the
actuary to the financial statements.

Bristol Water plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2018/19 | 159



Chairman's welcome Strategic report Corporate governance Financial statements

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in
which it operates.

The company is structured as a single reporting unit and the audit was carried out by a single audit team.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements,
both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Overall materiality £675000
(2017:£1,045000).(2018: £750,000)
How we determined it 5% of profit before tax, capped by the level of group materiality.
Rationale for benchmark applied We have applied this benchmark, a generally accepted auditing practice, in the

absence of indicators that an alternative benchmark would be appropriate.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £67000 (2018:
£75000) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Going concern
In accordance with ISAs (UK) we report as follows:

Reporting obligation Outcome

We arerequired to report if we have anything material to add We have nothing material to add or to draw attention to.

or draw attention to in respect of the Directors’ statement However, because not all future events or conditions can
in the financial statements about whether the directors be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. For

of accounting in preparing the financial statements and the example, the terms on which the United Kingdom may
Directors’ identification of any material uncertainties to the withdraw from the European Union are not clear, and it
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern over a is difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications on
period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the Company’s trade, customers, suppliers and the wider
the financial statements. economy.

REPORTING ON OTHER INFORMATION

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.
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With respect to the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and Corporate Governance Statement, we also considered whether the
disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 (CAO6)
and ISAs (UK) require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below (required by ISAs (UK) unless otherwise
stated).

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements. (CAO6)

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors Report. (CAO6)

Corporate Governance Statement

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Corporate Governance
Statement (on pages 66 to 73) about internal controls and risk management systems in relation to financial reporting processes
and about share capital structures in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules
sourcebook of the Financial Conduct Authority (‘DTR") is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements. (CAO6)

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in this information. (CAO6)

We have nothing to report arising from our responsibility to report if a corporate governance statement has not been prepared
by the company. (CAO6).

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Company and of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or
liquidity of the Company

Asaresult of the Directors’ voluntary reporting on how they have applied the UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code”), we
are required to report to you if we have anything material to add or draw attention to regarding:

» The Directors’ confirmation on page 45 of the Annual Report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal
risks facing the company, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity:.

» The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated.

« The Directors  explanation on page 38 of the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the company, over
what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they
have a reasonable expectation that the company will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due
over the period of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or
assumptions.

We have nothing to report in respect of this responsibility.

Other Code Provisions

Asaresult of the Directors' voluntary reporting on how they have applied the Code, we are required to report to you if, in our
opinion:

» The statement given by the Directors, on page 112, that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced
and understandable, and provides the information necessary for the members to assess the Company’s position and
performance, business model and strategy is materially inconsistent with our knowledge of the Company obtained in the
course of performing our audit.

» The section of the Annual Report on pages 78 and 79 describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee.

We have nothing to report in respect of this responsibility.
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RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
THE AUDIT

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set out on page 113, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements

in accordance with the applicable framework and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Directors are
also responsible for such internal control as they determine
isnecessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue

as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assuranceis a high level of assurance, butisnot a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statementsis located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.
org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of
our auditors report.

Use of thisreport

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and
only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent
inwriting.

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to
you if, in our opinion:

Corporate governance Financial statements

» we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by
law are not made; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this

responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we
were appointed by the directors on 12 November 2012 to

audit the financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2013 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is 7 years, covering the years ended
31 March 2013 to 31 March 2019.

OTHER VOLUNTARY REPORTING

Going concern

The Directors have requested that we review the statement on
page 109 in relation to going concern as if the company were

a premium listed company. We have nothing to report having
performed our review.

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the company
and of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or
liquidity of the company

The Directors have requested that we perform a review of the
Directors’ statements on pages 45 and 38 that they have carried
out arobust assessment of the principal risks facing the group
and in relation to the longer-term viability of the Company, as if
the Company were a premium listed company. Our review was
substantially less in scope than an audit and only consisted

of making inquiries and considering the Directors’ process
supporting their statements; checking that the statements

are in alignment with the relevant provisions of the Code;

and considering whether the statements are consistent with
the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit. We have
nothing to report having performed this review.

Other Code provisions

The Directors have prepared a corporate governance
statement and requested that we review it as though the
company were a premium listed company. We have nothing
toreport in respect of the requirement for the auditors of
premium listed companies to report when the Directors’
statement relating to the Company’s compliance with the
Code does not properly disclose a departure from a relevant
provision of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for
review by the auditors.
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Directors’ remuneration

The Company voluntarily prepares a Directors’ Remuneration
Report in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act 2006. The Directors requested that we audit the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report specified by the Companies Act
2006 to be audited as if the Company were a quoted company.

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

Colin Bates (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Bristol

5 July 2019
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GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS

ACIP Annual Cash Incentive Plan

ACT Advance Corporation Tax

AMP Asset Management Plan

ARAC Audit and Risk Assurance Committee
Bristol Wessex Billing Services Limited
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Customer Measure of Experience
Drinking Water Inspectorate
Environment Agency

Earnings Before Interest Tax Depreciation and
Amortisation

Executive Management Team
General Data Protection Regulation
GMP Guaranteed Minimum Pension
HR Human Resources
IAP Initial Assessment of the Plan
iCON iCON Infrastructure LLP
iCONBristol  iCON Infrastructure PartnersIII (Bristo) LP
iCON I iCON Infrastructure PartnersIII LP

ICS Institute of Customer Services

IFRIC International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee

International Financial Reporting Standard
Independent Non-Executive Director
Itochu Corporation

Key Performance Indicator

Long Term Incentive Plan

Modern Slavery Act

Mean Zonal Compliance

Non-Executive Director

National Environment Programme

Negative Water Quality Contacts
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Outcome Delivery Incentive
Price Review 2019
Regulatory Capital Value

Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous
Occurrences Regulations 2013

Return on Regulatory Equity

Service Incentive Measure

Security of Supply Index

Security Trust and Intercreditor Deed
Water Companies Pension Scheme
Western Power Distribution

Water 2 Business Limited
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The Company was appointed by the Secretary of State for
the Environment as a Water Undertaker under the Water
Act1989 and is required to comply with Conditions set
out in its Instrument of Appointment (“the Licence”).

The regulatory information that follows has been prepared in
accordance with Condition F of the Licence and Regulatory
Accounting Guidelines (‘RAGs”) issued by the Water Services
Regulation Authority (Ofwat). This Annual Performance Report
has been prepared for use by Ofwat. It may not be appropriate
for any other purpose. As required by Ofwat, the accounting
statements do not correspond with the statutory annual
report, the differences to the statutory accounts are shown.

The statutory annual report contains a suite of reports,
including a strategic report, which provide comprehensive
commentary on the Company’s activities during the year.

The accompanying Historical Cost and Current
Cost Accounting Statements were approved by
a Commiittee of the Board on 5 July 2019.

Directors' remuneration
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Trust beyond water

A statement from the Bristol Water Board

Bristol Water was formed in 1846 under
an Act of Parliament with a ground-
breaking and ambitious aim to bring,
fresh, clean drinking water to the area
we serve. This ambition was essential
to the health and wellbeing of all and
not just for the few. The Board of Bristol
Water continues to carry forward this
vision of a water company doing what
it can for the communities we serve.

Bristol Water is on a journey to
transform itself. The Board believes
that the Company continues to make
significant progress in a number of
areas and continues to deliver high
levels of service, and is highly regarded
by its customers and within itslocal
communities. Building on our excellent
trust with our local communities and
customers, we want to be regarded as
aleading organisation known to excel
at customer service and experiences
in aninnovative and efficient way.

We have built on this further over the
last year - in January we launched our
Social Contract, the first published by
a water company. The Social Contract
sets out how we are accountable

for the social promises we make as
we deliver our purpose. Our Social
Contract will evolve as society does
and we learn from experience, so
through a set of mechanisms and
initiatives we build partnerships and
relationships to make it meaningful
for our customers and stakeholders.

2018/19 performance

2018/19 saw a significant improvement in
performance for Bristol Water, following
a challenging 2017/18 that had a number
of major events occur. Even though

we performed well in the Willsbridge
burst, Clevedon precautionary boil
water notice and freeze-thaw events,
we still learnt from these situations.
Where there were events that could
have caused significant disruption

to customer supplies during 2018/19,
we avoided such circumstances
through improved resilience planning
and customer-focused operational
delivery. The response of our people

is the key, with a culture that focuses

on the end customer impact, such as
deploying alternative water supplies

in anticipation of, rather than in
response to, interruptions to supply.

2018/19 saw the transformation of

the Company continue. There were
challenging weather conditions - but

we maintained supplies to customers.
Summer 2018 saw a 30% increase in
demand at the peak, with the resulting
change in pressure in the network seeing
a continued high number of mains
bursts, however it is encouraging that
the level of bursts reduced compared

to the previous year. Having delivered
the Southern Resilience Scheme in
March 2018 it was used to its full extent
in 2018, with water from the River
Severn being transported as far south as
Cheddar through the new infrastructure,
protecting water resources in the Mendip
Reservoirsin case of a dry winter. The

extra pumping and treatment incurs
additional operating costs, but illustrates
the resilience of supplies that we have
despite a dry winter and then amongst

the hottest and driest summers on record.

We have also transformed our leakage
delivery, following our performance
in the previous year, where we
unfortunately missed our target. We
beat our actual leakage target of 44Ml/d
with arecord low level of 41.7Ml/d,
which is likely to be industry leading.
Significant extra resources were
deployed to find and fix leaks, which
places usin a good position to deliver
a further 15% reduction by 2025.

We continue to offer a wide range of
social tariffs support, and we have
again exceeded our affordability
target by ensuring that none of our
customers are in water poverty.

Although we managed to reduce
customer complaints by 19% over

the previous year as our operational
performance improved, the customer
experience was still not to the standards
that we set ourselves. By the end of the
year performance had returned towards
acceptable levels following a significant
focus on making sure each customer
receives the service they have theright
to expect from us.In January 2019 we
maintained our position as the top water
company in England in the UK Customer
Satisfaction Index “UKCSI" survey. We
also had the highest Net Promoter

Score of any utility, which emphasises

Directors' remuneration
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the esteem we are held in as a service
provider by our customers. Our own
customer satisfaction survey showed
an increase to 89% from 87% last year,
although this still fell short of our very
ambitious 93% target which remains our
aim. Another important milestone was
achieved in February 2019, when we
were awarded the Institute of Customer
Services “ServiceMark” accreditation.
This covered the whole of Bristol

Water, recognising our organisational
commitment to customer excellence as
well as our strong UKCSI performance.

For water quality, we are once again

likely to be one of the best performers
in the industry on the Drinking Water
Inspectorate’s Compliance Risk Index

‘CRI"measure, achieving arecord low

score of 0032 in 2017 and an expected
score of 0.746 in 2018. We take this
aspect of our performance very
seriously - full compliance (a O CRI
score) is extremely hard to achieve and
delivering low scores every year will
be challenging as the standards we are
measured against are exacting in order
to ensure public health and public trust
in their water supply is maintained

for the long term. We achieved a

record Mean Zonal Compliance water
quality score of 99.99%, which is the
historic measure for the sector.

We delivered our PRI19 Business Plan for
2020-25 to Ofwat (the economic regulator
of the water sector) in September 2018.

It was a plan we are proud of, as we have
built customer support for a stretching

and ambitious plan that will see us
targeting industry leading leakage and
supply interruptions performance

as well as a 5% reduction in customer
bills. This support was derived from
undertaking our largest ever programme
of customer engagement, with over
37000 customers giving us their views
through 50 separate studies and research
events. Ofwat’s initial assessment of our
plan was fair and measured. We were
pleased that the quality of our customer
engagement was recognised, and that
there was a clear line of sight from our
engagement to the outcomes targeted
in our plan. In our response in April 2019
to Ofwat’s initial assessment of plans,

we provided further evidence through
our improved performance this year
that we can deliver our plan, which

was Ofwat’s most significant concern.

In January 2019, Ofwat improved our
assurance status under the Company
Monitoring Framework from “prescribed”
to “targeted’, a status that had resulted
from the 2014 price review. Trust in
our reporting of data and information
is something that the Board has taken
specific steps to improve and this
achievement is an important step
forward for Bristol Water. For both

the business plan and the Company
Monitoring Framework, it is important
that trust in Bristol Water from our
regulators and national stakeholders
matches the level of trust we achieve
in the communities we serve.

Our strategy recognises the importance

of our stewardship of the environment
to delivering trust beyond water. A
good example during 2019 was our
rewetting of a tributary of the River
Chew which was severed in 1956.
Although not a scheme required

by regulation, we worked with a

range of partners to move our river
compensation discharge to recreate
500m of river habitat. We received
excellent publicity in the national
media as a result of this improvement.

Social Contract

In January we launched our Social
Contract, the first published by a water
company. The Social Contract sets

out how we are accountable for the
social promises we make as we deliver
our purpose. Our Social Contract will
evolve as society does and we learn
from experience, so through a set of
mechanisms and initiatives we build
partnerships and relationships to
make the framework meaningful for
our customers and stakeholders.

The Social Contract is a framework
through which our customers and
stakeholders can hold us to account

for the wider benefits we promise

to provide to our communities. The
contract reflects our social purpose to
have a positive impact on the lives of

our customers, our communities, our
colleagues and the environment, beyond
the delivery of pure and reliable water.

Our Social Contract aligns the legitimate
role of profit and reward for shareholders
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Trust beyond water

with the well-being aspects of our
purpose. We have changed our
corporate governance as part of the
accountability and transparency it will
deliver. One of our new Non-Executive
Directors, Jim McAuliffe, will act as a
link between the Board, our customer
forum, the Bristol Water Challenge
Panel and our employee forum to
ensure our initiatives and performance
against our social purpose remains

at the heart of Board decisions. We

are building the initiatives and the
ongoing process so that our approach
will be fully in place for 1 April 2020.

We ran a number of launch events for
this important initiative, including a
discussion event at Bristol Zoo with a
mix of national and local stakeholders.
At atime that trust and legitimacy

in privately financed public service
providers are under national scrutiny,
we have been pleased to be able to
provide leadership in making a positive
case for companies such as Bristol
Water, who are privately financed

and with a strong social purpose.

As an example of our activities during
2019, over 30 of our staff spent a day
with our neighbours at Bedminster
Down School, providing a mix of
education on water quality and

water efficiency, as well as promoting
science, technology, engineering

and mathematics “STEM” and water
industry careers. We also ran our Youth
Board initiative for a second year,
with practical water efficiency ideas

emerging from the process which are
now being developed in practice. We
had 20 young individuals who live

in the Bristol Water region join the
Board, which allowed their voices

to be heard at an executive level.

A key part of our Social Contract is

to work in partnership with other
organisations with similar aims. We
strengthened our links through
establishing our sponsorship with the
Bristol Green Capital Partnership, who
have over 850 members and a focus on
sustainability in Bristol aligned to the UN
Sustainable Development Goals. This
builds on our existing work with City to
Sea and the Refill campaign, as well as
our popular Water Bar. The Water Bar

is afree to use, pop-up tap water bar,
which helps to reduce plastic waste at
festivals. We are proud that it has won
multiple awards since its inception, such
as the Big Bang Award for Innovation’
(Utility Week Stars Awards 2018) and
Community Project of the Year (Water
Industry Achievement Awards 2018). We
have also been building our Resource
West partnership to promote resource
efficiency, with other local utilities such
as Bristol Waste and Bristol Energy.

We provide regular updates
on our Social Contract on our
website and on social media.

Transparency and assurance
As well as the transparency of delivering

our purpose through our Social Contract,

another key priority for Bristol Water

has been transparency on performance.
In December 2018 we again published
an independently assured and verified
mid-year performance statement for
the first half of 2018/19, reflecting the
challenges we were facing to deliver the
challenging targets we set ourselves.
This report included direct comparisons
of our performance to the rest of the
industry, reflecting our ambitions. Our
interactive performance summary
available on our website at the year end,
mid-year and with our Business Plan
helped to promote easily accessible

and transparent information on both
our performance and future plans.

The Bristol Water Challenge Panel
continues to play an important role in
providing a supportive challenge on our
performance and customer engagement.

People

In January 2019 our Health & Safety
strategy was adopted by the Board. It
identifies key areas of focus for our
journey to zero harm'. Overall we
have seen a 20% reduction in accident
numbers this year, which is a fantastic
achievement, but there is still a lot

of work to do to realise our aims.

We not only took steps forward with

our future plans and our operational
performance, we also made big cultural
improvements with the adoption of

our values by all our staff. Our values

are to be; Proud, Respectful, Supportive,
Professional, Accountable, Ambitious
and, underpinning them all, Trustworthy.
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FOR THE COMMUNITY

These seven values describe who

we are and who we want to be for our
colleagues, customers, the communities
we serve, and our environment. The
Board will hold the executive to account
in delivering against these values, as they
reflect a personal commitment from the
management as to how they will lead
the organisation. They are critical to

our success and essential to achieving
our vision and strategic objectives.

We have pledged to become a Social
Mobility Employer and are targeting
our Social Contract initiatives as
part of meeting this commitment.

Governance

The Board anticipated that at a time of
challenging performance and when the
legitimacy of the water sector is under
national scrutiny, it was essential that
there was no ambiguity that customers’

interests are at the heart of our business,
and it should always be clear that this is
the case. A step of particular significance
is for reporting of leakage performance, a
measure that can benefit from improved
technical data as well as operational
performance. The Board has committed
to ensure that our outcome incentive
payments for 2015-20 are calculated
without taking into account technical
adjustments that could benefit the
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incentive calculation. We report our
actual level of leakage to reflect the latest
and most accurate data, but calculate
financial incentive adjustments without
taking any benefit from the updated
information. As part of our commitment
we reduced customer bills by cEl.2min
2019 toreflect our leakage performance
this year, rather than waiting until 2020.
This provides an example of how the

Board is accountable for both how we are
seen to deliver, as well as what we deliver.

The Board has seen significant change in
2018, with the recruitment of three new
Independent Non-Executive Directors
("INEDs"), as well as the appointment

of Laura Flowerdew as CFO. Both the
Board and the executive management
team have a stronger and more diverse
set of skills than previously,and we
believe this has contributed to our
improved performance. The Board has
full responsibility for all aspects of Bristol
Water, and we commit to delivering

the social aspects of our purpose, and
considering legitimacy and fairness. As
well as our Social Contract, our dividend
and executive remuneration policies
help to ensure we continue to deliver
fair returns and pay that reflects our
success as an organisation. The new
Board sub-committee on Health and

Safety emphasises the importance of this

aspect of wellbeing to our success as an
organisation. All of our sub-committees
are chaired by INEDs with specific

experience relevant to each committee.

The Board has ensured that the

Company'’s purpose (reflected in the
Social Contract), strategy and values
are now well established, and that the
culture of the Company reflects the
needs of all it serves. Throughout our
history, the people at Bristol Water have

been proud to go the extra mile to deliver

for our customers, our communities
and for each other. Our purposeis
important to the people who work at
Bristol Water and is reflected in our
values. The values reflect a commitment
as how we will work as an organisation.

Long-term strategy

In February 2018 we launched Bristol

Water..Clearly’, which sets out our

long-term ambition for our water

services, local communities and the

environment over the next 30 years

to 2050. Bristol Water..Clearly’ places

customers and trust at the heart of how

we continue to fulfil our responsibilities

as a trusted owner and operator of local

services critical to the communities

that we serve. Our four objectives, as

articulated in “Bristol Water..Clearly”, are:

1. Excel at customer experience;

2. Leading efficiency;

3. Develop our people and the business;
and

4. Being trusted.

Developed through engagement
with our stakeholders and customers,

‘Bristol Water..Clearly’ sets out how

we were changing and the changes
in our business to come. The
summary from this document sets
out our mission for the future.

We continue to engage with both
customers and stakeholders on key
aspects of our strategy as we deliver
against this ambition. Both our PR19
Business Plan and Social Contract
were informed by extensive customer
engagement, including through our
customer forum. We also engaged
extensively with developers and water
retailers operating in the business
market, through both surveys and our
popular engagement days. Our work to
help ensure the business retail market
operates successfully was noted by the
market operator, MOSL, in its Annual
Market Performance Report®. Bristol

Water were the only wholesaler (out of 15)

to be in the upper quartile for both of the
key wholesaler performance statistics,
being top performer on one measure
and second best performer for the other.

Aswell as direct engagement, our annual
survey of businesses and stakeholders
found that satisfaction increased

to 75% in 2019 from 72% in 2018.

& www.mosl.couk/files/content/201920%20
Annual%20Market%20Performance%20
Reportpdf
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Environment

Our catchment management work has
been more successful than we had
hoped in protecting the water quality
in the Mendip Lakes. A 14% reduction
from the baseline means the water
quality can be assessed this year as
‘improving’ for the first time. This is
despite hot dry weather conditions
that would normally be expected to
be conducive to algal growth. Through
working with the local landholders
and partners, including through the
Mendip Lakes Partnership, the frequency
of algal blooms has reduced, which
contributes to keeping long term water
quality high and treatment costs low.

We use a Biodiversity Index to target a
net ecological benefit for the land we
own and manage. This increased by a
net 11 points in 2018/19, compared to

our target for a net gain of 1 point on this
index. The main contribution to this
improvement was from the restoration of
atributary of the River Chew, re-wetting
500 meters of watercourse to create

new habitat for a wide range of wildlife,
including for the endangered European
Eel. We received significant coverage
from the national media for this initiative.

Innovation

We were pleased that Ofwat recognised
our approach to innovation as an area
of high quality in our PR19 plan. We built
on this during 2018/19 with the launch
of our incubator for entrepreneurial
organisations who can help us meet

the challenges of building trust beyond

water - “The Workshop'. As part of The
Workshop we are taking ambitious start-
ups and giving them open access to our
business in a way not normally possible,
including access to data, business leaders
and expertise. We also ran a major

Open Innovation event to encourage
collaboration across sectors, with
participation from leading innovators in
other sectors and utilities. In line with our
values, staff provide many of our future
innovation ideas and are rewarded for
them through our ‘Brainwaves’ scheme.

Financial policy

The Board has been supported through
this time of change by our investors, with
iCON Infrastructure embedded as the
main shareholder. They have committed
to not taking any dividends out of the
Bristol Water Group over 2015-20 as part
of the transformation of the organisation.
Thishasreduced gearing (the level of
debt a company has as a proportion
ofitsregulatory capital base), as well
asallowing additional and necessary
expenditure as required. Although we
delivered efficiencies overall in 2018/19,
operating expenditure was significantly
higher than expected due to one off
costs, such as to reduce leakage and due
to the hot and dry summer weather.

Our debtlevels are currently in the

range 60-65%, consistent with notional
company leverage. This has allowed us

to remain comfortably within our key
financial ratios. Gearing has fallen from
751% in March 2015 to 64.6% in March

2019, or 62.2% excluding preference shares.

Debt/RCV gearing at 64.6%is close to the
62.5% notional gearing Ofwat assumed for
the industry at the 2014 price review. This
reduction in gearing allows us to provide
assurance of our financial viability toa
range of adverse scenarios over at least
the next 10 years, analysis which has been
independently confirmed. We currently
maintain a Baal investment grade

rating, albeit, with a negative outlook.

Financial viability

Thereductionin gearing hasbeen
achieved through the Board's
implementation of a conservative
dividend policy following PR14, with
shareholders' support, to build equity and
thereby increasing financial resilience.
So far in the 2015-2020 period, our
expenditure outperformance (09% of
assumed net equity) has been offset

by underperformance on outcome
performance incentives, such as for
leakage and metering. Interest costs
havebeen slightly higher than assumed
when price controls were set, butin-line
once taking into account the higher
level of debt at the start of the period.
Dividend yields have been an average
of 17% against the 40% Ofwat assumed
for 2015-2020, which would have been
31% if adjusted for our cost and outcome
performance and level of gearing. This
demonstrates the commitment of the
Board and Bristol Water's shareholders
to provide a fair financial framework
that supports the delivery of the
long-term ambition and objectives.

Directors' remuneration
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Bristol Water reduction in gearing
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Executive remuneration detail is set out
transparently in our Annual Report. A key
feature is that our annual bonus scheme
for staff and for Executive Directors
contains the same set of Company
metrics for customer, cost and corporate
objectives, together with a weighting
towards Company metrics from personal
objectives that increases with seniority.
The pay award for 2019/20 applied to

all staff including Executive Directors
and the executive management team.

Legitimacy and “putting the

sector back into balance”

We set out in this summary all the steps
we are taking to deliver our social purpose,
including our Social Contract and a fair
use of resources for the long-term benefit
of customers, employees, other interested
stakeholders and shareholders. We also set
out theretention of equity within Bristol

Actual Actual Actual
March March March
2016 2017 2018

Water through dividend payouts lower
thanjustified by current performance for
customers. We set out measures in our
PRI19 Business Plan, including our Social
Contract, which we believe evidence
shows will maintain trust in our delivery
for customers and the environment for the
future. We are pleased that our approach
hasbeen recognised to have influenced
the wider debate across utilities and
providers of essential public services.
Weintend to continue to have aleading
rolein thisimportant debate. As well as
our own actions, we have made positive
proposals building on our experience to
Ofwat, DEFRA and National Infrastructure
Commission consultations and calls for
evidence concerning the future regulatory

and market framework for the water sector.

We publish our consultation responses
on our website, alongside blogs to make
the topics accessible to a wider audience.

Net equity
M Preference shares
M Netdebt

Actual
March
2019

Conclusion

Ithasbeen a ground-breaking year for
Bristol Water. We have started to see

the benefit of our transformation with
improved performance - both in terms

of our service to customers, but also
improving the way the Company is viewed
more widely. We will continue tobe
transparent about our transformation as we
encounter any challenges to our ambition
tobe aleading water company across the
range of performance and social measures
that matter most to our customers.
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How our performance
links to bills and dividends

Average household customer bills in
2018/19 were £183, equivalent to 50
pence per day. Expenditure and financial
assumptions within the revenue controls
result in a split into different categories as
shown in the graph right. Profitis either
retained in the business or distributed
outside of the appointed business
through the payment of dividends.

The actual cash movements during
2018/19 showed an increase in net
debt per table 1E of £21.1m, which
largely reflected increased investment,
in particular to deliver the c5Ml/d
reduction in the level of leakage
between 2017/18 and 2018/19.

So far in the 2015-20 period, profit has
been retained within Bristol Water
Group.In 2018/19 RCV increased

by £280m, £12.3m of which was the
effect of RPIinflation, compared to
the increase in net debt of £21.1m.

Where your bill goes (2018/19 - average bill pence per day)

Treating and
delivering water
Maintaining
equipment

Taxes, rates and
licence costs
Customer debt and
debt management
Billing and customer
services

Interest costs

Profit

Average
water bill

50 pence
per day

Use of regulated revenues

160
140

Other
Reduction

120 (increase) in debt
100 DlVldeIl‘dS. o
- group initiatives
£m 80 Dividends
60 - intercompany
40 interest
20 Dividendsto
shareholders
0
Investment
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-40

Tax
Interest
Spend on
operations

1516£m 16/17e€m 17/18Em  18/19£m
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Because of the retention of equity, gearing
has fallen from 75.1% in March 2015 to
64.6% in March 2019, or 62.2% excluding
preference shares. Debt/RCV Gearing

is therefore close to the 62.5% notional
gearing Ofwat assumed for the industry at
the 2014 price review. Gearing increased
by 07% during 2018/19, reflecting
increased operational expenditure and
investment despite lower inflation on RCV.

In the 2014 price review Ofwat

assumed that were Bristol Water to
perform in line with the price review
assumptions, it would earn areturn on
regulated equity (RORE) of 5.8%, within
arange of 0.2% to 78%. Over 201519 we
have overall underperformed these
assumptions (-0.7% underperformance).
Outperformance on expenditure of 0.2%
hasbeen offset by underperformance
on outcome incentives of 0.8% and
financing underperformance of 0.2%. The
financing underperformance reflects that
our gearingis slightly higher than Ofwat’s
notional assumptions, RORE for 2018/19
was 40%, with totex underperformance
of 04% and ODI underperformance of
14%. Most of the ODI underperformance
in the year related to leakage and supply
interruptions, where our improvement
in performance means we expect to see
lower ODI underperformance in 2019/20.
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How our performance
links to bills and dividends

The graph right summarises our RORE - notional gearing
performance overall (the red bar)
and the individual components that 100%
affect it, compared to Ofwat’s original
range for these components. 80%
[ ]
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B ODI outperformance

B SIM outperformance
Totex outperformance
Financing
outperformance

B oDIunderperformance
SIM underperformance
Totexunderperformance
Financing
underperformance
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The actual dividend yield is1.7%, and dividends have been paid out of the equity. The table below shows how PR14
thisincludes dividends which were Group to the current shareholders, assumed returns and dividend yields
used by the parent company to provide and the Company has paid lower compared to our actual dividends.
working capital for the group's retail dividends overall, evidenced in the
non-household joint venture. No reduced gearing levels from retaining
Ofwat PR14 Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2015-2019
Return onregulated equity (RORE) 5.8% 40% 5.3% 71% 40% 51%
Actual dividend yield 40% 00% 33% 2.0% 15% 17%

Dividend yield paid to Bristol
Water Group shareholders

By order of the Board
M Karam

Chief Executive Officer
5 July 2019

0.0%

00% 00% 00% 00%
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Bristol Water
Challenge Panel

statement

The independent Customer Challenge
Group for Bristol Water isknown asthe
Bristol Water Challenge Panel. One of

the Challenge Panel'sroles is to monitor,
scrutinise, challenge and report on

Bristol Water's performance against the 21
commitments (and four performance sub-
indicators) set out in the final report of the
Competition and Markets Authority dated
6 October 2015 and the Ofwat Price Review
2014 Final Determination of December 2014.
The Challenge Panel hasin addition been
keptinformed of the amendmentstoa
number of the performance commitments,
asoutlined in Ofwat’s Corrigenda to the
Price Review 2014 Final Determination,
which wasissued in April 2018.

The Challenge Panel hasreviewed the
Company’s performance against its
commitments for 2018/19, both at the mid-
year and end-of-year positions, including
the accrual of any associated rewards
and penalties under the associated
regulatory incentive mechanism. It also
reviewed the Company’s information
assuranceregimein place for the year
and the audit findings of the company’s
independent technical assurer Atkins.

The Challenge Panel was pleased that

the Company achieved or exceeded the
targets for nine of its commitments. The
significant investment in the Southern
Resilience Scheme, a continued drive to
reduce negative water quality contacts
and further investment in biodiversity
and environmental improvements all
contributed to the good performance. The
Challenge Panelis also encouraged by

Bristol Water's prioritisation of affordability
and its social tariff assistance (in particular
the significant increase in the number

of customers being offered its Pension
Credit tariff), which has again ensured
Z€ero customers are in water poverty.

The Challenge Panel was disappointed
that the Company failed tomeet 12 of
itstargets and received a penalty for

four of them. It notes that the targets

that were not reached coincide with the
same Performance Commitments as

the previous year. The Challenge Panel
understand that this was due in a large part
toanumber of significant and unusual
weatherrelated incidents occurring just
before and during the reporting year. The
first half of the year was marked by the
impact of the warmest and one of the
driest summers onrecord. This followed
the Beast from the East’ freeze, thaw and
snowfall eventsin February and March
2018. These events had an adverseimpact
onanumber of interrelated performance
commitments causing a number of targets
tobemissed and financial penalties
incurred. In this context we are particularly
pleased that the focus and effortsmade
toimprove leakage have been successful.
The Company also recognises thatit has
more work to do toreduce customer
complaints, which the Consumer Council
for Water has publicly challenged. A 19%
reduction in complaintsis a start,and we
will continue to challenge the Company
to deliver their intention to reduce this
further. Apart from supply interruptions
and bursts, an improved customer
experience will help to improve the many

of the targets that have not been met.

The Challenge Panelis pleased tonote that
the Company achieved a considerable
improvement inits performance

inthe second half of the year.

The Challenge Panel places great
importance on the need for Bristol Water to
provideits customers with clear, high quality
information onits service performance, on
billing matters and on operational issues.
Customers trust in the Company is heavily
dependent upon sound information. The
Challenge Panel was pleased that Ofwat
hasreduced itslevel of scrutiny for Bristol
Water'sassurance to ‘Targeted status, from

‘Prescribed assurance status. The Challenge

Panel alsoreceived assurance from
Atkins that both the Company’s reporting
methodologies and theresulting data for
all the performance commitments are
sufficiently robust to enable the Challenge
Panel torely upon the published results.

The Challenge Panel thanks the Company
for its openness and transparency
throughout the year and for providing

us with regular, timely briefings and
presentations and sharing its thinking on
how it intends to improve its operational
performance and customer service.
Welook forward toreviewing the
Company’s performance in 2019/20.

Onbehalf of the Bristol Water
Challenge Panel

Mrs Peaches Golding OBE
Independent chair

5 July 2019
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Annual

Performance Report

Disclosuresrequired by RAG 3

RAG 3 sets out requirements for
narrative disclosuresin the Annual
Performance Report, in addition to those
setoutin the tablesin sections1-4.

Accounting policies

i) Revenue recognition policy
Theregulatory accounts apply the
same policy for revenue recognition

as the statutory accounts, apart

from the derecognition of income
adjustments relating to amounts
deemed as uncollectable under IFRSI5.

All turnover isrecognised in the
regulatory accounts with the exception
of rental income and contributions
received from developers, which are
included below operating profit in ‘other
netincome”in accordance with the
regulatory accounting guidelines.

Turnover comprises charges toand
accrued income from customers and
retailers for water and other services,
exclusive of VAT. Turnover is recognised
as the performance obligation is satisfied.

Income from unmetered suppliesis
based on either the rateable value

of the property or on an assessed
volume of water supplied. Income from
metered supplies isbased on actual

or estimated water consumption.

Thereisno change to the calculation of
the household measured income accrual.
Bills areraised after a meter reading, and
consumption that hasnot yet been billed

isestimated and accrued using a defined
and consistently applied methodology
based on historic weighted average water
consumption by tariff. Non-household
retailers are billed monthly, and the
non-household accrual isbased on the
market unbilled monthly settlement
reports. The estimation of measured
income included in these reportsis also
based on historic consumption. The
difference between closing and opening
measured income accrual for the yearis
recognised within turnover. There were
no significant differences between the
previous year's accrual and the amounts
actually billed for the previous year.

Where an invoice hasbeen raised

or payment made but water or other
services have not been provided, itis
treated as billing or payment in advance
accordingly and isnot recognised

as turnover during the year.

Receipts from customers inrelation to
court costs, solicitors and debt recovery
agency fees are credited to operating costs
to offset the charges incurred. They are not
recognised within turnover during the year.

ii) Charging policy
Revenueisrecognised from chargeable
properties in accordance with the
policy above.

Charges are payable in full in the following
circumstances.

a) Occupied and furnished
Charges are payable in full from the date

of connection or change of customer
on all properties which are recorded as
occupied and furnished.

b) Unoccupied and furnished

Water charges are payable in full on
unoccupied, furnished premises.In
exceptional circumstances, whereitis
certain that the customer does not need
access to water supply at the property,
water charges are not payable. Such
exceptions include where the customer is:

inacarehome;

inlong-term hospitalisation;
in prison;

overseas long-term; or
deceased.

c) Unoccupied and unfurnished

If any consumption for metered vacant
household propertiesis recorded normal
charges apply once the occupier details
have been established. Normal charges
apply to vacant metered non-household
agricultural properties.

Properties which are unoccupied and
unfurnished, or are disconnected are not
chargeable therefore nobilling is raised
and no turnover recognised in respect of
these properties.

Only metered standing charges are
payable on unoccupied, metered
properties which are still connected.
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The occupier is any person who owns

a premises or who has agreed to pay for
water inrespect of the premises. No bills
areraised in the name of “the occupier”.
The property management process is
followed to identify whether the property
is occupied or not, and if occupied, to
identify the chargeable person andraise
abill.

The property management process may
comprise some or all of the following:

» physical inspection;

- mailings;

» customer contacts;

» meter readings for metered properties;
and

« landregistry checks.

The Company has a policy to meter
household properties on change
of occupier.

For non-household properties, the
management of the occupied status

of properties is maintained by retailers

in the central market operating system
‘CMOS". Wholesalers then bill based on the
datain CMOS, and Bristol Water carries
outindependent checks, including
visiting the properties to validate the data.

iii) Bad debt policy

The Company hasa policy tomake a

full bad debt provision for debt which
remains uncollected until after five years
of billing, for example uncollected debt
inrelation to financial year 2013/14 and
before is fully provided for by the end of

financial year 2018/19. A general provision
ismade for debt outstanding in relation

to the current and last four financial years.
The general provision is primarily based
on historic collection rates and further
adjusted by judgemental factors to reflect
the current economic environment. The
judgemental factors are applied only if it is
believed that the historic collection rates
donotreflect future expected collection
rates.

Water debt is written off for one of
following four reasons:

1. Ttis considered or known tobe
uncollectable;

2. Itis considered uneconomic to collect;

3. Older debt is written off by agreement
with the customer in return for the
receipt of regular monthly payments to
pay-off current year debt as part of our

“Restart” and “Assist” policies; or

4. Write-off is ordered by the County
Court. In these cases the court may
set payment at a proportion of the
outstanding debt. When the required
level of payment is reached the court
would instruct the rest of the debt tobe
written off.

The Company’s bad debt write off policy
hasremained unchanged and hasbeen
consistently applied in the current and
prior years, except in respect of the
non-household debt for which we no
longer have a provision as under the non-
household retail market codes, retailers
provide collateral for their debt. The
provision at 31 March 2019 was £14088m

(31 March 2018: £14.647m).

Thebad debt charge and the bad debt
provision exclude the adjustments made
in the statutory accounts for amounts
deemed uncollectable under IFRSI5.

Net trade debtor balance at 31 March 2019
was £10039m (31 March 2018: £10575m).

iv) Price Control Segments-Basis of
allocation and apportionment of costs
and assets

Allocation and apportionment of costs
and assets between Bristol Water plc and
itsassociated companiesis at arm’s length
and no cross subsidy is occurring.

Appointed business for the purpose

of these accountsis defined as the
activities necessary for the company to
fulfil its duties and functions as a Water
Undertaker under itslicence issued by
the Department for Environment, Food
and Rural Affairs ‘DEFRA"). All other
activities are classified as non-appointed
business.

Allocation and apportionment of costs
and assets between appointed and non-
appointed businesses is maintained in
the Company’s accounting system. Costs
are attributed to the appropriate cost
centres which are identified as appointed
or non-appointed. The majority of non-
appointed costs are incurred directly
with the remainder allocated ona

time apportionment basis. Assets are
specifically identified as appointed or
non-appointed.

Directors' remuneration
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Operational costs include the costs of
day to day collection, storage, treatment
and supply of water and any associated
technical and administrative support.
Allocation of operational costs between
price controls (wholesale, retail
household and retail non-household)
are made by analysing the cost

centres and type of expenditure in
accordance with RAG 2.07 (Guideline for
classification of costs across the price
controls).

Manpower costs include overheads
in their allocation to cover national
insurance and pension contributions.

Capital costs are analysed and assigned
to the appropriate price control, and
business unit within that price control,
as they are incurred, in accordance with
RAG207.

RAG 207 changed methods of
allocating costs from the previous
guidelines applicable in 2016/17. The
main changes are included within the
new tables previously part of the cost
assessment submission.

The accounting separation analyses
have been drawn up in accordance with
the Company’s accounting separation
methodology statement which hasbeen
published separately on its website
wwwbristolwatercouk/aboutus/our-
performance/#regulation. This also
provides commentary comparing

this year’s expenditure and capital
maintenance costs with last year’s.

v) Capitalisation policy

Definition of a fixed asset

Anassetis anitem that Bristol Water owns
and usesin the course of its business
which has some long-term economic
benefit for the Company. A fixed asset is
an asset that weretain for more thana
year. Capital costs are defined as those
costs, which are incurred in providing an
additional, or areplacement asset. These
costs are incorporated in the Statement

of Financial Position as additions to

fixed assets. Where non-infrastructure
assets have been replaced their costis
removed from the Statement of Financial
Position. There is no rule which requires
capitalisation of any costsin excess of a
specific value however itis unlikely that
items with a value less than £1,000 in total
would be capitalised.

Assets are either infrastructure assets or
non-infrastructure assets.

Types of assets

Infrastructure assets comprise the
integrated network of impounding and
pumped raw water storage reservoirs and
water mains and associated underground
pipework. Expenditure on such assets
relating to increases in capacity and
enhancements are included at cost.

Infrastructure expenditure falls into
two categories. Costs in respect of the
provision of additional infrastructure
capacity or enhancement of the
network are capitalised (these include
projects such asnew water mains, new

connections and work onimpounding
reservoirs) and are depreciated. Other
infrastructure expenditure todo

with repair and replacement such as
boundary mains replacement, network
analyses, lead replacements and high-risk
crossings are analysed between capital
and operating expenditure, the operating
expenditureis charged to the income
statement.

Other assets include land and buildings,
operational structures, fixed and mobile
plant, equipment and motor vehicles.
These are generally categorised asnon-
infrastructure assets and are included at
cost.

The cost of assets is their purchase cost
together with incidental expenses of
acquisition and commissioning and any
directly attributable labour costs, which
are incremental to the Company.
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Disclosures required by RAG 3

vi) Dividend policy and amounts paid to
parent Company

Itis the Company’s practice to pay an
annual level of ordinary dividends
comprising:

» a baselevel taking into consideration
therevenues allowed by Ofwat in the
5-year determination of price limits, the
Company’s funding requirements and
the actual performance of the business;
and

« anamount equal to the post-tax interest
receivable from Bristol Water Holdings
UK Limited, a UK parent company, in
respect of inter-company loans.

During the year the following dividends
have been paid:

» Inrespect of the 2019 financial year:

- Firstinterim base dividend of
£3000m, which isbelow that
commensurate with the performance
of the Company, reflecting retention of
equity by shareholders;

- Second interim for the inter-company
loan interest element of £1638m; and

- Third interim for the inter-company
loan interest element of £1629m.

Thebase dividend allowed by Ofwat at

Inaddition, annual dividends of £1.094m
(2018: £1094m) continued to be paid

on theirredeemable preference shares.
Theirredeemable preference sharesare
shown as debt in the statement of financial
position, and the dividend is therefore
shown as a finance cost in the income
statement.

The Board has proposed a final dividend
inrespect of the year ended 31 March 2019
of £nil (2018: £nil).

Tax strategy

The Finance Bill 2016 introduces the
requirement for large companies to
publish their tax strategy annually;
although Bristol Water isnot deemed a
large Company by HMRC, Ofwat requires
us to publish our tax strategy which canbe
found on the Company website
wwwbristolwatercouk/wp-content/
uploads/2019/02/ Tax-Strategy-2019pdf

Disclosure and Transparency

The Annual Report and Financial Statements for Bristol Water plc, which can be found on the Bristol Water website
wwwhbristolwatercouk/aboutus/our-performance/#financial, contains following information:

« review of company performance: pages18 - 37;
« long-term viability statement: pages 38 - 43;and
« keyriskstothebusiness: pages 44 - 55.

iCON Infrastructure
PartnersIIl, LP

iCON III Bristol Limited

Ownership and
corporate structure

iCON Infrastructure
Partners III (Bristol), LP

iCON III Water
Investments Limited

Water 2 Business Limited

Bristol Water Group
Limited (formerly CSE
Water UK Limited)

Bristol Water Holdings
UK Limited

Bristol Water Holdings Bristol Wessex Billing
Limited Services Limited

PR14 was £6.7m, excluding preference 100%
dividends and inter-company loan Bristol Water Core
interest. Therefore the base dividend of Holdings Limited Searchlight Collections Limited

£3misless than would be justified based
on the dividend policy,and the regulatory
framework principle that dividends
should reflect economic incentives from
delivery for customers and society.
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Bristol Water plc
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9 Gearing per net debt in the financial statements, see table 1E narrative

Disclosure and Transparency

10 wwwhbristolwatercouk/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/2018-Apr-23-Matters-Reserved-for-the-

The Board of Bristol Water plc (Bristol
Water) seek to uphold the highest
standards of transparency and openness
in performing its functions and dealing
with all of our stakeholders. A key aspect
of thisrelates to the ownership of Bristol
Water plc.

At 31 March 2019, 80% of Bristol Water
was ultimately owned by two investment
funds (the “iCON Funds”) which are
affiliated with iCON Infrastructure LLP
(iCON"), with the remaining 20% of
Bristol Water owned by I-Environment
Investments Limited, a UK subsidiary of
Itochu Corporation (‘Ttochu”). The iCON
Funds interest is split as follows: iCON
Infrastructure Partners III, L.P. ("iCON

III") own 50% and iCON Infrastructure
Partners I (Bristol), L.P. (iCON Bristol”)
owns 30%.

TheiCON Funds have owned their
interests in Bristol Water since 2016.
They are constituted as English limited
partnerships, which are domiciled in
Guernsey. The iCON Funds employ
typical partnership structures used

for institutional investment, pursuant
to which partners themselves (rather
than the partnership) are taxable on
their share of any profits or gains of the
partnership as and when these arise. The
ultimate investors in the iCON Funds
are pension funds, asset managers
and insurance companies from
countries around the world including
the UK, Germany, France, Canada,

the United States and Japan. Further
information concerning iCON, which is

an experienced investor in the UK water
sector, can be found at
wwwiconinfrastructurecom

Itochu has owned its indirect 20%
shareholding in Bristol Water since
2012.Ttochu is a diversified group based
in Japan which is listed on the Tokyo
stock exchange. Further information
concerning Itochu can be obtained at
wwwitochu.cojp/en

The graphs below show the beneficial
ownership of Bristol Water by both
investor type and country:

Beneficial ownership by investor type

Asset Manager

Itochu

Sovereign Wealth Fund
Public Pension
Insurance

Corporate Pension

Beneficial ownership by country

M EU (excl. UK)
M Japan
Canada
B UK
B usa
Other

The ultimate holding company of

Bristol Water is Bristol Water Group
Limited (“Bristol Water Group"), which
isa UK incorporated and UK tax
resident company. The iCON Funds and
[tochu are indirect investors in Bristol
Water Group. The iCON Funds hold

their interests in Bristol Water Group
through holding companies which

were incorporated in Guernsey but are
tax resident in the UK, namely iCON III
Bristol Limited in the case of iCON Illand
iCONIII Water Investments Limited in
the case of iCON Bristol. [tochu owns its
shareholding through a UK incorporated
and UK tax resident holding company,
which isa100% owned subsidiary.
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Bristol Water Group owns 100% of Bristol
Water indirectly through three further
wholly owned, UK incorporated and UK
tax resident holding companies, namely
Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited
(Bristol Water Holdings UK), Bristol Water
Holdings Limited (Bristol Water Holdings)
and Bristol Water Core Holdings Limited
(Bristol Water Core Holdings). Bristol
Water Holdings, the intermediate holding
company, also owns a 30% shareholding
in Water 2 Business Limited and a 50%
shareholding in Bristol Wessex Billing
Services Limited, alongside its 100%
indirect shareholding in Bristol Water.

Financing and dividend policy of the
group with its ultimate shareholders
During the year, Bristol Water paid
dividends of £6.3m (2017/18: £73m) toits
immediate holding company Bristol Water
Core Holdings. Of this dividend, £3.3m

was returned to Bristol Water in respect

of interest owing on intragroup debt
facilities (see below under “‘Group financing
arrangements”) and the £30m balance
was tore-pay in part, short term funding
provided by theiCON Funds and Itochu

in 2016, as described below. No dividends
were paid during the year (2017/18: £nil)

by Bristol Water Group to the holding
companies of Itochu or the iCON Funds.

There are nolong term shareholder
loans provided by the ultimate owners
of Bristol Water, the iCON Funds and
Itochu, to Bristol Water Group or any of
its subsidiaries (including Bristol Water).

In December 2016, the iCON Funds and

Board-of-Bristol-Water-plc-Final.pdf

[tochu contributed £90m additional
fundsto the group. These funds were
provided on a short term, non-interest
bearing basis to Bristol Water Group by
the holding companies of the iCON Funds
and Itochu, prorata to their ownership
interests in Bristol Water Group. They were
on-lent by Bristol Water Group to Bristol
Water Holdings UK to fund payments to
Agbar,a previous part owner of Bristol
Water Holdings UK, on 15 December 2016
in connection with the ending of an

O&M arrangement between Agbar and
Bristol Water Holdings UK. In 2018/19,a
payment of £34m was made (2017/18:
£nil) inrespect of this payable thus £56m
remained outstanding at 31 March 2019.

As at 31 March 2019, Bristol Water's net
debt, including preference shares, was
£3435m corresponding to aratio of
64.8%" toitsregulated asset base, which
isin close proximity to the 625% notional
capital structure that Ofwat assumed for
water companies in AMP6. The net debt
of the consolidated group comprising
Bristol Water Group and its subsidiariesis
also consistent with Ofwat’s assumption,
after adjusting for the £56m of short
termreceivables and accounting for
mark-to-market adjustments for debt
arising at the time of Bristol Water Groups
acquisition of its interests in the group.

Group financing arrangements

There are two upstream loans from Bristol
Water toits immediate 100% shareholder
Bristol Water Holdings: a £470m loan
earning interest of 6.042% and a £21.5m
loan earning interest of 5.550% (together

the “Upstream Loans”). Bristol Water
received interest payments of £3.3m net

of tax in respect of the Upstream Loans
from Bristol Water Holdings UK in the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2017/18: £3.3m). These
interest payments are currently funded by
dividends received from Bristol Water. The
Upstream Loans have been outstanding
since 2003 and 2005, respectively, and

are entirely internal to the consolidated
group headed by Bristol Water Group.

Governance

iCON has confirmed that theiCON

Funds are aware and supportive of

Ofwat's Principles of "Board leadership,
transparency and governance' published
in April 2014 and revised in January 2019,
which set out Ofwat's expectations for
holding companies of regulated water
companies to show their adherence to the
highest standards of corporate governance.

There are alist of matters that are reserved
for the Board of Bristol Water plc which
indicates where shareholder approval
may be required. This is available on our
website'?. Where shareholder approval
isrequired, thisis obtained prior to
approval by the Bristol Water Board. iCON
has confirmed on behalf of iICON Il that,
other than iCON III's limited partners
andiCON IIT's direct and indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries, there are no other
beneficiaries of the regulated Company
within the iCON group structure.iCON
has, on behalf of ICON Il in its capacity
asmanaging general partner of iCON

III, given an undertaking compliant with
Condition P of the Company's licence
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Disclosure and Transparency

when it took control of the Company
(the "Condition P Undertaking”).

iCON has confirmed, on behalf of
iCON Il in its capacity as managing
general partner of iCONII, as follows:

- ithasbeen briefed on Bristol Water's
duties under the Water Industry Act
1991 and the licence;

« itisaware of and will comply with the
terms of the Condition P Undertaking,
including:

- itsobligation to provide all such
information as may be necessary to
enable Bristol Water to comply with
the requirements of the conditions
of its appointment as a water
undertaker;and

- itwill refrain from any action which
would or may cause Bristol Water to
breach any of its obligations under
the Water Industry Act1991 or the
conditions of its appointment asa
water undertaker;

it will provide Bristol Water with the
information it needs to assure itself
that Bristol Water is not at risk from
the activities of the wider Bristol
Water group;
it will disclose to Bristol Water details of
any issue identified by its Directors in
respect of the Bristol Water group that
might materially impact upon Bristol
Water so that Bristol Water can take all
appropriate steps;
it will facilitate the ability of Bristol Water
tomeet the requirements of its own
code of Corporate Governance and a
new Corporate Governance Statement

for the next financial year which has
been approved by the Board; and

« it will support Bristol Water's ability

to make strategic and sustainable
decisionsin the long term interests of
the Company.

Principles of corporate governance
Bristol Water has developed its own
corporate governance code (‘the BW
Code”) which combines the UK 2016
Corporate Governance Code (‘the Code”)
and the “Ofwat principles’”. The “Ofwat
principles”are set out in the Ofwat
document “Board leadership, transparency
and governance” published in January
2014 and enforce the UK Corporate
Governance Code.In May 2019 the

Board approved the adoption of a new
Corporate Governance Statement which
incorporates by reference the new UK
Corporate Governance Code 2018 and the
new Ofwat Principles of board leadership,
transparency and governance. This

new Corporate Governance Statement
will apply with effect from 1 April 2019.

Our new Corporate Governance
Statement is available on our website
(wwwhbristolwatercouk/wp-content/
uploads/2019/07/Bristol-Water-Corporate-
Governance-Statement-July-2019pdf).

Bristol Water is a private company

with listed debt including Cumulative
Irredeemable Preference Sharesbut no
listed ordinary shares as categorised asa
‘standard listing on the main market of the
London Stock Exchange, therefore isnot
under an obligation to report compliance

with the 2016 or 2018 Corporate
Governance Code, however, the conditions
of our Water Licence require us toreport
asif we have a ‘premium listing. The Board
is pleased to confirm that Bristol Water
complied with the provisions set out in

the BW Code for the period under review.

Ofwat Board Leadership Transparency
and Governance Principles require that:

Independent Directors (including an
independent chairman) are the largest
single group on the Board, compared
with (i) Executive Directors, and (ii)
Non-Executive Directors who are not
independent;

Thenumber of shareholders’
representatives on the board is

not greater than the number of
Independent Directors (excluding an
Independent Chairman); and

There are fewer Executives than
Independent Non-Executive Directors
(including an Independent Chairman)
onthe Board.

Directors’ emoluments

Full and detailed disclosures of Directors’
remuneration are included in the
Directors remuneration report (Appendix
1 which sets out the basis of Director
remuneration, including bonuses, and
links to standards of performance. The
annual bonus arrangements (Annual
Cash Incentive Plan or "ACIP”) were set on
24 May 2018 for Mel Karam, CEO and 29
November 2018 for Laura Flowerdew, CFO.

Directors' remuneration
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Statement of Directors responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the regulatory accounting
statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors

to prepare accounting statements for
each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the accounting
statements in accordance with FRS1OL
Under company law the Directors must
not approve the accounts unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company
and of the profit or loss of the company
for that period. In preparing these
accounting statements, the Directors are
required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently;

- make judgments and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

- state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in
the accounting statements; and

» prepare the accounting statements
on the going concern basis unless it
isinappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the company

and enable them to ensure that the
accounting statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The maintenance and integrity of the
Company’s website is the responsibility
of the Directors and the maintenance
and integrity of the Regulator’'s website
is the responsibility of the Regulator; the
work carried out by the auditors does not
involve consideration of these matters
and, accordingly, the auditors accept
noresponsibility for any changes that
may have occurred to the Regulatory
Accounts since they were initially
presented on the websites.

After making enquiries, the Directors
are of the opinion that the Company has
adequate resources or the reasonable
expectation of raising further resources
asrequired to continue in operation for
the foreseeable future. Therefore they
continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing these
accounts.

In addition, the Directors have
responsibility for ensuring that the
Company keeps proper accounting
records sufficient to enable the historical
cost and current cost information
required by Condition F of the licence
tobe prepared having regard to all
Regulatory Accounting Guidelines.

The Directors are also required to
confirm in the accounting statements
that, in their opinion, the Company was
in compliance with paragraph 31 of
Condition K of the licence relating to the
availability of the rights and assets at the
end of the financial year.

Auditors and disclosure of
information to auditors

Each of the persons whoisa
Director at the date of approval
of thisreport confirms that:

1. Sofar asthe Director is aware,
thereisnorelevant audit information
of which the company’s auditors are
unaware; and

2. The Director has taken all the steps that
they ought to have taken as a Director
in order to make themself aware of
any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should
be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of s418 of the Companies Act
2006.

By order of the Board
LFlowerdew

Chief Financial Officer
5 July 2019
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Regulatory certificate of sufficiency
of resources by the Directors

Section 1: Regulatory
financial reporting

Asrequired under condition I17 of its Financial resources: 1A Income statement
Instrument of Appointment relating for the year ended 31 March 2019
to diversification and protection + Profitandlossbudget, and capital Differences
of core business the Directors programme, for 2019/20 and forecast between
of Bristol Water plc confirm: for 2021, approved by the Board; statutory Total
+ Monthly management accounts and RAG Non- Total appointed
1. That in the opinion of the Directors prepared for periods prior to the Statutory  definitions appointed adjustments activities
the Appointee will have available to certificate date; em cm em em em
it sufficient financial resources and « Cashatbank/on deposit held in the
facilities to enable it to carry out, for at Bristol Water Statement of Financial Revenue 121604 2235 1149 -3.384 118.220
least the next 12 months, the Regulated Position of £17mat 31 March 2019;and Operating costs 94768 0073 0814 0741 94027
Activities (including the investment « Unutilised committed term facilities of .
programme necessary to fulfil the £77mas at 31 March 2019. Other operating income 3123 0000 0000 0000 3123
Appointee’s obligations under the Operating profit 29.959 2308 0335 -2.643 27.316
Appointment); Management resources:
' o ' ‘ A Other income 0.000 1975 0000 1975 1.975
2. That }n the oplmon ofthe Directorsthe - an-tol Water plc hasan expgrlenced Interest income 4106 0000 0000 0000 4106
Appointee will, for at least the next 12 senior management team with good
months, have available toit: knowledge of the water industry. Interest expense 18.839 -0389 0000 -0.389 19.228
a) management resources; and Other interest expense 1.285 0000 0000 0.000 1.285
b) systems of planning and internal Associated company contracts: Profit before tax 16511 0722 0335 1057 15454
control;
which are sufficient toenableittocarry « The Company currently haslimited
out those functions; and contracts with Associates and all UK Corporation tax -0.953 0033 -0063 009 -0.857
Associated companies comply with Deferred tax 1177 0103 0000 0103 -1.074
3. Inrespect of the Wholesale the ring-fencing conditions set out in Profit for the year 14.381 -0586 0272 -0.858 13523
business only, that in the opinion of the Instrument of Appointment.
the Directors, any contract entered
into with any Associated Company Dividends -6.267 0000 -0.272 0.272 -5.995
include all necessary provisions Approved by the Board and signed on its
and requirements concerning the behalf on 5 July 2019 by Tax analysis
standard of service to be supplied to
the Appointee, to ensure, that it is able M Karam Chief Executive Officer Currentyear 1479 0033 0063 “00%6 1383
tomeet allits obligationsasa L Flowerdew Chief Financial Officer Adjustments inrespect of prior years -0526 0000 0000 0000 -0526
water undertaker. UK Corporation tax 0953 -0033 0063 -0.096 0.857

The main factors that the Directors have
taken into account in giving this certificate:
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All of the turnover and operating costs above relate to continuing operations. Included in other operating income is the profit on the

sale of an operational depot during the year.
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Differences between Statutory and RAGs Definitions
Adjustments are made to the statutory numbers to ensure compliance with the Ofwat guidance reflected in RAG 311. These are:

£m Description of difference between Statutory & RAG definitions

£0405m property rental income reclassified to other income, from revenue.
£1.712m grants and contributions reclassified to other income from revenue
-2.235 £0118m relating to amounts previously deemed as uncollectable under
IFRSI15 which has been recognised as revenue in the statutory accounts
(increasing revenue), has been derecognised in the regulatory accounts.

-£0.055m disapplication of IFRS 15 increasing the bad debt charge, in operating costs

-£0.300m expense of new supplies which are capitalised in the statutory accounts

-0073
£0.130m removal of depreciation on new supplies, net of amortisation of grants (see below)
£0152m property maintenance reclassified to other income to net off rent received

1975 £0.253m net property income (see above)

’ £1.712m grants and contributions and £0.010m depreciation of grants unaffected by IFRSI15.

Borrowing costs capitalised under IAS23 in the statutory accounts

-0.389 ) .
are derecognised and shown in interest expense.

0033 Current tax impact of the above IFRS15 adjustments at 19%

0103 The associated deferred tax relating to the removal of the capitalisation of

’ new supplies costs, depreciation of those costs and IAS23 interest
1Ai Taxation Commuted Sum contributions. The which treats the actual contributions

The statutory current tax charge for
2018/2019 of £0.953m includes £0.526m
tax reduction for prior years. A deferred
tax charge of £1177mresulted in a total
tax charge of £2130m for the year.

Theregulatory appointed business
current tax charge of £0.857m s lower
than the standard corporation tax rate
and isreconciled in the table opposite.
The main contributing factors to this are:

» capital allowances claimed in the
year are higher than depreciation
charged in the accounts; thisis due
to the difference in speed of capital
expenditure write off under corporate
tax law compared with accounting
rates;

- thegain on sale of Bedminster Depot
provisionally being rolled over into
new eligible operational assets in
accordance with HMRC Rollover
Relief legislation, thereby deferring the
taxable gain;and

« changesto the useful economic lives
of Infrastructure Charge and Statutory

tax treatment aligns to the accounting
treatment and the change in the lives
impacts current tax. The change to the
livesreflects a review of the economic
lives during the implementation of
IFRS15.

No capital allowances have been
waived in the year. The revenue, set

in the CMA Final Determination, is
based on when tax is actually paid, and
therefore reflects that the tax payments
would lag the accounting results.

The provision adjustment is in relation
to the general element of the bad debt
provision which is not allowable from a
corporation tax perspective.

Deferred income relates to the write off
of contributions in relation to capital
assets which for tax are written off in
line with the capital allowance rates not
the accounting lives.

The pension adjustment reflects the tax
treatment of a defined benefit scheme

paid as receiving tax relief and all
other adjustments as non taxable
adjustments.

The prior year adjustment reflects
changes to the capital allowance
treatment following a detailed review
of the capital expenditure in the year
between the Statutory 2018 Financial
Statements and the submitted tax
computation to HMRC.

The overall current tax charge includes
atax charge of £0.8m inrelation to group
relief. Group relief is surrendered to
Bristol Water plc by Bristol Water Holdings
UK Limited. Bristol Water pays for the

use of the grouprelief at the prevailing
corporation tax rate, which is currently
19%. Full details can be found under the
related party transactions note.
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Reconciliation of current tax charge

Effective
£m taxrate

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 15454
Profiton Qrdmary act1v1tle§ mult'lphed by standard rate of 2036 190%
Corporation Tax in the United Kingdom at 19%
Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes - 0208

8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference share dividends ’

Provisional rollover relief claim -0.594

Capital allowances claimed for the year -5.260

Depreciation for the year 4292

Provisions 0.084

Deferred income 0.158

Pension adjustment -0.097

Change in contribution lives which had previously been overtaxed -0.344
Current tax charge before prior year adjustments 1383 8.9%
Prior year adjustments:

Capital allowances -0.526
Total current tax charge in the income statement 0.857 5.5%
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Section 1: Regulatory financial reporting

Reconciliation of current tax to price limit

£m
Final Determination current tax allowance at outturn prices 1561
Key differences:
Impact in profit before tax 0673
Debt gearing adjustment 0562
Impact of prior year adjustments -0.526
Disposal of Bedminster depot -roll over relief claim -0.594
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation charge -0924
Pension contribution 0091
Other adjustments 0014
Total appointed current tax charge 0.857
Non-appointed and non-regulatory business tax adjustments 0.096
Total statutory current tax charge W
Deferred tax

The deferred tax is calculated at 17% and will continue to change in line with relevant legislation. The Company applies relevant tax
laws in an appropriate manner and does not seek to enter into non-commercial transactions to reduce tax.

Comparison of current tax charge to Final Determination allowed tax

The Final Determination allowed tax figure is in 2012/13 prices therefore this has been indexed to reflect the RPI increase between
2012/13 prices and current 2018/19 prices. Our allowed tax for the year in 2012/13 prices was £1.348m which once indexed to nominal
prices increases to £1.561m. Capital allowances for the year are higher than the Final Determination due to the changes in capital
expenditure profiling.

The allowed tax per the Final Determination for the cumulative period of this AMP so far, is £8.017m. Currently, our total tax for the
four years asreported is £7779m.
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1B Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2019

Differences

between

statutory Total

and RAG Non- Total appointed

Statutory definitions  appointed adjustments activities
£m £m £m £m £m

Profit for the year 14.381 -0580 0272 -0.852 13529
Actuarial losses on post-employment plans -37.258 0000 0000 0.000 -37.258
Other comprehensive income 12.717 0000 0000 0.000 12.717
Total comprehensive income for the year -10160 -0580 0272 -0.852 -11.012

Pension arrangements for employees were historically provided partly through our membership in the Water Companies Pension
Scheme (“WCPS"), which provides defined benefits based on final pensionable pay. We have a separate section within the WCPS for
the regulated water business; the section was closed to new employees some years ago.

In June 2019, abuy-in of the scheme was undertaken, as a result the assets were replaced with an insurance policy which matches
the pension scheme’s liabilities. The Company is working with the pension trustee and also insurers to affect a buy-out, whereby
the insurer will take on the responsibility for the scheme liabilities. The completion of this process will substantially reduce balance
sheet risk whilst providing long term benefit to members by fully securing their benefits and entitlements.

The actuarial valuation under International Accounting Standard 19 IAS 19) and therefore FRS101 at 31 March 2019 shows anet
pension surplus of £9513m which has been recognised in the financial statements (2017/18: £33.397m). As the scheme has been
closed to future accrual the surplus cannot be recovered through on-going contribution payments. The pension asset is shown net
of a 35% income tax rate which would be applicable if the funds were repaid to Bristol Water from the pension scheme. The gross
reduction in the surplus (£37.258m) is included in the actuarial losses on post employment plans and the reduction in the income
tax applicable (£12.861m) is included in other comprehensive income.

Differences between statutory and RAGs definitions
The difference has occurred in the income statement, and relates to dis-applied capitalisation net of the tax effect.
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1C Statement of financial position Differences Differences between statutory and RAGs definitions
at 31March 2019 between The fixed assets difference is the dis-application of capitalisation of both interest and the administration of new supplies; deferred

statutory Total taxis also adjusted for this impact, in accordance with the regulatory accounting guidelines. The trade and other receivables

and RAG Non- Total appointed adjustment relates to the adjustments for the impact of revenue deemed as uncollectable to debtors and the bad debt provision

Statutory definitions ~ appointed adjustments  activities under IFRS15 which is removed for the purposes of the regulatory accounting guidelines.
£m £m £m £m £m 1D Statement of cash flows
Non-current assets for the year ended 31 March 2019
Fixed assets 629432 6953 1322 -8.275 621157 D;f:‘r;ggﬁs
Intangible assets 10420 0000 0000 0.000 10420 statutory Total
Investments -loans to group companies 68500 0000 0000 0.000 68500 andRAG Non- Total appointed
Retirement benefit assets e 0000 0000 0000 9513 Statutory definitions  appointed adjustments activities
£m £m £m £m £m
Total 717865 0953 1322 8275 709390 Operating profit 29959 2308 0335 2643 27316
Current assets
Other income 0000 0253 0000 0.253 0.253
Inventories 1660 0000 0026 0026 1634 Depreciation 23199 0136 0050 0186 23013
Trade & other receivables 27797 0192 0000 0192 27989 Amortisation - G&Cs 1712 1712 0000 1712 0000
Cash & cash equivalents 17064 0000 0000 0.000 17064 Changes in working capital 0000 20012 <0051 0039 0039
Total 46.521 0192 0026 0166 46687 Pension contributions 0772 0000 0000 0000 0772
Current liabilities Movement in provisions -0.238 0192 0000 0192 -0.046
Trade & other payables 26462 0000 1.348 1.348 25114 Profit on sale of fixed assets -3123 0000 0000 0.000 -3123
Capex creditor 12,093 0000 0000 0000 12,093 Cash generated from operations 48.857 -0299 0334 -0633 48.224
Borrowings -0493 0000 0000 0.000 -0493 Net interest paid -8.790 0000 0000 0000 -8.790
Financial instruments 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 Taxpaid 2169 0000 10063 0063 2106
Current tax liabilities e 0000 0000 0000 0119 Net cash generated from operating activities 37.898 -0.299 0271 -0.570 37.328
Investing activities

Provisions 1700 0000 0000 0000 1700 Capital expenditure 52.887 0299 0000 0299 52588
Total e 0000 1348 1348 39319 Grants & Contributions 3724 0000 0000 0000 3724
Net current assets 5654 0192 1322 1514 7168 Disposal of fixed assets 3490 0000 0000 0000 3490
Non-Current liabilities Other 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
Borrowings -347.569 0000 0000 0000 -347569 Net cash used in investing activities -45673 0299 0000 0.299 -45.374
Financial instruments 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 Net cash generated before financing activities 7775 0000 0271 -0271 -8046
Deferred income - G&Cs -81.904 0000 0000 0.000 -81.904 Cash flows from financing activities
Preference share capital 12500 0000 0000 0.000 -12.500 Equity dividends paid -6.267 0000 -0271 0.271 -5.996
Deferred tax -58.032 1041 0000 1041 -56.991 Netloansreceived 16161 0000 0000 0.000 16161
Total 500005 1041 0000 1041 -498.964 Net cash generated from financing activities 9.894 0000 -0271 0.271 10165
Net assets 223514 5720 0000 5720 17794 Increase in net cash 2119 0000 0000 0000 2119
Equity
Called up share capital 5.998 0000 0000 0.000 5.998 The profit on sale of fixed assets relates to the sale of an operational depot during the year.
Retained earnings & other reserves 217516 5720 0000 -5.720 211.796
Total equity 223514 5720 0000 5720 217794 Differences between statutory and RAGs definitions

The difference is the dis-application of capitalisation of interest and the administration of new supplies (movements between
operating profit, interest paid and capital expenditure), the difference in treatment of net rental income, depreciation on the
capitalised interest and non payers provision which has been dis-applied, and the reclassification of grants and contributions
(movements between operating profit and amortisation).

The accounts were approved by an authorised Committee of the Board on 5 July 2019 and signed on its behalf by
M Karam, Chief Executive Officer and L Flowerdew, Chief Financial Officer
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1E Net debt analysis Interest rate risk profile 1F Financial flows (price base - 2012-13 RPI average)
at 31 March 2019 12 Months ended 31 March 2019
Fixedrate Floatingrate Indexlinked Total Notional Actual Actual Notional Actual Actual
£m £m £m £m returnsand returnsand returns returnsand returnsand returns
Borrowings (excluding preference shares) 84070 74035 188820 346.925 notional notional ~ andactual  notional notional  andactual
' regulatory  regulatory  regulatory  regulatory  regulatory  regulatory
Preference share capital 12500 equity equity equity equity equity equity
Total borrowings 359425 % 9% % m m m
Cash 17064 A
Short-term deposits 0000 Return of regulatory equity 580 553 580 9752 9295 9295
Net debt 342.361 Actual performance adjustment 2010-15 -012 -011 -012 -0195 -0186 -0186
Gearing 64.56% Adjusted return on regulatory equity 568 542 568 9557 9109 9109
Adjusted gearing 62.42% Regulatory equity 168146 168146 160256
Full year equivalent nominal interest cost" 4171 1.298 10932 16401
Full year equivalent cash interest payment 4171 1298 6401 11.870 BFinancing
Indicative interest rates Gearing 000 -014 -015 0000 -0.243 -0.243
Indicative weighted average nominal interest rate 496% 175% 5.79% 473% Variance in corporation tax 000 101 106 0000 1695 1695
Indicative weighted average cash interest rate 496% 175% 3.39% 342% Grouprelief 000 000 000 0000 0000 0000
Weighted average years to maturity 1272 723 1536 12.99 Cost of debt 000 067 071 0000 1130 1130
Hedging instruments 000 -035 -037 0000 -0596 -0596
Reconciliation to table 1C £m Financing total 568 6.60 6.92 9557 11.095 11.095
Current borrowings per table 1C 0493
Non-current borrowings per table 1C 347569 C Operational performance
Less unamortised net premia 1137 Totex out / (under) performance 000 026 028 0000 0445 0445
Borrowings (excluding preference shares) per table 1E 346.925 ODI out / (under) performance 000 201 211 0000 -3380 -3380
Retail out / (under) performance 000 -046 -048 0000 -0777 -0777
TablelEs definition of net debt does not include unamortised net premia. This creates a difference with the net debt shown in financial statements, . )
thenet debt shown in table 1E and the borrowingsin table 1C. This creates different gearing amounts dependent on the net debt definition used. Other exceptional items 000 122 128 0000 2047 2047
Operational performance total 0.00 -099 -1.04 0.000 -1.665 -1.665
Gearing Gearing
Total i . .61 ! .557 4 !
em @dp) (1dp) otal earnings 568 56 5.88 955 9430 9430
Net debt per the financial statements excluding preference shares 330.998 62.42% 62.4%
Add preference shares 12500 RCV growth for RPI inflation 306 306 306 5139 5139 4897
Net debt per the financial statements including preference shares 343498 64.77% 64.8% Total shareholder return 874 866 894 14696 14568 14327
) ) Net dividend 400 101 106 6.726 1696 1696
Less unamortised net premia 1137
Net debt per table 1E 342.361 64.56% 64.6% Retained value 474 766 788 7970 12.872 12631
Gearingis calculated as net debt divided by Regulatory Capital Value "RCV” (£530.305m). The adjusted gearing in the table 6242% is E Dividends reconciliation
calculated in line with Moody’s definition, which excludes preference shares from net debt as defined in the financial statements and is .
expressed as a percentage of RCV. The allowance included in the determination for the real cost of debt was 2.61%. The indexed linked Gross dividend 400 308 323 6726 5179 5179
cash interest cost is 0.78% higher than the determination at 3.39%. To compare the fixed and floating interest rates with the indicative Interest received on intercompany loans 000 207 217 0000 3483 3483
cash interest rates, they need to be adjusted for the year average inflation of 306% giving a combined rate inreal terms of 040% (2.21% Net dividend 400 101 106 6726 1696 1696

lower than the allowance). The net weighted overall difference between the allowed real cost of debt and the actual interest rates
incurred is 058% lower. In addition to the interest shown above, we also pay preference dividends of £1094m per annum.
Interest costs and interest rates in table 1E exclude preference dividends

200 | Bristol Water plc Annual Performance Report 2018/19 Bristol Water plc Annual Performance Report2018/19 | 201



Trustbeyond water Billsanddividends Challenge panelstatement Annual performancereport Directors' remuneration

1F Financial flows (price base - 2012-13 RPI Average)

Average 201519
Notional Actual Actual Notional Actual Actual
returnsand returnsand returns returnsand returnsand returns
notional notional and actual notional notional and actual
regulatory  regulatory  regulatory  regulatory  regulatory  regulatory
equity equity equity equity equity equity
% % % £m £m £m
A
Return on regulatory equity 580 519 580 9309 8329 8329
Actual performance adjustment 2010-15 012 011 012 -0196 -0175 -0175
Adjusted Return on regulatory equity 568 508 568 9113 8154 8154
) We provide an explanation of our performance, bills and dividends level as a separate summary at the beginning of our Annual
Regul 160494 160494 143602
egulatory equity S92 S0 = Performance Report. This section provides more detailed explanation of the Financial Funds Flow in table 1F.
BFinancing Overall the table shows that gearing has fallen over 2015-2019. Value has been retained within the regulated business and dividends,
) after intercompany interest, have been below both PR14 assumptions and PR14 assumptions adjusted for gearing and performance.
] -032 0. ! -051 0
Gearing 000 03 036 0000 0518 0518 The actual retained value is higher than the increase in the RCV and is higher than the notional expectations of retained value,
Variance in corporation tax 000 012 014 0000 0197 0197 before and after adjusting for actual performance. This is the case for both 2018/19 and 2015-191in total.
Grouprelief 000 000 000 0000 0000 0000
The calculation of the year average RCV has been made in accordance with the RAGS. This calculation is as follows:
Cost of debt 000 010 008 0000 0159 0120
Hedging instruments 000 -048 -054 0000 -0776 -0776 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Financing total 568 450 500 9113 7.216 7177 £m £m £m £m £m
Published year end RCV nominal prices 423575 441202 470667 502270 530305
C Operational performance Year end RCV average prices (divided by year end RPIand
Totex out/ (under) performance 000 063 070 0000 1007 1007 multiplied by 2013 ave. RPD 403146 413489 427673 441629 455158
ODIout/ (under) performance 000 108 121 0000 1733 1733 Average ' 408317 AZDSHL  AOM6R1 R
Retail out / (under) performance 000 009 010 0000 0150 0150 Published year average RCV prices 408275 420538 434607 448.348
Difference (0042) (0043) (0044) (0046)
Other exceptional items 000 050 056 0000 0807 0807
Operational performance total 0.00 -0.04 -0.05 0.000 -0.069 -0.069
Total earnings 568 445 495 9113 7147 7108
RCV growth for RPIinflation DB PR PR 3715 3715 3324 The actual performance adjustment This is compared to the allowed cost of performance. This reflects the need to
201015 relates to the Ofwat Final debt of 2.61%. This difference of 307% invest in the transformation of Bristol
Total shareholder return 799 677 726 12828 10862 10432 Determination model. This model is multiplied by the difference notional Water in preparation for 2020, further
Net dividend 400 121 135 6420 1943 1943 includes adjustmentrewardsfor SIMand  gearing and actual average gearing of details of which are included in our
) the Revenue Correction Mechanism of 14% and then multiplied by the year Bristol Water For All business plan for
Retained value 399 556 59 6409 8919 8489 £0605 and £0510 respectively, netted average RCV of £455158 The calculation  2020-25.
off by an adjustment penalty to Capital of gearing includes Preference shares
E Dividends reconciliation Incentive Scheme of £1310. Each of these  asadvised by Ofwat. Actual returns
. adjustments are per annum and are were below notional returns at the start
Gross dividend 400 348 389 6420 5593 5593 incurred evenly throughout AMP6. of 201520, but this gap hasreduced as
Interest received on intercompany loans 000 2.27 254 0000 3650 3650 gearing hasfallen. Thisis a deliberate
Net dividend 400 121 135 6420 1943 1943 In accordance with Ofwat guidance, strategy supported by our shareholders
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gearing has been calculated with
reference to the adjusted Return on
Regulatory Equity of 568% in 2018/19.

retaining equity within Bristol Water by
accepting lower dividends than justified
by base regulatory dividends and our
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Section I: Regulatory financial reporting

The variance in corporation tax is a calculation of the difference between the amount allowed for corporation tax according to
the Competition and Markets Authority ("CMA") PR14 Final Determination less several adjusting items. The applicable figures for

2018/19 are as follows:

£m
Tax allowed per PR14 1348
Tax payable at the standard rate on appointed activities (0763)
Adjustment for accelerated capital allowances 0641
Prior year adjustments 0445
Total 1672

Bristol Water plc pays its associate an
amount equal to the tax benefit of any
grouprelief received, therefore this
amount is £nil.

The cost of debt is calculated based on
the net interest charge in the accounts,
excluding interest received from inter-
company loans (which is funded by
inter-company dividends). It includes
indexation and preference dividends. The
Company has refinanced its borrowings
during the year which has increased
net debt in excess of what the interest
expense hasincreased by which has
resulted in abetter cost of debt position
when compared to the Ofwat Final
Determination.

The hedging instruments amount of
£0596mrelates to five swaps that the
business entered in to during the year. The
costismade up of interest and termination
costs. Asat the year end the business does
not have any hedging instruments.

With the exception of Other
Exceptional Items, the Operational
Performance section are absolute
values taken from the RORE
calculations for the year as set out in
table 4H.

As well as the non-household costs
incurred since exiting the market on 1
April 2017 (2019 £0.656, 2018 £0.583),
Other Exceptional items include
adjustments for the profit on disposal
of the non-household customer book
of £2.143m in 2017/18, and the profit
on disposal of an operational depot
of £3129m in 2018/19. Both items have
been deflated to 2012/13 prices.

In 2017/18 an impairment of the
proposed second Cheddar Reservoir
took place which amounted to a
depreciation charge of £4.716m. As
this impairment had no cash impact, it
has not been included in the Financial
Flows table above.

Thenet dividend is calculated by taking
total appointed dividends of £5.996m that
were paid during the year (which include
dividends paid to fund inter-company
loan interest) netted off by £4033m of
interest received on intercompany loans
less tax at the prevailing rate. Thisis then
deflated back to 2012/13 prices for the
purposes of the fundflow analysis. This
interest is charged on £68.5m of loans to
holding companies.
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Section 2: Price Control
and additional segmental
reporting

2A Segmental income statement

for the 12 months ended 31 March 2019 Retail Wholesale
Non- Water Water
Household Household Resources  Network+ — Water total Total
£m £m £m £m f£m £m

Revenue - price control 11191 0000 104731 104731 115.922
Revenue - non price control 0000 0000 2.298 2.298 2.298
Operating expenditure 10699 -0656 -12.952 -46.702 59654 -71.009
Depreciation

- tangible fixed assets 0112 0000 1606 18594 -20.200 -20.312
Amortisation

- intangible fixed assets -0132 0000 -0.232 2342 2574 -2.706
Other operating income 0000 0000 0284 2.839 3123 3123
Operating profit before recharges 0.248 -0656 27724 27.316
Recharges from other segments -0.803 0000 0000 0000 0000 -0.803
Recharges to other segments 0000 0000 0060 0743 0803 0.803
Operating profit -0.555 -0.656 28527 27.316

Bristol Water exited the non-household retail market on 1 April 2017, therefore the retail non-household revenue is £nil. Operating
expenses are still incurred in this sector under the regulatory accounting guidelines, an analysis of which is shown in 2C. £3129m of

the water network + other operating income relates to the sale of a Company depot in the year.

Bristol Water plc Annual Performance Report2018/19 | 205



Trustbeyond water Billsanddividends Challenge panelstatement Annual performancereport Directors' remuneration

2B Totex analysis Wholesale Water
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2019
Water Water
Resources  Network + Total
fm £m £m
Operating expenditure
Power 1604 6.864 8468
Income treated as negative expenditure -0008 -0037 -0.045
Abstraction charges/discharge consents 2.781 0108 2.889
Bulk supply/bulk discharge 0016 0118 0134
Other operating expenditure - renewals expensed in the year (infrastructure) 0235 2051 2.286
Other operating expenditure - renewals expensed in the year (non-infrastructure) 0000 0000 0.000
Other operating expenditure - excluding renewals 6.812 32.849 39661
Local authority and cumulo rates 1270 3631 4901
Total operating expenditure excluding third-party services 12.710 45584 58.294
Third-party services 0.242 1118 1.360
Total operating expenditure 12952 46702 59.654
Capital expenditure
Maintaining the long-term capability of the assets - infrastructure 0430 15582 16.012
Maintaining the long-term capability of the assets - non-infrastructure 0777 15637 16414
Other capital expenditure - infrastructure 0000 9830 9.830
Other capital expenditure - non-infrastructure 1192 9109 10.301
Infrastructure network reinforcement 0000 0889 0.889
Total gross capital expenditure (excluding third party) 2.399 51047 53446
Third party services 0002 0167 0.169
Total gross capital expenditure 2401 51214 53.615
Grants and contributions
Less grants and contributions 0000 4199 4199
Totex 15353 93717 109.070
Cash expenditure
Pension deficit recovery payments 0000 0000 0000
Other cashitems 0000 0000 0.000
Totex including cash items 15353 93717 109.070
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2C Operating cost analysis

for the 12 months ended 31 March 2019 Retail
Non-
Household household Total

£m £m £m
Operating expenditure
Customer services 2427 0143 2570
Debt management 0459 0000 0459
Doubtful debts 3913 0000 3913
Meter reading 0276 0000 0.276
Services to developers 0380 0.380
Other operating expenditure 3624 0133 3.757
Total operating expenditure excluding third-party services 10699 0656 11.355
Third-party services operating expenditure 0000 0000 0.000
Total operating expenditure 10699 0656 11.355
Depreciation - tangible fixed assets 0111 0000 ol
Amortisation - intangible fixed assets 0132 0000 0132
Total operating costs 10942 0656 11.598
Debt written off 4140 0000 4140

2Ci Retail costs compared to the allowance
The allowed household retail costs were £11.0m and actual costs were £10.9m, £01m lower than the allowance.

Household property numbers did not increase as quickly as anticipated, with 493,832 household properties compared to the
PR14 assumption of 498,934. Unmeasured customer numbers were 224,438 versus assumed 191497 and measured numbers were
269,394 versus assumed 307437. The net impact of these customer number differences is an expected cost reduction of £0.3m
compared to the allowance, as retail costs are lower for unmeasured customers.

The additional costs incurred in serving metered customers were lower than that assumed in the allowance due to the number
of measured customers being lower than assumed, delivering a £0.8m saving. The retail costs common to both measured and
unmeasured customers were higher than the allowance with an associated increase of £1.0m.

Subsequent to Bristol Water exiting the non-household retail market, the allowance for non-household retail costs is £nil. However
operating expenses are still incurred in accordance with the regulatory accounting guidelines. £0.300m of other operating
expenditure relates to the cost of administering new supplies with another £0080m being further services to developers. The
remainder relates to network customer enquiries and complaints in customer services, and an allocation of general and support
expenditure and other operating expenditure.
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2D Historic cost analysis of tangible fixed assets Wholesal Retail 2E Analysis of capital contributions and land sales
olesale etal for the 12 months ended 31 March 2019

Water Water Non- Capitalised
Resources  Network+ Household Household Total Fully and
em em em em em recognised amortised
inincome  (inincome Fully netted

Cost statement  statement)  off capex Total
At1April 2018 62638 782456 1488 0000 846.582 £m £m £m £m
Disposals -0.252 2711 0000 0000 -2.963 Grants and contributions - water
Additions 2103 48065 -0484 0000 49684 Connection charges (s45) 0000 1914 0000 1914
Adjustments -0119 0659 0085 0000 0625 Infrastructure charge receipts (s146) 0000 1334 0000 1334
Assetsadopted atnil cost 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 Requisitioned mains (s43, s55 & s56) 0000 0.240 0000 0240
At 31March 2019 64.370 828469 1089 0000 893.928 Other co